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AGENDA
Call to O der

Approval of nmenorandum and executive sessi on
menor andum from t he May 28, 2020, neeting

Agenda

Consi deration of Settlenent Agreenent between
| HRC Staff and Gabriel Saez.

Consi deration of the foll ow ng proposed
energency rul e change: 71 | AC 9-4-7 Pick (n)
pool s

Revi ew of conm ssion rulings - May 11, 2020
t hrough July 9, 2020.

Heari ng, Deli beration and | ssuance of
Decision relating to Petition of

El dorado Resorts, Inc., Notice of Hearing and
Pre-Hearing Order on Petition of

El dorado Resorts, Inc., for Approval to
Transfer Permts and Licenses.

A d Busi ness
New Busi ness

Adj our nment
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CHAl RMAN BORST: Ckay. We'll call this
neeting of the Indiana Horse Racing Conmi ssion to
order, July 13, 2020. W welcone all of you here.
This is certainly weird tines. The |last neeting
was virtual and this one we're all nmasked peopl e.
So we appreciate you bei ng here.

| see that we have a quorum On the phone is
Bill McCarty, conmm ssioner. Conmm ssioner MCarty
Is on the phone, so we have four nenbers here. W
just have to thank |Indiana G and because they've
had so nuch on their plate in the | ast week, the
derby and plus all this other stuff, and for them
to make the accommobdations for us, we just can't
t hank you enough. Because we tried to get into the
State Museum as you know, but they weren't going
to let us let the public in. W tried to get
gover nnment buil di ngs, State Governnent, well,
they're not open. So Deena scranbl ed, and
| ndi ana Grand was so gracious to let us be here and
we certainly thank you. So that's why we're here
anyway.

There's going to be a sign-up sheet. |Is the
sign-up sheet in the back?

MR. BABBI TT: The sign-up sheet is in the back

on the bar.
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CHAI RMAN BORST: There's no beverages, so
sorry. You can go to the bar and sign up if you
want to speak, and then you wll be sworn in when
the appropriate tinme cones.

At this time I'd [ike to swear in our court
reporter, Mchele GQustafson. Raise your right
hand.

(At this tinme the oath was adm nistered to the
court reporter by Chairnman Borst.)

CHAI RMAN BORST:  Thank you.

kay. So we'll have the approval of the
m nutes or the nenorandum of May 28, 2020.

COW SSI ONER PI LLOW  Second.

CHAl RVAN BORST: Been noved? Do | have a
notion first?

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: | think George noved.

COW SSI ONER PI LLON  So noved.

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Second.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Any questions?

Al those in favor say
THE COW SSI ON: " Aye. "
CHAI RVAN BORST: Do we have to do the roll

aye.

call?
MR JACKSON: Yes, sir. |I'msorry, yes.

Because Conmm ssioner MCarty's on the phone, we'll
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do a roll-call vote.

CHAl RVAN BORST: Ckay. W'll do a roll-call
vot e.

MR. JACKSON: Chai rman Borst.

CHAI RVAN BORST:  Aye.

MR. JACKSON: Vi ce-chairman Schenkel .

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.

MR. JACKSON: Conm ssioner Pillow

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.

MR JACKSON: And Conm ssioner MCarty.

COW SSI ONER McCARTY:  Aye.

MR, JACKSON. Thank you.

CHAl RVAN BORST: Thank you. We'll get this
down yet.

Next on the agenda is consideration of the
settl ement agreenent between the Comm ssion Staff
and Gabriel Saez. Noah, are you going to handl e
t hat one?

MR, JACKSON. Thank you.

Comm ssi oners, you have in your packet the
anmended settlenent agreenent that was fully
executed in July 2020 between Comm ssion Staff and
j ockey Gabriel Saez. M. Saez rode in the fourth
race at |ndiana Gand on June 17, 2020. During the

fourth race an incident occurred where three
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j ockeys were unseated fromtheir nounts. After
review ng the video of the race post-incident, the
stewards suspended M. Saez for 30 days for
careless riding, citing a violation of three
separate rules. M. Saez tinely filed an appeal of
the ruling.
After settlenent discussions Staff and
M. Saez reached the agreenent that you have before
you. M. Saez agreed to dism ss his appeal and
serve the entirety of the 30-day suspension. In
return, the ruling against M. Saez was anended to
state that he was considered eligible to ride
st akes races during the suspension period, provided
he agreed to add one day to his suspension for
every day that he rode in a stakes race.
At this time | would respectfully request the
Comm ssion's approval of the settlenent agreenent.
CHAI RVAN BORST: Have any notions? Questions?
Move acceptance of the settlenent agreenent?
COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Moved.
COMM SSI ONER McCARTY:  Second.
CHAI RMAN BORST: Moved by
Comm ssi oner Schenkel, seconded by
Comm ssioner McCarty. Further questions?

Rol | -call vote.
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MR, JACKSON:. Thank you. Chairman Borst.

CHAl RMAN BORST:  Aye.

MR. JACKSON: Vi ce-chai rman Schenkel .

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.

MR. JACKSON: Conm ssioner Pillow

COW SSI ONER PI LLOW  Aye.

MR, JACKSON: And Comm ssioner MCarty.

COW SSI ONER McCARTY:  Aye.

MR JACKSON: Thank vyou.

CHAl RVAN BORST: The vote is four to nothing.

Next on the agenda is consideration of the
foll ow ng proposed energency rul e change on
pick (n) pools. Noah, you're going to take that
one to00?

MR, JACKSON:. Thank you, yes.

Comm ssi oners, you have before you a single
rule change to the Rule 71 IAC 9-4-7. At the
May 28 neeting you were asked to vote on
| ndi ana Grand's request for pronotional takeout
reduction on pick five wagering. The Conmm ssion
unani nously voted to approve the change. However,
when I ndiana Grand attenpted to institute the
change foll ow ng the Comm ssion approval, there
were sone issues with the rule before you now. The

proposed | anguage has been tested by I|ndiana G and
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and we believe that all issues regarding the
approved wager from May 28 will be resolved with
this proposed change to the rules.

At this time Comm ssion Staff respectfully
requests your approval of the proposed rul e change,
and the change wll be nade under the Conmi ssion's
ener gency adoption procedure, which nmeans that it
will gointo effect as soon as it is filed. | just
al so wanted to nention that the rule was put in
front of stakehol ders and we did not receive any
comments on it.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Thank you. Any questions,
Conm ssi on nmenbers?

Do we have a notion?

COMM SSI ONER PI LLOW  So noved.

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Second.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Moved by Conm ssioner Pill ow,
second by Comm ssioner Schenkel. Any further
di scussi on?

Rol | -cal | vote.

MR JACKSON: Chai rman Borst.

CHAI RVAN BORST:  Aye.

MR. JACKSON: Vi ce-chai rman Schenkel .

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.

MR. JACKSON: Conm ssioner Pillow
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COW SSI ONER PI LLOW  Aye.

MR, JACKSON: And Comm ssioner MCarty.

COW SSI ONER McCARTY:  Aye.

MR JACKSON: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Passes four to nothing.

No. 3 on the agenda is just the review of
Comm ssion rulings fromMay 11 to July 6. [It's not
anything we have to take a vote on, so that's just
for our edification.

No. 4, hearing, deliberation and i ssuance of
decision relating to petition of Eldorado Resorts,
Inc., notice of hearing and pre-hearing order on
petition of Eldorado Resorts, Inc., for approval to
transfer permts and |licenses.

The purpose of this hearing is for ERI, the
petitioner, an opportunity to nake the presentation
relating to their transfer of petition to the
| ndi ana Horse Raci ng Conm ssion, an opportunity for
the executive director to offer any testinony that
she wi shes to provide in order to supplenent the
record, the Conm ssion an opportunity to ask
guestions of any party, representatives, and
Wi t nesses who nay testify at the hearing, and an
opportunity for non-party organizati ons and persons

to provide testinony in support or adverse to the
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petition. The nmatter will be heard and w ||
continue with appropriate recess until conpl et ed.
The record will be closed at the conclusion of the
heari ng and the Conm ssion will then deliberate and
deci de whether the petition wll be approved,

di sapproved, or approved with conditions. Does not
conpr ehend di scussion during the deliberation of
the petitioner or other interested parties.

| now defer to our Conm ssion counsel to give
us sonme housekeepi ng nmatters.

MR. BABBI TT: Thank you, Chair Borst.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Robi n Babbitt.

MR. BABBITT: | appreciate that. ['d like to
cover a few things before the presentation is
actually started. The first is that pursuant to
the pre-hearing order, the Conm ssion submtted an
exhibit list which was captioned Exhibits A through
Ww th particul ar subsecti ons.

CHAl RMAN BORST: |s your m crophone on?

MR. BABBITT: Is this not working?

M5. PITMAN.  There you go.

MR BABBITT: | haven't been singing karaoke
enough lately to figure out howto do this.

So we have all of the exhibits designated.

The exhibits cane in w thout objection. | would
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note that we had a catchall category, category W
t hat conprehended that if there were any letters
subm ssions provided in response to the public
version of the staff report that we woul d nmake
those a part of the record as well. Those
materials in category Winclude M. Reeg's letter
to the Executive Director dated July 9, 2020.
There was a subm ssion made by Nat H Il in

opposition which was a total of 13 pages. In

or

addition, there was a letter from Mayor Broderi ck,

the City of Anderson, to the Comm ssion in support

of the petition dated July 9, 2020. There was an

additional letter fromthe |ISA again in support

of

the staff recommendations in the transfer petition,

that was dated July 9. There was a letter from
| TOBA in support of the transfer of petition that

came in, | believe, on the 10th of July.

Thereafter, we received a letter in support of the

transfer of petition fromDean WIllie Reed, the
chair of Purdue's College of Veterinary Medicine,
dated July 10, 2020. Lastly, at 11:57 last night
so it was actually dated July 12, | got a letter
support of the petition from Steve Bat eson, the
presi dent of the Chio Harness Horsenen's

Associ ati on.

in
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Those materials have all been circulated to
the Comm ssion and we woul d request that the chair
make Comm ssion Exhibits A through Winclusive a
part of the record of these proceedings.

CHAI RMAN BORST: | grant the request to nake
all Exhibits A through Wfromthe Conm ssion's
exhibit list part of the record.

MR. BABBI TT: Then the next thing that we
woul d like to point out is that we filed a request
for official notice pursuant to
| ndi ana Code 4-21.5-3-26(f). This was filed and
dated tinely on July 8, 2020. The basic purpose of

this is sinply to make clear -- and | don't think
that anyone will contest it for purposes of the
proceedi ng -- that Eldorado, Caesars, and fornerly

Centaur were all subject to the statute rules and
adm nistrative regulations that are cited in the
request for official notice.

The Conmm ssion, because we have a long history
that has sort of brought us to this point today,
the Coommssion is entitled to take official notice
of other proceedings before the Commssion. So in
2 we are asking that the Comm ssion take official
notice of its final order in re: Centaur's

acqui sition of Indiana G and dated January 7, 2013,

Page 13



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

the Comm ssion's final order in re: the approval of
the initial distribution agreenent dated

Decenber 10, 2013, and the Comm ssion's final order
in re: Caesars acquisition of Hoosier Park and

I ndiana G and with related permts and |icenses
dated July 10, 2018.

So we would ask at this tine, M. Chair, that
you grant our request to take official notice of
all of the things referenced in the request for
official notice which |I have just descri bed.

CHAI RMAN BORST: | grant that counsel's
request to take official notice of all the
docunents and | aws referenced in the request for
official notice filed on July 8 and direct that
t hose be made a part of the record.

MR. BABBI TT: Thank you, M. Chair.

Then lastly 1'lIl get sone | ast housekeepi ng
details covered and then we'll turn this over to
the chair to turn it over to the petitioners.

The first thing that | would note is that for
the benefit of the Conmm ssion and the court
reporter, it's very inportant that each person who
addresses the Conm ssion identify thensel ves.

G ven the fact that we're all wearing face masks,

that's even nore inportant than it has been in the
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past. So please identify who you are when you
approach the podiumto address the Conm ssion.
That al so hel ps the court reporter as she's going
t hrough and putting the record of the proceedi ngs
t oget her.

There is a public comment section, and that
public comment section based upon the notice that
was issued will be limted to those people that are
here, because | don't think the technol ogy woul d
support any other position and, quite frankly, the
notice made clear that if you were going to provide
public input you needed to cone in person. So if
you' re here and you would like to submt any
testinony during the public input section, please
sign the sign-up sheet in the back and at the
appropriate time we'll bring that up to the front.

Now, any witness who wll testify during this
particul ar proceedi ng nust be sworn by the chairnman
so that obviously the petitioner knows who they're
going to have address the Conm ssion, so those
people wll stand to be sworn en masse by the
chair. Those of you who are going to speak during
the public comment section, please stand and be
sworn as well because it's inportant for everyone

to be sworn before they give testinony.
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The Comm ssion will assune that all w tnesses
have been sworn at the begi nning of the
presentation of evidence unless instructed
ot herwi se by the person or that party's
representative. So it's your responsibility to
make sure you're sworn and if you cone up and
address the Comm ssion we're going to assune that
you were.

Wth the perm ssion of the chair, the
Comm ssioners or the Comm ssion's counsel may ask
guestions of any witness at any tine or after the
presentation is conplete. So there may be a
situati on where a Conm ssioner has a question that
they want to address to you. They obviously with
the chair's permssion will be able to do so. |If
not, that doesn't nean that they won't ask it
because it could cone up at the end of the
presentati on.

That's pretty nmuch it for housekeeping
matters. Unless the Conm ssion or the petitioners
have anything else they'd |ike to address, |'m
ready to turn it back over to you, M. Chair, so
that you can preside over the hearing.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Seeing none, just to give you

an idea of how the hearing's going to go. There'll
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be an opening statenent, then there'll be a
presentation by ERI, the opening statenent by ERI,
there'll be testinony of the Conmm ssion Staff and

public testinony, then any rebuttal or final

statenent, and then we'll close the record, and
then we'll have a deliberation and decision on it.
So that way you know how things will go. So I'm

not going to forget anybody.
Al those who intend to testify, if you would

stand and raise your right hand, we'll just do it
all en masse. If sonebody cones | ater and deci des,
we'll swear themin.

(At this time the oath was adm nistered to any
W t nesses.)

CHAI RMAN BORST:  AIl right. GCkay. So we're
here obviously this is a nonentous occasi on and
horse racing in Indiana has taken a long tine to
get to this point. Sone people don't know the
whol e story, but there's a certain State Senator
who spent over twenty years to get this through the
| egi sl ature and had to change the
| ndi ana Constitution because horse racing was
deened to be a lottery and so lottery had to cone
in and then horse racing. It started about 1969

and finally 1989, | guess, is when we had the
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| egi sl ati on and raci ng began about five years
later. | lived through a | ot of that because that
State Senator happened to have been ny dad.

So l'"'mreally honored to be here at this
juncture of horse racing. As we all know, we've
got a famly here between the horsenen, between the
tracks, between the Conm ssion Staff,

Comm ssioners, and | think ERl understands that and
| hope they do because we want to continue that.
We've got a good thing going in Indiana and we do
not want it to go downhill. W want it to only get
better. Hopefully that's where we're going to go.

So with that, | don't know who's going to give
t he opening statenment for ERI, but if you'd like to
cone up and, again, state your nane so the
transcriber will be able to get it all right.

MR. REEG Morning. |'m Tom Reeg, chi ef
executive officer of Eldorado. |Is this working?

MR BABBITT: It is.

CHAI RVAN BORST: | think so. Maybe a little
hi gher. There you go.

MR. REEG Tom Reeg, chief executive officer
of El dorado. Chairnman Borst, Conm ssioners,
Executive Director Pitnman, Noah, Robin, thank you

for all the work that everybody's put in to get to
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this point today. | know this has been much | onger
process than any of us were anticipating. W
didn't expect to be wearing masks. | personally
appreciate you allowing us to cone neet you here in
person. It's inportant to us to start these

rel ati onshi ps on a face-to-face basis.

| also want to thank all the various
horsenen's groups that spent a great deal of tine
neeting wth us, local comunity |eaders. It's a
great thing to see how nuch pride the entire area
takes in these businesses and it shows. It showed
as we've gotten into this starting a little over a
year ago.

You know, |'d say as | was wal king the fl oor
this norning, it's a beautiful property, continuing
to get better. The addition of tables on the
casino side. W know that none of this is here
Wi t hout the racing community. This cones with the
responsibility to be a steward of that business,
and we understand that Centaur set a very high bar
to be a leader in the space in these tracks. You
see it. These tracks are as good as any in the
country, and we understand it's a solemm
responsibility to take control of them

| wll tell you | read Executive Director
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Pitman's report. | read the Reed report. 1'l]
take that on right out of the box, and |I'm not
going to stand in front of you and offer excuses.
What I'Il tell you is what | read in the Reed
report was not acceptable to ne. | knowit's not
acceptable to this Comm ssion. You've seen us make
changes i medi ately upon the issuance of it,
bringing in Joe Morris, who is our director of
racing, is going to be the man on the ground here
with you. But | also understand that you can't fix
that in a couple of nonths by hiring one guy. It's
got to be a commtnent fromthe conpany.

Goi ng back to Executive Director Pitman's
report, we've seen the list of conditions in that
report. We understand that this Conm ssion, if
they give us the opportunity to own these tracks,
will need to hold our feet to the fire, and we are
ready and willing to accept all of the conditions
in that report.

As | start to go through presentation, what
|'"d say is |I'mpresum ng that everybody saw or is
aware of what went on Friday at the Indiana Gam ng
Comm ssion, so our remarks today are focused on
racing. W have the broader deal slides in the

back of the presentation. W're happy to go
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t hrough and cover any ground that you'd like to
cover, but we're focused on the inpact on racing in
this transaction.

So if we could put the presentation up on
video and start on slide 1.

M5. PITMAN. Do you have sonebody that's goi ng
to be doing that?

MR. REEG | have it.

CHAl RMAN BORST: How about that? There you
go.

MR. REEG  Thank you.

And 1'd also tell you Joe is going to be your
man on the ground, but |I'mnot comng in here and
| eaving again. You're going to see ne. This is
extrenmely inportant to our conpany. These
properties are going to be significant growth
drivers for our conpany and we're naking serious
commtnments here, and I'"'mgoing to see to it
personally that we live up to the commtnents that
we' re maki ng, should we get the opportunity from
this Comm ssion to do so.

As | said, we've appointed a new corporate
| eadership team dedi cated to racing, brought in
Joe Morris. W enpower |ocal |eadership, we don't

do things on centralized basis generally, so it's
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the people that are on the ground every day that
you deal with here that are going to be enpowered
to make deci sions.

We have made comm tnents across all aspects of
the business to reinvest in racing, to inprove the
raci ng product, to focus on equine safety, we nade
commtnments to | ocal communities, and we're going
to i nplenent marketing inprovenents that we'll go
through in detail as we get through the
presentation. | should tell you that Joe Mrris
will follow ne and that Anthony Carano, our chi ef
operating officer, wll follow Joe.

We have a board nenber, M ke Pegram who
happens to be a fornmer Indiana Derby winner with
Lookin At Lucky. As we started to respond to what
we saw in the Reed report, MKke introduced us to
Joe Morris, who is well known within the community
and has really hit the ground running for us. He's
been a breath of fresh air. Over forty years in
the business in many different roles, track
managenent, horsenen associ ati ons, has been an
owner on the standardbred and thoroughbred side,
and involvenent in a boarding facility as well.

Qur structure is the following: Joe wll

report directly to chief operating officer
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Ant hony Carano, who you will hear fromlater, many
of you in the room have net, and Anthony reports to
me, so Rick and Eric go up through Joe to Anthony
to nme. As | said, you have senior focus on this
busi ness fromas high up as it gets in our conpany,
up to and including the board.

As all of you are aware, on Friday the
Gam ng Commi ssion approved us with the condition
that we sell three assets post-transaction. Should
you provide us the opportunity to own the tracks,
I"'mw lling to conmt to you that the tracks wll
not be utilized to settle those conditions. It
woul d be Evansville, Southern |Indiana, and Hamond.

You know, we are excited to get noving. W
intend to invest $60 mllion into these properties
on the casino side. It'll expand the table ganes
operation. W're commtting to extend the
12 percent share to horsenen for a significant
period of tine. W will hit the ground running in
terns of that expansion, which wll bring forward
that revenue as quick as we possibly can.

We conme out of this transaction, to briefly
touch on the broader transaction, with $4 billion
of liquidity as a conbi ned conpany, so we can nake

the investnments that are necessary in these tracks.
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| contrast that wth Caesars, as large as they are,
in the nodel that they submtted to all of the
regul ators that put those transactions on pause
because they were preserving liquidity. So this
transaction allows us to nove that forward and get
nmovi ng and get the revenue flow ng as quickly as
possible. As you know, we've also conmmtted to

$25 million mninmmevery ten years into the tracks
thensel ves. W're excited to put that noney to
work as wel | .

The last issue that | would touch on before
turning to Joe that we've had sone conversation
about throughout the process is as part of the
transaction there is a call arrangenent for the
real estate underlying the tracks. That is not in
front of the Comm ssion today, as you know. \What |
woul d tell you is the $4 billion of liquidity that
we have post-transaction and now with the three
casi no sales on the gam ng side should bring us
over $5 billion liquidity makes it unlikely that we
woul d exercise. In terns of our present
ci rcunstance, we have no intention of exercising,
but we can't speak to what our partner wl|
ultimately do at the call.

But we do understand that nothing will happen
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there wi thout we and Veche (sp.) comng forward to
this Comm ssion and convincing you that that's in
the best interest of the state of Indiana and
particularly the racing industry in Indiana. So |
wanted to speak to that directly even though that's
not directly in front of you today. And we are
absol utely confortable with the | anguage rel ative
to that particular piece that's in

Executive Director Pitnman's report to the
Comm ssi on.

So wwth that, | wll turn it over to
Joe Morris to get into detail on the racing side
and I'Il be back to deliver conclusion.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you.

Vel cone.

MR. MORRIS: Thank you. Joe Morris, senior
vice president of racing for Eldorado. M. Chair,
Comm ssi oners, horsenen in the room good norning.
Thank you for having this neeting today. 1'd Iike
to acknow edge Doug Reed first. |'ve read that
report. He did a darn good job wth that. Lot of
work. And |I've known Doug for many, nany years,
about his age actually with forty years in the
I ndustry nyself as he does.

| was on the University of Arizona's advisory

Page 25



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

board for a nunber of years and Doug put ne there
and used to work with the students. He would place
interns at the different tracks that |I've worked at
over the years and hired many people out of that
program W've got two in the state out of that
program W've got Eric Hal stromand Dan Fick, two
of the better racing mnds |I've ever worked wth,
right fromthat school.

When | | ook at the Reed report, | conme up wth
a coupl e of takeaways. One, he points out on two
or three occasions in it each property that
El dorado had did have a uni que set of circunstances
at one nonment. They weren't all the sane. They
were different in different areas and different
t hi ngs happened wwth them The second part that
he, probably his biggest point he makes, is
El dorado and the tracks | acked expertise in their
managenent. There's no arguing that. That is the
case.

When t hey bought those tracks from MIR, they
had a | ady naned Rosemary WIllians. She was a good
track operator. She operated the three groups.

She retired probably year and a half, two years
after that happened and didn't get replaced with

the expertise that needed to be there. The
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managers did |lack authority and they were mred in
a bureaucracy. Just took too long sonetinmes to get
a deci si on.

When | was tal king wth Anthony about taking
this position, | had the sane three concerns.
Ant hony, |'ve been doing this for a long tine. |
need to have the authority to run the racing
program | need to be able to put the teans
together; and if | need an answer, | need to be
able to get up the chain quick, get the answer.
It's a fluid situation running racetracks and you
got to keep on the nove with them

That chart there enables that. That fixes
that. | would say that racing is dynamc to
itself. The racing people need to be making the
raci ng decisions. W fix that in this case, and
this structure actually manages itself. So this is
part of what we're doing to nake this workable.

We can go to the next slide.

MR. REEG There's a clicker in front of you,
Joe.

MR MORRIS: Al right. M technical
expertise is far bel ow ny racetrack.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Joi n the club.

MR MORRIS: Streanlined structure for
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busi ness decisions on racing matters. As | said, |
have the authority to work with the teans and make
t hose decisions. Team being the inportant part.

No one person can run a racetrack. There's too
many noving parts. W develop a team | |ook for
the brightest people I can find and we put them
into those position. Good news here, R ck More,
Eric Halstrom Emly Gaskin. They're working here.
We pronote fromwithin, we work fromw thin, and we
col | aborate on runni ng these racetracks.

Communi cation's key to any business. You need
to be talking with your partner. 1In this case when
| "' m maki ng a deci sion, what are the horsenen going
to think about it, what are the ganblers going to
t hi nk about it, how are our enployees going to work
and help execute it. Those are the seats | try to
put nyself in. You can only do that if you' re on
the property. You can't run a racetrack renote.
You got to be there day to day, talking with your
horsenen, talking with your custoners, owners,
drivers, and your enployees to nmake this work.

Operational plans, every track |I've ever been
at, you do a yearly plan. You submt it to the
Comm ssion as part of your licensing generally in

ot her states, but you include your operations, you
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I ncl ude your marketing plan, you include your

st akes schedul e, your purse |levels, your capital

pl ans, and you do that by talking wth your
partners. You talk wth the horsenen on stakes, on
purses. You get wth your marketing team and cone
up with a plan. First thing you do i s you review
the year before's, what'd we do right, what'd we do
wrong, rely on that, build it into the new pl an
going forward. Take that, you present it to your
horsenen, to your Comm ssion Staff. You get input

fromyour ganblers and you put those forward.

W work with horsenen, and you'll hear that
today. | nmean, | talk to my horsenen on a daily
basis. | ama horseman. | racehorses. | raise
horses. [|'ve got 13 of themin ny barn in

Lexi ngton, Kentucky. It's what |I've done ny whol e
life.

Reed ki nd of takes our past into consideration
and he tal ks about that. Here's our present. This
Is our first experinent with this new structure,
Sci oto Downs. Becane the first harness track in
North Anerica to reopen. W had a chance to do
that. | called Anthony. | said, Anthony, | think
we can be the first track in North America open.

He said, | want to be the first track in
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North Anmerica open. | don't know when the casino.
Not that he didn't care, but | don't care when the
casi no opens. Make that the first track open. W
were able to do that.

We changed our wagering format. It was stale
and it wasn't what the ganblers wanted. Brought in
sone better comentary in talking to the ganblers,
a guy nanmed Gabe Prewitt there. W changed the way
we placed our races into the program W worked
Wi th our horsenen to nake this happen. W had
twel ve straight days where we exceeded a mllion
dollars in handle. W' ve done it three tines nore
since. W had one over $2 mllion. W only had
three days as the only track in North America. W
kept that run going. To date, we're still
aver agi ng $860, 000.

Again, this is a track that over the | ast
five, six years has averaged sonewhere around
$215,000. So the results have been really good.
We've bet $31 mllion in 36 days, a year ago on 90
days we bet $19.5 million. So we've nade a
difference there. W got excitenent back into that
pl ace.

Part of it is the way we nmanage our post

times. W' ve been helping this area a little bit.
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You know, the old days all you had was your
custoners at the track so all you had to watch was
your custoners at the track. Then you get into
when we started sinulcast and it's pretty nmuch the
ot her tracks when they were going.

The bi ggest part of everybody's handl e today
Is the conputer, and you' ve got to give thema
chance to get into your races. You've got to have
liquidity for themto cone into the races. W've
reached out to them and they' re enbraci ng Sci ot o.
Simlar to Hoosier's product, it's full fields and
It's a lot of races.

This year in 2020 we've run 550 races. Sane
period a year ago we had run 487 races. Gve ne a
conpetitive race, I'mgoing to run the thing. It's
not going to sit. W're in the racing business.

Working with our horsenmen on qualifiers, that
gi ves you the formfor the horse, the ganblers need
to seeit. W fill in all of you ours so they can
go back and |l ook at the horse's form A year ago
for the whole 90 days we ran 138 qualifiers. To
date, we've run 258 qualifiers. W're there with
the horsenmen. W're working with them W're
getting that product out in front of the betting
publ i c.
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| went to a neeting there early on with the
hor senen and sone of our key people, and they
| ooked at ne and said, What are you going to do to
make this better, Joe? | said, Wiat do you nean
what am| going to do? |It's what are we going to
do. This is a teameffort. W're going to do
what's right always. W're going to do what's
right by our horsenen. W're going to do what's
ri ght by our ganblers and our enployees. That's
where it starts at a track. You do that
consistently and you get that product out there,
the financial results wll follow That's happened
for years and years the way we've done that, so we
enbrace that.

The other inportant thing there is our track

surface and our maintenance. |'ve added track
enpl oyees. There wasn't enough there. | brought
in the Coons Brothers, Greg and Danny. | woul dn't

be at a harness track without them They are great
consultants. They have a worl dw de reputation.
They're part of our programthere at Scioto, and
we've got norale at record |levels with enpl oyees
and wi th horsenen.

G owth of Indiana racing, this is the highest

platformof any state |'ve ever conme in on. Wen
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t he horsenen, the Conm ssion, and | egislators put
this programtogether, you really got it right. |
mean, we're comng in at a high I evel here. One
thing we need, | believe, is sone nore big days.
We' ve got | ndiana Derby and OGaks. Last Wdnesday,
| mean, big day, record handle. W need two or
three nore big days at Hoosier and we need to
capitalize at |Indiana Breeders Crown at Hoosi er.
We're in conversations now with Breeders Crown and
there's an opportunity nmaybe for Hoosier to be on a
t hree-year cycle, Meadow ands, Wodbi ne, and
Hoosier, and we'd |like to see that happen.

On the quarter horse side of things, they're
having a record neet here this year also and we're
hoping to work with them and the AQHA and get
quarter horse Chall enge Chanpi onshi p here and t hat
could be their crown race.

Best-in-class racing, that's what you al ways
strive for. If you're in business, you want to be
best in class. Hoosier racetrack should becone the
nunber - one harness track in Arerica. They have the
facilities, they have the horses, driver quality,
horsenmen. W just need to get the handl e up sone
and we'll do that.

| ndi ana Grand, great product. The Monday
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t hrough Thursday schedule is good. |[Indiana G and
Is the big signal on those days, so you're not
conpeti ng agai nst sone of the giants on a Friday or
Saturday. You get to showcase it where you're the
bi g signal.

We need to continue to advertise and
pronoti onal spend. W' ve | ooked at what they' ve
done in the past. W've |ooked at their schedul es.
They spend a decent anount of noney on their
pronotions. W will add to that as a part of what
we do and we'll particularly add to it when we're
pronoting our big race days.

Cross pronotion, utilization, not only between
the two tracks, between the casinos. 12 percent of
our purse noney cones fromthe casinos. W need to
be tying into that. As a part of if this deal goes
t hrough, there'll be six other tracks that we can
put together and | everage with each other and it'l]|
make the I ndiana tracks stronger as a part of that.

Ant hony's commtted to another 10 percent in
advertising and pronotional spend for 2020. At
Hoosier we'll use that on Breeders Cup.

The ot her huge advantage is Caesars Rewards.
There's not another racetrack group that'll have

Caesars Rewards. He with the biggest list at the
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end of the day is going to wn and this is a
60 mllion person list that we wll be able to m ne
into and use to the benefit of Hoosier and G and.

Equi ne safety, human safety on the track,
hi ghest of priorities. | worked with the NTRA
was there when they devel oped the NTRA safety
alliance. Every track | ran in California,

t horoughbred track, was a part of that. Big
believer init. W wll stay with that group.
W'll work with the safety stewards and the
Comm ssi on on ot her areas.

One of the things |I've always done is graph
the information. You're doing noisture readings.
You' re doi ng conpaction readings. You' re doing
conpaction on your turf. Guaph that and it'll tell
you a story over time as conditions change.

W will have our industry experts -- as | said
earlier, the Coons Brothers are already on -- and
| ' ve al ways used science at racetracks. You need
to be testing the viscosity of your gravel. You
need to know the level of silt and the |evel of
clay. Your root structure on a turf course, you
need science to help determne that. 1've always
used M ck Peterson from Kentucky, but we wll

continue to use that infornation. Science has to
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be a part of what we're doing on our track
surf aces.

The reinvestnent in racing, we understand that
we are starting at a high, high level here in
| ndi ana and we need to keep adding to that. W'lI
commt to the | ong-term agreenent on purses at
12 percent. W'Il commt to support future
| egislative efforts to make it 12 percent. |
believe it reads 10 to 12 now and we'll work with
the horsenen and the first opportunity we get we'll
go to the legislation and we'll try to make it
Instead of 10 to 12 percent we'll make it
12 percent.

We'll continue to run at m ni num the sane
nunber of race days. As | said, | like to race.
There could be a chance for nore possibly in the
future.

OrB facilities, first class. W'Ill maintain
our racing |eadership positions. As | said, it
takes a team | always try to find the brightest
to be on that team

More in reinvesting of racing, there's a new
capital fund that will cone if this deal goes
through. It's $25 mllion to be invested over a

10-year period. W' ve already agreed to the
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10-year Caesars capital program Now we're
agreeing to this. First shot, first ideas on that,
we need sone nore stalls here. W don't really
control our horse popul ation destination. W need
anot her nunber of stalls to hel p nmake sure we've
got the nunmber of horses we need to put the product
on and we need nore dormroons for our groons, and
we wll work to do both of those.

At Hoosier we need to conme up with an owner's
area. W don't do enough to distinguish,
differentiate our owners versus our regular fans.
So we need to cone up with an area that's a VIP
area for them W have enough horses in the state.
We don't have enough owners to own, which neans
trainers end up owning too many of the horses, so
we need to do owner inprovenent.

A lot of states |I've been in, too, you spend
all your tinme arguing about track surface or a barn
area that's not up to par or equipnent. W don't
have that chall enge here. So our conversations are
going to be how do we get nore Indiana breds on the
ground, thoroughbred, harness, and quarter horse.
Great conversation. Everybody can coll aborate to
that. How do we get nore owners, another great

conversation. Conme up with sonme ideas on how to
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attract nore owners into our business.

Then we're going to add a mllion a year to
purses '20 through '22 as a junp-start on the
I npact of our tables. That will go into the
purses. W'Il work with the horsenen, see what
| evel s and what conditions they want to put that
I nto.

Racing is very bright here. W |ook forward
to participating init. There's nothing to fix.
think we can polish it alittle bit, but there's
really nothing to fix. It's a heck of a problem

| wll hand it back over to Anthony Carano.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Thank you.

MR. CARANO Thank you, Joe.

M. Chairman, nenbers of the Comm ssion,

Ant hony Carano, president and chief operating

of ficer of Eldorado Resorts. |It's an honor and a
privilege to be in front of you today. | want to
t hank Executive Director Pitman, Noah, Robin for
all the incredible work you guys have put into
this. It's been a real teameffort and they' ve
done an excellent job --

As Tom said, we are very excited about the
future and the expansi ons of these two beautiful

properties. W're going to nove very quickly to
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expand the properties, and I'll go through a couple
of pictures. |'msure you' ve seen them already,
and we're happy to cone in front of you again and
update you on progress as we get through this.

As you may know, the current conpany in
Caesars has paused these projects due to COVID, but
we're here today to coommit to you that we will nove
forward day one with your blessing on the
expansion. The investnent into these facilities
W ll result in increased visitation, exposure to
raci ng, and revenue opportunities for the racing
I ndustry. So very exciting tines and a very bright
future for these two properties here in |Indiana.

As we nove forward to the next pages, this is
Harrah's Hoosier Park. So we'll be expanding right
off the front of Hoosier Park, nore room for
tabl es, slots, and sone non-gam ng anenities. Then
at this property here we'll be addi ng about 35 nore
tables, a live poker room nore slot machi nes, and,
agai n, sonme non-gam ng anenities that help draw
nore crowds, nore people cone out and see the
beauti ful tracks and the great racing product you
have here.

To nove to the next and tal k about our

commtnment to racing, |'ve got to start by thanking
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the presidents and the directors of the racing
associ ations here in Indiana. They' ve spent a
tremendous anount of tinme with nyself and ny team
really getting to know us, getting to know our
conpany, and they've been fantastic to deal wth.
"' m happy to report today that we've got very
strong relations. It's a beginning of a
relationship. As | tell themall the tine, our
words only nmean so nuch. W've got to prove to
themthat we're here and we're going to be great
partners, but we're excited to do so.

We've worked with themto cone up wth what we
believe a very strong plan to keep these tracks as
the gold standard in the country. You guys have
done an incredible job here in Indiana, and we just
can't wait to nmake them even better, as Joe and Tom
have sai d before.

We're commtting to fulfilling the remaining
years of the financial commtnent to the Centaur
Equi ne Specialty Hospital in Shelbyville. That's a
very inportant project to us, and we're al so goi ng
to rebrand that as Caesars Hospital, further
showi ng our conmtnent to the industry and the
heal th and safety throughout the industry.

We're going to work with and help fund with
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I ndustry partners an update to the Horse Racing
Econom c I npact Study. W're going to continue to
support the Indiana Horse Racing Hall of Fanme. W
know how i nportant the |l egacy of this board is, so
we wll commt to continuing that and continuing to
support the Enpire of Hope race horse aftercare
initiatives, another very inportant initiative that
we' ve had a | ot of discussions about.

When we tal k about our comm tnent to |ocal
communi ties, over the past year we've had the
di stinct pleasure to neet with Mayor DeBaun,
Mayor Broderick, a nunber of other politicians,
| ocal legislators, and also incredible charitable
organi zati ons here in Shel byville and Anderson and
their incredible | eaders. W wanted to hear
firsthand what we can do to nmake a real inpact in
t hese communities.

When we tal k about, you know, commtnent to
| ocal communities, ny famly and our conpany's had
a long, very long history of partnering with our
| ocal communities in making them better places not
only for our team nenbers but for everybody in the
communities. Indiana will be no different.

We're going to continue to invest in the

| ndi ana communities where we have the privil ege of
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operating. W know and take great pride in the
fact that Indiana racing just doesn't inpact

Shel byvill e and Anderson, it inpacts every county
in this great state. So we have a |l ot of areas
that we can positively inpact.

W will also ensure that ourselves and our
teans are substantial with treasure and tine in the
| ocal communities. Here it says we encourage but
we really mandate our | ocal property managenent to
serve on local non-profit and civic boards.

W will also continue what Caesars has with
HERO vol unteer service program W really want to
enpower our team nenbers here at these properties
and all across the country to get out and vol unt eer
in their comunities and support those interests
t hat they have.

We're going to be sure to exceed prior years
community and involvenent in participation. To
that end, we're going to commt an additional
$250, 000 in cash, and it's not to be confused with
mar keting dollars or anything else. This is cash
that we're contributing this year on top of all the
ot her commtnents that we've made post-nerger for
noney to be spent here on charitable and | ocal

conmuni ty organi zations in |ndiana.
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The state will also have the continued support
of the Caesars Foundation. |It's a great foundation
that we think we can nmake even better. | wl|
personally be sitting on the board of that
foundation to nmake sure that we're inpacting the
| ocal communities where we do busi ness.

Wth that, in closing I'd just like to say a
couple things. This job is just not another job
for nme, the conpany's just not another conpany, and
this transaction's just not another transaction.
This is a conpany that ny grandfather built over
forty-eight years ago fromnothing and it's al ways
been a famly business and will continue to be a
fam |y business, nuch |Iike sone of your businesses
and nmuch like the famly farns and the busi nesses
that are so integral to the racing in this great
state.

As Tom said, did we nake sone m stakes when we
first got into racing a few years ago? Absol utely.
What we' ve done since is put together a great team
| ed by Joe Morris and his team great general
managers both at the property and racing here in
| ndiana. We're dedicating a trenendous anount of
noney and resources to racing. W have great

partners in the horsenen. W just have a very,
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very bright future, especially if you give us the
di sti nct honor of owning these two tracks. W take
with great pride that we will only nake these
tracks better and make | ndiana the gold standard of
racing in this country.

So with that, 1'd like to turn it back over to
Tom nmake his closing remarks.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you.

MR REEG In ternms of current status,
shar ehol ders of both conpani es have approved the
transaction. The FTC as well. Every regulatory
body that we need for approval has approved save
for this Commssion that we're in front of today
and New Jersey who we'll be in front of Wdnesday.
So this transaction should be in position,
presum ng successful appeals to those renmaining
Comm ssi ons by next week.

Al'l of the cash to close the nerger is already
in escrow and ready to go. As |'ve said, the
nmer ged conpany will have $3.3 billion of day one
liquidity, $4 billion by the end of the third
quarter, and should have $5 billion by this point
next year. So 4 to 5X the next conpetitor in the
space in terns of resources to bring to bear.

Leadership team and new board of directors are
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confirmed. Post-opening results everywhere have
been encouragi ng, nuch stronger than we anti ci pated
I n the post-COVID worl d.

We've done a lot of talking here, so | want to
turn it back for questions |'msure the Conmm ssion
has. | want to thank you for seeing us here today
I n person, considering our application, and as |
said at the start, we know that racing is why you
have the casino opportunities that you have in
these two properties and our pledge to you is to
drive that racing business to another level. As
all three of us have said, you're already at a very
high level. W'Ill work to take it even higher.

So with that, I'll turn it back to you,

M. Chai r man.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you. Wy don't we hold
questions for a little bit. Wy don't we go ahead
and hear any testinony fromstaff and public and
then we can start asking questions. That way we
get everybody's thoughts out.

So, Deena, do you have any nore thoughts to go
Wi th your report?

M5. PITMAN. | really don't, Chairman.
think everything that | have to say is basically

included in ny report and |I'mgoing to stand by
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t hat .

CHAl RMAN BORST: Ckay. Thank you.

Do we have the sign-up sheet? Has anybody
retrieved that? Let's go ahead and go to public
testinony, and then that way after that then we'll
start asking questions. Sonetinmes the nore you
hear, the |ess questions you have sonetines. You
guys have cleared up a | ot of things already, so we
appreci ate that.

Brian Elnore gets to be first. W know who
got here first.

(W ping wth sanitizer w pe)

(all 1 aughing)

CHAl RMAN BORST: There you go.

MR ELMORE: See, we're required to do this by
Executive Director Pitman.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Do the m crophone too.

MR, ELMORE: Don't want to get shocked.

Brian El nore, executive director of the
| ndi ana Hor senen's Benevol ent & Protective
Association. |It's good to be wth you and see you
I n person today. At our |last neeting when it was
virtual, | had a difficult tinme getting online.
knew | was going to be late for the neeting, but

t hank goodness there was one other person that was
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having a difficult tinme getting on. But |I'm not
going to nention any nanes.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Sone of us never got on.
That's how bad we are.

(all laughing)

MR ELMORE: In addition to the petition in
front of you and the significant anmount of tinme it
takes to properly consider such a natter for
deci sion, we've had to deal with the current
pandem c. On behalf of the horsenen and nyself, we
want to extend our gratitude to the Conm ssioners,
the Governor's office, but especially to commend
Executive Director Pitman, Deputy Director Tom
Li nkneyer, their staff, Noah, Wendy, Jessi ca,
Megan. They all did a fantastic job and we
appreci ate everything that was done to get us
reopened for training and subsequently racing. W
t hank you very nuch.

Qur journey wth El dorado started nmany nonths
ago Wi th nmuch skeptici sm about our new potenti al
partner. | stress the phrase partnership, because
that's truly what we have. W' ve nade great
strides in Indiana over the past several decades.
We the horsenen firmy believe that if this

petition is approved, the current standard of two
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racetracks under the sanme ownership is inperative.

| want to nmake this crystal clear to everybody in
the room The horsenen's associations wth the
owner of the racinos is nost beneficial to all, and
|"mjust going to quickly give you a few reasons
why.

Nunmber one, race marketing across the |arger
geographic area rather than two different owners
conpeting with one another and the horsenen end up
getting pitted agai nst each other. Cross pronoting
all breeds that race in Indiana to a wi der audi ence
on a consistent basis via nedia, electronic
nmessagi ng, nedi a buys, and each track's racing
anal ysi s and handi cappi ng shows pronoting the other
facility's race programnot just locally but also
to the 500 | ocations approved sites to send our
signal through and to the mllions of honmes on TVG
W're nore effective legislatively when we're
cooperating and working together towards the sane
goal s.

Let's go back now sone seven or eight nonths
ago when we were first introduced to the El dorado
executive staff. W met M. Gry Carano,

M. Anthony Carano, M. Tom Reeg, and board of

di rector nenber and Hoosier native Mke Pegram It
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was kind of a difficult neeting because we asked a
ot of difficult questions. W didn't |ob them any
softballs. W threw fast balls, few curves, and

t hey answered our questions in what we believe were
honest, whether it was good, bad, or ugly.

As tinme progressed and nore neetings were
hel d, El dorado asked us our vision for horse racing
in Indiana, where do we want it to go. Eldorado
vol unteered, we put pen to paper, and |list those
things the horsenen would like to see as conditions
as part of the final order. Adamand Jimstarted
nmeeting wth us and soon we had drafted nunerous
itens that were not only approved by the El dorado
executive officers but actually expanded the I|i st
or enhanced the itens that were on the I|ist.

W were then introduced to M. Joe Morrris, who
had been retained as director of racing for
El dorado. Joe brought a vast know edge of the
horse racing industry to Eldorado and wll play a
key role in the success of this endeavor. This was
nore than good-faith gesture. This was the point
i n which El dorado began gaining the trust of the
horsenmen and a significant nonent in a relationship
and hopeful ly future partnership.

The result of all these neetings was the
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docunent submtted to the |Indiana Horse Racing
Comm ssi on executive director, Mss Pitman, from
El dorado dated March 3, 2020.

In addition to an El dorado executive team and
its officers, who we believe are commtted to the
success of the Indiana horse racing industry, and
nost i nportantly the expectations of the Indiana
Hor se Raci ng Comm ssion, the Indiana |egislature,
and the Governor's office, | have great confidence
in the two vice presidents of racing at our |ndiana
racetracks, M. Rick More at Hoosier Park and
M. Eric Halstromat Indiana Gand. |[|'ve known
both of these gentlenen for over twenty-five years.
The horsenen do expect both these individuals to be
enpowered to nmake deci sions and take action on
I ssues that nay arise and their hands not be ti ed.

The respective senior vice presidents at the
racetracks, |'ve only begun to know, M. MKke Rich
at Indiana Gand, M. Trent Ml ntosh at
Hoosi er Park. | have found themto be
approachabl e, know edgeabl e about horse racing,
upfront, and hel pful in resolving issues thus far.
| believe they also are commtted to the success of
each respective facility's racing and gam ng

oper ati ons.
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| am di sappoi nted of the action taken | ast
Friday by another Indiana regul atory agency
requiring Eldorado that if you were to approve this
to divest itself of three properties. |'mnot
going to give a lot of details that wouldn't be
appropriate, but | just want to tell you why |I'm
di sappoi nted. The horsenen | ost three great
opportunities in Northwest Indiana,
Sout hwest | ndi ana, and Southern Indiana to pronote
our sport. This would have been where we coul d
have really gone in and got material in there, got
information in there, and who knows, we could have
made themtalk to El dorado and maybe they woul d
have |iked to have taken the two shell OIB |icenses

and put one up at Hammond and put one down in

Evansville. But | think I'lIl just take a line from
Tom Hanks in Forrest Gunp, and that's all | have to
say that.

In closing, including the testinony I
presented today and in consideration of the staff
report of the Indiana Horse Racing Comm ssion
executive director, the March 3, 2020, El dorado
|l etter to Executive Director Pitman, and the
| ndi ana HBPA position paper dated July 7, 2020, we

urge the I ndiana Horse Raci ng Conm ssion to adopt
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and approve El dorado's petition for transfer of
licenses with conditions agreed upon between the
hor senen' s associ ati ons and El dorado and any ot her
condi ti on deened appropriate by the
Executive Director or the Comm ssioners.

So it is witten in the book of Exodus that
the Lord thy God gave 10 commandnents to Moses on
Mount Sinai. Executive Director published 22

commandnents, conditions, what she expected. And I

just want to say this, | like 22. Thank you for
your time. | appreciate it.
CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you very nmuch. 1've

never heard Deena referred to as Mbses. There's a
first for everything. She's good, but | don't

know. That's good. W got a new nane for you,

Deena.

Dwayne Rhul e.

MR. RHULE: 1'll be nuch briefer than our
former speaker here. | did read your notice that
you said you want us to be brief. [|'Il do that,
all right.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Thank you.
MR. RHULE: Thank you, Chairman and
Comm ssioners, for allowing ne to speak up.

Dwayne Rhul e, chairman of the standardbred advi sory
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commttee. |'ma standardbred farmowner and a
racer of horses at Hoosier Park. You have ny
letter in your file dated July 6, 2020, and | wll
be brief as requested. These are ny thoughts and
ot her people's concerns.

We are here today because M. |cahn was not
pl eased with his RO --

CHAl RVAN BORST: Mbve the m c down.

MR RHULE: Bring it down? Al right.

CHAl RVAN BORST: There you go.

MR RHULE: You don't want ne to do redo it,
do you?

CHAI RMAN BORST: No, no. You can pick up
where you left off.

MR. RHULE: Al right. W are here today
because M. Ichan was not pleased with his RO in
Caesars stock, which he reportedly owns 8 percent
plus. He put hinself on the casino floor and
hel ped to force this nerger with Eldorado. | was
i nvolved at the legislature with the slots bill in
2007. Al three breeds and Centaur worked together
to get the legislation passed. W pushed the thene
that it would be a boost to the Indiana
agricultural econonmy. It has been greatly

successful .
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This nmerger is about financial schenes,
| everage, huge debt, $17.3 million in rent. An
addi tional $500 million has been prom sed in cost
savings and recently | think it was bunped up to
$620 mllion. People somewhere will be
reduced -- maybe not at Hoosier, maybe not here,
but sonewhere in the corporation -- and everything
wi Il be subject to RA.

| have read about 200 pages of financi al
anal ysts' thoughts on the nerger. They go from
euphoric to a dangerous deal. The Reed report is
spot-on in all respects. No need to reviewit. |
have been to Ponpano. |If this deal is approved, a
Reed report should be done again in two or |ess
years as a benchmark for progress. WII| Ponpano
still be racing?

| fully endorse the executive director's
recomendati ons, except for a small change.
No. 16, rent should not be allowed due to the
racetracks being a major part of casino operations,
not in two years as they propose in their petition.
No. 4, if not allowing rent at the two tracks is
enough to jeopardi ze the whol e nerger, then you
woul d assune the nerger is too | everaged to succeed

Wi th any econom ¢ downturn or surprise event.
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This is a huge task for the Comm ssion. This
will be a challenge for the Comm ssion to enforce.
Thank you very nuch for your tine.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you. Next is Nat U.
Hill, IV.

MR NAT HLL: | amNat HIll, IV. [I'ma
horseman and this testinony today is mne and m ne
alone. Is it just ne or is it kind of warmin
here? | didn't get the nmeno about being brief, so
here we go.

CHAI RVAN BORST: On the cl ock.

MR, NAT HI LL: How nuch have | got?

CHAI RVAN BORST: You got five m nutes.

MR. NAT HI LL: Hey, you know what? You don't
| ook at nme near the sane as your dad did. You kind
of smle.

(all laughing)

CHAI RVAN BORST: |'m gl ad.

MR. NAT HILL: Let ne start today by stating
t he obvious. No horsenen's group can afford to
publicly oppose the acquisition of Caesars by
El dorado. Horseman nmakes his living at the track
and any track has an absolute ability to refuse
entries. Over the years horsenen and horsenen's

groups have learned to go with the flow In no
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circunmstance wll they ever |ikely publicly oppose
a change i n ownership.

So why am | quite possibly the only person who
has been wlling fromthe junp to take a public
stance against this proposal? Because |'ve been
blessed in life and | don't nmake ny |iving racing
horses. If | did, | would be nore than broke.
Here's why |'m concerned about this sale or nerger
or whatever this proposal is.

Tom brui sed his way onto the board of
directors of Caesars. He insisted on the sale of
the conpany. He got the job done. Wo agreed to
buy Caesars? Eldorado in a deal that has been
descri bed as a guppy swall owi ng a whal e.

Way El dorado? | believe part of it is based
on several public clains that El dorado believes a
new partnership obtain up to $500 nmillion of
synergy to do this deal. Now, best | can figure
synergy is a buzzword used by folks in the big
busi ness world as code for cost cutting.

My early research showed that a gentl eman
named Tom Reeg -- | believe he's here today -- is
reported to have said to investors that his target
was to shave $500 million in costs fromthe

conbi ned conpanies. This is not an actual inquiry.
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This is Bl oonberg.

Tom with all due respect, | feel alittle bit
like when | was a kid ny dad used to | ook at ne and
he had a favorite saying, |'d be maki ng ny case and
he'd say, you know, son -- this is a respective
jurist, 24 years judge in Monroe County -- he'd
| ook at me and say, son, ny mnd is nade up, quit

confusing ne with the facts.

So that's sort of how !l feel today. [|I'm
heari ng good stuff. 1'd love to believe it. Love
to believe it. W'Il get to nore of that |ater.

Anot her main concern of mne is Eldorado's
past performance as a racetrack and even as casi no
operators, they're good at cutting expenses.

Mar keting, pronotion, the list is |long and painful.
Ponmpano |sle Casino and Raceway, 93 percent of the
casino's workers voted to go on strike, although
they reached a settl enent.

Per haps nost disturbing to ne personally is
the Florida lawsuit instituted by El dorado to kill
harness racing in Florida by replacing it with
jai alai. How could it be overstated that El dorado
Is using every |egal neans possible to kill harness
racing in Florida? Wat will their plans be for

| ndiana in years to cone? WII| they attenpt to
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kill horse racing either through this Comm ssion,
or far nore likely through the Indiana state
| egi sl ature?
So why are we all here today? Well, early on
when this sale was first proposed, | set out on a
mssion to do what little | could to kill this
deal. | was convinced horsenen woul d never stand
against it. The scuttle and the conventi onal
wi sdom was that you're not going to kill this deal,
t he best we can hope for is a bunch of favorable
conditions. | amforever indebted to ny friend
Brian El nore and the HBPA for their work with
El dorado to get this |list of prom ses they have
made. | wouldn't have thought this fromthe junp.
So where does your Horse Raci ng Comm ssion go
fromhere? | really want to thank you for making
it real clear to Eldorado fromthe junp how things
are in Indiana. In ny mnd the recent inprovenents
in the racetrack managenent in other states by
Joe Morris and El dorado have been the direct result
of your clearly-voiced concerns about their
proposed nerger with Caesar. You have nade it
crystal clear to Eldorado that Indiana is different
fromany other state. They know you're going to be

hard to deal wth.
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Now you're in a tough spot. The nost profound
portion of the executive director's report in ny
mnd is found in footnote nunber 4 on page 5. 1In
the current econom c environnent there is financial
risk both in approving and all ow ng a nerger where
either | becones a controlling product of Caesars
or in denying the petition and forcing the old
Caesars to nove forward with their current gam ng
and racing responsibilities. |f the Comm ssion
were to approve the nerger with stringent
conditions related to horse racing, the Indiana
horse racing industry would arguably be in a better
position with increased | everage noving forward
than if there was a denial of the nerger petition
and racing was to continue under the existing final
or der.

Bet ween the comm tnents al ready nade by
El dorado and the stiff conditions of approval
recomended in the executive director's report, a
very strong case can be made for approval based
upon the El dorado previous commtnents and the
staff recommendations is better than rejecting the
proposal and letting the chips fall where they may.

| trust this Comm ssion. | have al ways

trusted this Conmm ssion. Sonetinme in the previous

Page 59



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

century | appeared along with Ernie Gaskin,

Eddie Martin with the thoroughbred breed

devel opnent advisory commttee, Jeff from
Churchill Downs and perhaps a few others, and we
were allowed to testify in front of the Senate
finance commttee, chaired by a

previ ousl y-nenti oned affable veterinarian, a
chanpi on of the horse racing industry. He had
proposed | egislation that would dictate riverboat
em sson fees sent to the Indiana horse racing. At
that tinme Churchill Downs was receiving 40 percent

of the riverboat revenues.

It's been a while, but as |I recall, tracks
woul d get nothing under the bill while purses and
breed devel opnent would get it all. W took a

strong stand and we | ooked the senator in the eye
and said the Indiana Horse Raci ng Commi ssion's
better equi pped and nore famliar to do what's
right than the Indiana state legislation. And I
remenber the senate's ranking mnority nmenber

| ooking directly at ne as if to say, Nat, now you

see what we have to deal wth every day. | have to

add that the |egislation was eventually dropped by
t he aut hor.

So how does this at all affect you guys?
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Vell, let me close wwth this. 1've never talked
like this to the Comm ssion before and | probably
shoul dn't start now. You can't just put Eldorado
on nobl e seeker probation, then wal k away and
congratul ate yourself on a job well done. |If this
deal is approved, hopefully with Deena's |ist of
very rigid conditions, your hard work as a
Comm ssion has just begun. | repeat, | personally
trust the Indiana Horse Raci ng Comm ssi on.

Now l et me close with this: | would |ove
not hing nore than to be proven wong regardi ng our
current view of Eldorado. Nothing would make ne
happi er than to cone back here ten years from now
when |'m ei ghty-two, hopefully aboveground and
t hi nki ng sonmewhat clearly by then, and testify how
wong | was on July 13, 2020, how El dorado did not
cut corners at Indiana racetracks, how they did not
wor k behi nd our backs at the Indiana | egislature,
and what wonderful corporate citizens they have
becone in the state of Indiana. | would | ove that
opportunity.

Did | nmake it in five m nutes?

CHAI RVAN BORST: No, but you're fine.

MR, NAT H LL: Ckay. Thank you.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you. You're fine.
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Thank you.

MR, NAT HI LL: Questions?

CHAI RMVAN BORST: No, not yet.

MR, NAT HI LL: Ckay.

CHAl RVAN BORST: Ckay. Ernie Gaskin,
af orenment i oned.

MR. GASKIN. Thank you, Conmm ssi oner.
Erni e Gaskin, owner, trainer, breeder, forner
chai rman of the breed devel opnent comm ttee through
three different admnistrations. So thank you.
Been watching this closely.

|"mjust here mainly to thank you guys for
wherever we are today in this programthat we've
built. It's unbelievable. W nmade bold
predictions for the state of |ndiana, where we'd
be. A Dbillion in economcs a year? How about this
one? Three horse of the years. Do you know how
hard it is to breed a horse of the year? W've
bred three. Surrounding states have been in racing
for eighty years, haven't done it. W've got
three. Thanks to you guys. You nade this program
so people wanted to cone here. That's how we got
here. Thank you.

You've led the way from Churchill to El dorado.

Here we are. Perhaps this is a small explanation
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to El dorado of the scrutiny there involved. Enter
Joe Morris. | think he could be a Bill Polian, of
the Colts. | think he has the capability of
putting together a winning team He knows
everybody. He's been everywhere. He's a great
guy. He'll do it for us if Eldorado backs him

At this point, unlike Nat, I'mgoing to put ny
vote with the Carano famly. They didn't build
t hat busi ness not doing the right thing. | believe
at this point they'll do the right thing for racing
t hr ough Joe.

So together with that, | just want to say that
my confort in this transition lies with you, the
| ndi ana Horse Raci ng Conm ssion. Thank you.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you. W got to figure
out who Peyton Manning's going to be, though, now
that you got Bill Polian.

Next, Paul Martin.

MR MARTIN. M nane is Paul Martin. |
currently serve as president of the Quarter Horse
Raci ng Associ ation of Indiana. Just want to say
good afternoon to the Conm ssion, Madam Director
Pitman, Deputy Director Linknmeyer, Chairmn Borst,
and | egal staff. Thank you for allowing ne to be

heard today. My comments wll be brief, but | do
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have a few points.

Wth ne today is our executive director,

Di anne Bennett, and we are here today to express
our total support for Eldorado Resorts,

| ncorporated. | have to admt when we first heard
about potential new track ownershi p, we obviously
were full of skepticism However, that was fairly
short-lived when the horsenen's groups conpiled a
list of inportant itens pertaining to the race
prograns and nearly everything was actually
commtted to and guaranteed. In reality, even nore
than we asked for was put on the table and
commtted to by Eldorado. Wth that, | would al so
say with our grow ng programwe have a huge need
for another barn and nore stalls.

Most notable itemon that list fromthe QHRAI
was a 12 percent guarantee through 2033. That was
huge for us. Another was the racing capital escrow
fund of $20 million to $25 mllion to enhance our
prograns here. Additionally, Eldorado had enough
vision to go out and get an expert |ike senior vice
president of racing Joe Mrris, which will play a
huge role in the success of our partnership. There
are many nore but not enough tine for every detail,

but our skepticismhas now turned into optimsm
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In closing, QHRAI is confident that with this
partnership the sky is the only limt. 1In recent
times our tracks were tagged as the gold standard.
Wor ki ng together and in unity with the HBPA, | TOBA,
| SA, and with Eldorado as our partner, there is
little doubt that the gold standard can and w ||
becone the platinum standard. Thank you very nuch.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you.

Joe Put nam

(m crophone feedback)

CHAI RVAN BORST:  Sonewhere there's a
m cr ophone doi ng sonet hi ng.

MR. PUTNAM  Thought that was Paul up here.

CHAI RVAN BORST: | did too, but we can't bl ane
hi m because he's gone.

(all laughing)

MR. PUTNAM Good norning. Joe Putnam
presi dent of the | SA standardbred association,

1, 100- pl us nenbers that we represent. Just wanted
to say a few quick words. | believe we have a
great opportunity for us in our industry for all
the breeds. |'ma very active participant in
racing. | have a 40-horse stable, race |Indiana,
Chi 0, Kentucky, so do a lot of traveling, see a |ot

of things. Personal testanent is what | have
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w tnessed with Eldorado at Scioto. Joe Morris

| eading the racing operations over the past several
nonths with his dedication and attention they're
giving to the racing operations at Scioto. | |ike
what | see going on there. Lots of inprovenents,
and we're | ooking forward to working with them here
I n | ndi ana.

One of the big things in our industry -- |
know we' ve touched on it briefly -- but is the
stability of racing. The 12 percent for the |ong
term | think that's very inportant. Like,

Investing in racing -- | do all facets of it,
breedi ng, owning, training, driving -- it's a
long-termcommtnent. It takes, you know, |'m

t hi nki ng about three, four, five, six, seven years
out when |I'm breedi ng horses and thinking about the
future. So long-termstability, the long-term

12 percent comm tnent, very inportant things.

The added comm tnent from El dorado over the
next three years putting the mllion dollars up
each year to go to the purses, | think that's a
pretty good inpact there. You know, with this
COVID going on we've all took a pretty good hit, so
t hose kinds of things for support are very

I mportant to our industry.
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One other thing, if I may. | know it was
listed in the exhibits, but |I received a letter
fromthe Chio Harness Horse Associ ation president,
M. Steve Bateson, and I'd like to read his letter.
| think it's pretty inportant for everybody just to
hear firsthand how thi ngs have changed over there.

To the Honorabl e I ndi ana Horse Raci ng
Comm ssi on:

| would like to provide a different
perspective on racing in Chio at Eldorado. The
“New Sci ot o Downs" has opened their race neet with
great enthusiasmtowards racing. | would like to
site a few exanpl es.

They' ve addressed track issues prior to the
race neeting wth added materi al and addressed
grade issues with consolidation and consi deration
fromthe Coon Brothers. They've added personnel to
ensure proper track mai ntenance. The results have
been i npressive thus far into the race neet.

El dorado's Sci oto Downs property was the first
racetrack to open in Chio and the first
Standardbred track to open in North Anerica. They
made this commtnent with no assurances when the
casino would be permtted to open. Managenent went

above and beyond to get all the horses qualified to
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race.

El dorado's new team at Sci oto Downs, |ed by
Joe Morris, is tackling issues head on. They have
made the best of a difficult situation. It appears
the process for a new beginning with Sci oto Downs
has started.

This team has nmade a concerted effort to
reconnect with horse players. Scioto Downs has had
full racing cards with full fields since they've
opened. The horse players have responded by
wagering at a nmuch higher |evel than years past.

Based on what |'ve witnessed | have confidence
t hat El dorado's managenent recogni zes the val ue of
horse racing in Chio. | look forward to working
with this "New Sci oto Downs" nanagenent team and
seeing Scioto Downs restored to the glory it once
shar ed.

That was from Steve Bat eson, again, president
of the Ohio Harness Horsenen's Associ ati on.

One other thing I'd like to add just quickly
is if you so approve the final order, | think it's
very inportant to put in there that they nmaintain
ownership of both tracks. | think that will give
us the stability and the |l ong-term conmm t nent that

we' re | ooking for here today. Thank you.
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CHAI RVAN BORST:  Thank you.

Next the honorable State Representative
Bob Cherry. | give himan honorable. He's a
former Boil ernmaker too, so .

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: Not everybody could
get into Ball State, so .

(all laughing)

MR. CHERRY: [|'m Bob Cherry,
State Representative, District 53. M district

really is between the two tracks. |'mKkind of the
flyover. If you think of the Mdwest, we're the
flyover states, I'mthe flyover of if anyone wants

to go fromone track to the other, they have to go
t hrough ny district.

M. Chairman and nenbers of the Conm ssion, |
appl aud what you're trying to do and I trust, |ike
everyone said before, you are the key.

| "' m gl ad you nenti oned about your dad.

Senator Larry Borst worked with Ral ph WIfong many
years ago to get this thing started. Then we had
coupl e other State Senators and anot her
veterinarian, Bob Jackman, and then the Harvard

| awyer, Luke Kinley, they carried the torch
further. So we got a really good plan in our

state, and | appl aud that.
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We got many ot her |egislators supported horse
raci ng as we have today, and | appl aud the nerger
wWith the investnent in racing. | think that's
inportant. Bringing on Joe Mirris is an excell ent
thing, what | understand, and everybody's for it.
When we got a lot of these things done, we worked
with the tracks and the legislature, with the
horsenen, and the communities, and | appl aud the
I nvestnent in the |ocal communities, too, that
they're going to conti nue doing that.

| know we've tal ked about a lot of ifs, if
this, if this, if this was to happen what we'd do.
Again, | think lot of those things have taken pl ace
al ready in the proposal but, again, | think that
long termreeval uation of this maybe in the short
di stance | ooking at what we've done. | really
think this is in your hands and | think it's a good
proposal . Thank you.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Thank you.

Next is Bruce Murphy. Two nore to go.

MR. MURPHY: Bruce Mirphy, Indiana
Thor oughbred Omer's and Breeder's Associ ati on.
Good norni ng, Chairnman Borst, |HRC Conm ssioners,
Executive Director Pitman, |egal staff. M nane is

Bruce Murphy. Serve as the president of the board
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of directors of the Indiana Thoroughbred Omer's
and Breeder's Association. |TOBA has provided a
| etter of support for your Conm ssion materials
today, but we believe it is very inportant for us
to take the tinme during your deliberations to be
present and provi de additional coments.

The Carano famly and the executive | eadership
t eam of El dorado Resorts has spent a considerable
anmpunt of tinme in Indiana the past few nonths to
famliarize thenselves with the horsenen's groups,
the current racino operations, and the general
equi ne industry. |TOBA applauds their actions and
| ooks forward to continuing this working
relati onship. The commtnent by the Carano famly
to place a proven |eader |ike Joe Morris to oversee
racing at both tracks is paranount to the continued
success of the first-class horse racing industry we
have in our great state of Indiana.

Wth the decision made by the |Indiana Gam ng
Comm ssion |ast Friday, | TOBA would encourage the
Comm ssion to require Eldorado to divest thensel ves
of the three riverboats they own after the
transaction is conplete and keep the two raci nos as
one track, one group.

Agai n, thank you for your tinme today and your
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dedication to this very inportant agribusiness in
our state. If you have any questions, |'d be very
happy to answer best of ny ability.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Thank you, Bruce.

MR, MJRPHY. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Last but not |east, the
honorabl e State Representative Terri Austin. You
get to bring it hone.

M5. AUSTIN. Thank you, Chairman Borst. My
husband says | always do like to get the |ast word
in, sSo .

(all laughing)

M5. AUSTIN: And your dad was very kind to ne
as a new legislator, I will tell you.

So ny nane is Terri Austin and | serve |ndi ana
House District 36 and | will tell you the track is
right not in the mddle, off to the side, but

they're fully in ny district. 1've been in the
CGeneral Assenbly for eighteen years -- it does not
seem possible to hear nme say that -- and |'ve been

on the Public Policy Commttee since ny very first
day, which is where all the gamng bills go

t hrough. Al cohol too. Be glad you're not the

Al cohol Comm ssion, folks, let ne tell you.

| read with great interest the executive

Page 72



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

director's report last night and | appl aud the
guardrails that she has attenpted to put up to
ensure that racing and the investnent in racing

mai ntai ns under this transition of ownership. It's
been a very interesting perspective for ne to watch
fromwhat was Churchill Downs Tom Meeker,

transition to Centaur, transition to Caesars, and

now t o El dorado under the Carano famly. |'ve had
a chance to go fromlocal corporate -- | call
Kentucky local -- and then to, well, famly-owned

corporate under Centaur, |arge corporate under
Caesars, and now anticipating that shift under the
fam|y-owned structure. And each bring their own
set of rewards and chal |l enges.

The truth is the marriage of casino gam ng and
horse racing is a unique perspective and the truth
Is it's a huge inpact in ny conmmunity. |It's a huge
I npact, just like it is here. It allows us to draw
a W de variety of people and personalities that
m ght not normally cone to Anderson, quite
honestly. And it's also a hallmark for us, it's
one of the things that we can boast about when
we're marketing our community to future business
and i ndustry as we hopefully work through this

post - COVI D envi ronnent .
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| think the return on investnent of the equine
i ndustry and all the industry sectors is well
docunented. At |east according to the 2011 Purdue
study, it was nore than a mllion dollars in direct
and $500 million in indirect and induced, but that
was 2011. | applaud the fact that we're going to
update that study because | don't think you can
ever underestinmate the inpact that agribusiness has
on the state of Indiana.

| think the tax dollars, aside fromthe gam ng
tax dollars, the tax dollars associated with the
equi ne industry and across the industry sectors has
a huge inpact on the State budget, and the truth is
It's been ny direct experience and observation that
the staff that have been associated with both the
horse racing side and the casino side are
know edgeabl e, they are professional, and they have
the highest levels of integrity. Al of those |
t hi nk have hel ped and a lot of that's been under
your direct supervision, you know, all the things
that you' ve recommended, the things that you have
put in place to make sure that we do have prem er
racing facilities here.

So finally, | would just say Joe nentioned the

stability of racing, but | would also tal k about
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the stability of that marriage, the casino and the
raci ng industry together, and I wll tell you that
It inpacts a community's inmage in significant ways.
It inpacts our reputation. It inpacts how people
see and feel about Anderson, |ndiana, and

Shel byville. And the truth is any sudden
departures or novenents are not necessarily going
to be viewed in the best interest of not just the
institutions itself but of the municipalities and

the | ocal governnents that are invol ved.

Finally, | would just tell you in all
candi dness, | was not necessarily a fan in the
beginning. | was very reluctant, having |ived

through all those transitions, and | was fearful
about what it mght nean for ny conmmunity. | have
tal ked to enployees. | have talked to staff. |
have tal ked to community representatives. W all
feel like this is in the best interest of Anderson,
| ndi ana, and Hoosier Park. | can't speak for

Shel byville. But | think with the 22
recomendati ons that have been put forward, with
the actions of the Gam ng Conm ssion, this is going
to give us not only sonme stability but actually
it'"s going to serve as a | aunching pad so that both

Hoosi er Park and I ndiana G and can go to the next
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| evel .

That's going to be tough, quite honestly.
It's going to take sone hard work. [t's going to
take consistent commtnent on the part of the
Carano famly. And | trust that this Horse Racing
Comm ssi on, who always does its due diligence, wll
make sure that the right actions are taken, that
people are true to their word, and that their
comm tnents are held and they will uphold their end
of the bargain, because | guarantee you | wll be
one of the very first people at your neetings in
the future to say if | think things are going off
the rails.

| wll also tell you | appreciated the
interest in the community commtnents and the
comrunity inpact dollars, because everybody brings
their owmn style to that -- | understand it -- but |
read with great interest the mnutes of the
Decenber neeting and the reports that foll owed.
appreciate the fact that you're taking an interest
in that and | do appreciate the fact that the
Carano famly has agreed to increase that anount
because | hear it fromny conmunity organi zati ons.

So we'll be watching. And trust ne. This

community wll speak up. | guarantee you. Thank
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you for allowing ne to testify today, sir.

CHAI RVAN BORST:  Thank you.

Ckay. Just one | ast chance. Everybody's
testified who wanted to testify? Don't want to
| eave anybody out. That's why we had this here
because we didn't want to | eave anybody out.

Wiy don't we open it up to questions from
counsel, staff, Comm ssioners. Anybody have any
burni ng questions that they want to ask at this
point? 1'll ask Conm ssioner McCarty on the phone,
anything you' d like to ask to start wth?

COW SSI ONER McCARTY:  Not at this point.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Ckay.

COW SSI ONER McCARTY: WaAnt to express
appreciation for Representative Austin's coments.
And, yes, | confirmshe does always get the | ast
wor d.

(all laughing)

CHAl RMAN BORST:  You've dealt with her before
t hen.

COW SSI ONER McCARTY: No questions at this

CHAI RVAN BORST: Al right.
Comm ssi on Schenkel ?

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Sur e. | won't mss a
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chance. And not in any particular order, so as |
t hrow t hese out, whoever wants to answer them from
ERI, that's fine.

Let ne start by saying thank you for your kind
words that you have expressed today in terns of
your confidence in Indiana horse racing as a
product and as an endeavor that you're willing to
invest in. And | wll be the first to admt it's a
incredibly large investnent, so | know that you're
not taking it lightly. But let nme preface it by
saying -- and it's been eluded to here
already -- that I was one who was very skepti cal
and needed sone convincing and needed to hear sone
things. So that you understand ny questions a
little bit and where I'mcom ng from

| guess one of the first questions |I have
Is: As we read the Reed report and as |'d done
sone research | ooki ng back through things,
historically it appeared that when ERI cane into a
mar ket, basically a couple of things junped out at
me. One was the overall revenues tended to
decrease, which if that's the case that's not good
for the state of Indiana if that woul d happen here;
enpl oynent and head count in your facilities were

sonewhat reduced; and yet, at the very end -- and
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this is admrable for you and your

sharehol ders -- your profits went up and that
strikes ne as not a good. OQur job is to do things
in the public interest, not in your interest. So
my question to you is: Explain to ne or talk to ne
alittle bit about why that's a good busi ness nodel
or why we should enbrace this in Indiana.

MR. REEG Again, it's Tom Reeg, CEO  The
casino business in this country is a nature
busi ness. There's effectively casinos that soneone
can visit in every major netropolitan area that
you' ve got in the country that can drive to a
property. So growh typically is GDP-type growth
What the casino sector has in terns of an operating
style is they' Il try and subsidize, right, so
they'll give away sonething for free to thinking
that it creates a visit.

Very sinply, our viewis a |lot of those
subsi di es are not necessary and the custonmer wl|
come without that inducenent. And so what happens
Is as we renove those subsidies, the total revenue
goes down. But that revenue's not really revenue,
it's sonething |'mgiving you that you're givVving
back to ne.

The real way to drive revenue is to invest in
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your facilities, to continue to add to them

You' ve seen that happen here in the addition of
table ganes. You're going to see that happen in
the future as we add the $60 m | lion table gane
expansion. That's how you drive real revenue
growt h, by investing capital and getting return,
not by giving away a hanburger or a buffet. So
that's really our operating phil osophy.

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: Then let nme foll ow up
with you nentioned you have established, you're
willing to establish this $25 mllion escrow
account, but you also -- | believe it was you or
maybe it was one of the other gentlenen --
nmenti oned the $60 million inprovenents effort. |Is
that in addition to?

MR. REEG That is in addition to.

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: That's not mixed in
with that $25 mllion?

MR REEG No. The $25 million over 10 years
renewable is racing specific, wll be invested into
the racing side. The $60 mllion in expansion
capital is to increase the footprint of this casino
and Hoosi er Park.

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: So it's generic across

the board of the properties?
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MR REEG That's right.

COMM SSI ONER SCHENKEL: Ckay. | just wanted
to make sure | understood that. Thank you. |
think that's all I've got right now. Those were
t he two.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Conm ssi oner Pill ow?

COW SSI ONER PI LLOWN | don't have any.

CHAl RMAN BORST: While you're there, | guess
it has been brought up before about the savings
that you'll have with this nmerger, $500 million or
what ever the nunber is. |Is there any nore you can
say on that w thout giving away trade secrets?

MR REEG What | would say is it's really a
function of difference in operating philosophy.
Caesars built up a very large centrali zed
organi zati on based in Las Vegas that is kind of a
command and control systemthat operates the entire
conpany. As | said in ny prepared remarks, we
enpower the local leaders. Qur viewis in Indiana
we naeke our noney here, we make it at Hoosier Park,
we make it in our casinos. The people that are
maki ng the deci sions on an operating basis within
the framework that we set are the people that are
dealing with the custoners every day. So on the

cost side, alnost all of those cost savings in the
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$500 mllion are in that corporate group in
Las Vegas.

In addition, on the Caesars side, which is
different than prior acquisitions, because we bring
Caesars Rewards into the existing El dorado system
$100 million of that $500 mllion was actually
revenue synergy, it's not cost cutting. It's the
12 mllion people in our systemcomng into the
50 mllion Caesars Rewards. You've seen that in
these two properties here. Despite the road
construction in the area, bringing that into the
Caesars program they out-perforned the rest of the
state froma revenue perspective. So that's a big
pi ece of our synergies as well.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Then ducktailing on the
conditions we're in now, which | feel so sorry for
you guys -- the country has just been rocked by all
the COVID stuff and all -- sonebody nentioned that
you t hought maybe things were com ng back better
t han you thought so far.

MR. REEG  Yes.

CHAl RMAN BORST: And | guess what I'mgoing to
say is: Do you think then we can finish the rest
of the neets, as long as nothing el se happens and

we don't get any nore state mandates that shut down
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and all that, so everything should, the rest of the
seasons for both tracks should go as nornmal as can
be?

MR. REEG W are certainly hopeful that's the
case. Oobviously that's a function of the public
heal t h situation.

W had to submt nunbers to you and ot her
jurisdictions frankly in the mddle of the crisis
when everything was shut down, and we put forth
nunbers that were in front of you that thankfully
turned out to be extraordinarily conservative. The
custoners have cone back really pretty quickly.
Revenues are up. Casino revenue here is actually
up at all five Indiana properties. So that's been
heartening to us, and nowit's a matter of, A does
the public health situation remain stable enough
that you don't retrench, which in Indiana, knock on
wood, doesn't seemto be the case to this point,

and then it's how do you keep reopening and

bringing things back that are still pulled back at
this point.

CHAI RMAN BORST: | hope we don't have to do
that. | hope nobody has to do that.

MR REEG | hope so too.

CHAl RMAN BORST: Any questions?
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COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: M. Chairnman, while
M. Reeg's there, couple other questions. Nunber
one, thank you for stating your conmtnent to us
and everybody here for the record today that the
tracks are on the table for divestiture because |'m
one of the people who've been on this Conm ssion
goi ng back to the Centaur bankruptcy days and then
t he one breed, one track when they purchased this
facility out of bankruptcy, so forth. So we've
seen lots of ups and downs, and so that's obviously
very inportant and we appreciate your pledge.

The one thing | would say that you offered
that I"'mnot interested inis the offer to go to
the legislature. And wth all due respect to the
| egi slators that are here, sonetines the
| egi slature giveth and they can al so taketh away.
|"mnot in favor of going to the |egislature and
| egislating the 12 percent. Qite frankly, the
| egi sl ature acted a couple of years ago to put a
process in place that arrives at the correct
percentage, and ny preference would be to let that
process work its way and not put 12 percent
statutorily in. W can have that discussion with
nore length at sone point, but | feel very strongly

about that.
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MR REEG (Okay. W look to you. W want to
get to --

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: | appreciate that.
just wanted to make sure that | state that.

MR REEG W certainly don't want to --

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: Good. W appreciate
that very much. Thank you, M. Reeg.

CHAl RVAN BORST: He doesn't beat around the
bush.

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  No.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Any questions fromstaff?
Robi n?

MR. BABBITT: | just have a couple questions.

So | understand that you put M. Mrris in
pl ace as the senior vice president of racing and
he'll be in that position for some undefined tine,
but |'m assunm ng that the commtnent is an ongoi ng
commtnment. |'ve heard only good things about
M. Mrris, but that this position wll be a
per manent position --

MR. REEG That's correct.

MR, BABBITT: -- that will be enbedded in the
sort of philosophy and culture of El dorado going
f orwar d.

MR REEG That's right. W'd like M. Mrris
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to stay as long as he'd liKke.

MR, BABBITT: Well, | hope it's decades and
decades and | hope M. Carano is there for himto
report to for decades and decades. But there wll
be a direct report between the senior vice
president of racing and chief operating officer?

MR. REEG That's correct, sir.

MR. BABBI TT: The other thing, | think, that
woul d be hel pful, just because the Ponpano issue

has been addressed and | think

Representative Austin said it really well. There's
a marriage of gamng and racing in Indiana. It was
instituted at the sane tine. It canme up through

the legislature. The legislature did all of these
things that supported the horse racing agribusiness
end of it. So | think it's hel pful for soneone
fromEl dorado sinply to make cl ear that that
situation in Ponpano is that situation, it's a
uni que situation, and that you woul d never perceive
taki ng any actions to decouple racing and gamng in
the state of Indiana.

MR REEG Yes. | think it's inportant that
|"'mthe guy to address that and tell you that we
have absolutely no intention of pursuing that in

| ndi ana.
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MR. BABBI TT: Thank you for that.

Then there was a discussion -- | actually was
able to watch the Gam ng Comm ssion neeting -- a
di scussi on about diversity and your commtnent to
diversity. | do think there's serious concern at
this Conm ssion to increase gender and raci al
di versity in any way possible and I think it would
make sense for you to sort of repeat those points
to the Comm ssi on.

MR. REEG  Absolutely. So Caesars has
exi sting prograns around gender and mnority
di versity. And given the events over the last two
to three nonths, |'ve started talking to Jan Jones
at Caesars. Jan Jones headed those efforts at
Caesars. She's the forner mayor of Las Vegas, head
of corporate social responsibility area.

As part of the transaction, there are five
Caesars board nenbers joining six of our Eldorado
board nmenbers to formthe new el even- nenber
El dorado board. W asked prior to closing if
Caesars woul d put Jan Jones on their board so that
we coul d take her as one of our board nenbers, and
|"m pl eased to report that that actually took pl ace
and Jan will be joining our board. W'II| be

formng a corporate social responsibility conmttee
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of the board that Jan will chair.

| have given her direction in the mdst of
recent activity to pull forward the gender and
mnority diversity prograns that Caesars had been
devel oping that are quite well devel oped, but we
want to get there quicker. You know, we pride
oursel ves on being a conpany that finds
i nefficiencies where we can drive value. | think
what we're tal king about here is an inefficiency
where the entire casino sector seens to fish in the
over 50 white mal e pool for nmanagenent talent, and
we think, A it's the right thing to do, but we
think, B, it's an opportunity for us to devel op new
talent for the future.

CHAI RMAN BORST: (Good. Thank you.

MR. BABBITT: The |ast question, M. Chair,
wi th your perm ssion, would be that: During the
Gam ng Commi ssion's hearing there was sone
di scussi on about not cutting enploynent |evels at
the Indiana casinos and | think there was a general
comm tnment nmade to that effect and | would think it
woul d be appropriate to ask you if you woul d make
the same commtnent to racing. | would nention
that racing is a highly | abor-intensive endeavor

both froma public safety standpoint and from an
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integrity standpoint, both which are critical to
t he operation of Indiana horse racing. So if you
woul d be prepared to make a simlar commtnent to
the Racing Commi ssion, | think that would be
appropri at e.

MR REEG We're happy to nake a simlar
commtnment relative to racing that we did to
gam ng.

MR. BABBITT: | have no further questions.
Thank you, M. Chair.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Do you have any fi nal
statenent that you'd |like to make?

MR. REEG  Just thank you again for your
consi deration and thank you for bringing us all
toget her in person.

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: Thank you.

CHAI RMAN BORST: Ckay. Comm ssioners have no
further questions, then at this point I'mgoing to
cl ose the record.

The next step will be each Conmm ssion nenber
has a chance to nmake a statenent or a concern again
iIf they'd like to. Not a notion yet. W'IlIl go
t hrough each of us. |If you don't have anything to
say, that's fine. If you' ve got sonething you want

to say. Comm ssioner MCarty, do you got anything
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that you'd like to . . .?

COW SSI ONER McCARTY: Yes. In closing, |
woul d just |ike to enphasize how seriously we take
these commtnents and obligations and will be very
assertive about making sure they are fulfilled. W
appreci ate both the responsiveness and relation to
(audio interruption), and we just want everybody to
understand we are thoroughly very serious about
maki ng sure they're conplied with. That's it.

CHAI RMAN BORST:  Thank you.

Comm ssi oner Pill ow?

COW SSIONER PILLON MWy mic isn't worKking.

CHAl RMAN BORST: It isn't?

COW SSI ONER PI LLOWN | woul d just kind of
like to echo Bill's statenent that we wll be
| ooking at this pretty thoroughly. 1've been on
this Comm ssion now for about five or six years and
|'ve seen a |lot of changes and two or three
owner shi ps, and stability is what | think that
we're all looking for to nmake sure that horse
racing in Indiana stays at the gol den standard now
li ke you said it is. | just wanted to commend
El dorado on coming in and stepping up to the plate.

| would |ike to ask one quick question. How

far along are you on your divestiture process, if
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that's not corporate secrets?

MR. REEG M. Comm ssioner, | assunme your
gquestion is relative to Indiana divestitures?

COW SSI ONER PI LLOW  Yes.

MR. REEG  Because we didn't want to be
presunpt uous of outcones, we really haven't done
significant work. In our financing, which we did
about a little under a nonth ago at this point, we
had to disclose the expectation that we woul d have
di vestitures in Indiana. So we've had quite a few
incomng calls, but we have not yet started the
pr ocess.

COW SSI ONER PI LLON  Okay. Thank you.

That's all.
CHAI RMVAN BORST: Comm ssi on Schenkel ?
COWM SSI ONER SCHENKEL : | think before that we

have no experience with you folks up to this point,
so we're relying on your word and on your prom ses.
|"mvery encouraged -- as | said earlier, | was
skeptical -- but |'ve been encouraged as tine has
gone on and you' ve repeatedly prom sed to nmaintain
first-class facilities and to pronote and do all
the things that we're charged with to nake sure
that horse racing in Indiana is done in the best

public interest. So we |ook forward to those words

Page 91



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

becom ng deeds and actions. Thank you.

CHAI RVAN BORST: Well, | guess to wap it up,
want to thank everybody for all their cooperation,
El dorado especially. |It's been tough tines these
| ast few nonths and |i ke you say things haven't
qui te gone the pace that we thought they woul d, but
neither has the rest of the country. | appreciate
you just going right off the bat on the Reed report
and addressing that. That's a good sign of things
that you recognize that and we have to reflect on
that report. Wen we see sone of the things that
have happened since then with Joe Mrris. Joe,
you' ve got a lot riding on your shoul ders, buddy.
| don't know. You may not want the job after all
this. That and the things that you' ve done, the
commtnents to all of the executive director's

t hi ngs and sone ot her things through sone letters

that aren't in her nmeno. There'll probably be
20-sonme conditions that we'll have on there and
you've, | think, pretty nmuch said okay to all of

them You've agreed to have the sane nmanagenent
style that we've gotten to know in all these years
here in Indiana, and that's inportant. You're
going to keep the sane managenent team That's

I nportant too.
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So | think wth all these concerns addressed,
| disagree with sone of the horsenen that don't put
it all on us because this is ateam | think in
keeping El dorado's feet to the fire, it's going to
t ake horsenen, too, because you guys are on the
ground. In this state horsenen are not afraid to
speak up, as you may have heard, and that's great.
So you all know how to get ahold of us if things
aren't going right. So it's going to take a team
bet ween the horsenen, the Conmm ssion Staff,
Comm ssi oners, and obviously the track nmanagenent
to make this work, but the good news is we've got
stability, as George said, for nost of this, the
peopl e on the ground that nake things happen, and
it's just ownership is going to change and so
think that's a good sign too.

Anyway, we appreciate all your forthrightness
today especially to cone in and talk to us and tell
us how you feel. You've got it figured out, as |
said earlier, thisis a famly and we'd like to
keep it that way.

Wth that, if there's no other discussion, |
guess we're ready for a notion. W can have a
notion to pass the permts or we can have a notion

with conditions or we can have a notion to deny.
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So if sonmebody would want to make a notion, we're
ready, we're at that point. Conmm ssioner Schenkel ?

COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: | woul d nove to
approve the El dorado transfer of petition subject
to the follow ng conditions and/or covenants:

1. Any proposed conditions contained in the
staff report submtted by the Comm ssion's
executive director;

2. Any conditions that reflect any
commtnents made by El dorado since the transfer
petition was filed;

3. Any other necessary and appropriate
condi tions, additions, and/or revisions nmade by our
counsel that are supported by the comments of the
Comm ssion during this hearing and our
del i berations; and

4. Any technical or legal additions that our
counsel deens appropri ate.

As a part of the notion, | request that our
counsel pronptly provide a proposed final order for
the Conm ssion's review, revision, and execution
t hat woul d subsequently be provided to El dorado and
woul d becone effective upon El dorado' s acceptance
of any conditions or covenants set forth in this

final order or as otherw se provided for by
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appl i cabl e I ndi ana | aw.

COW SSI ONER PILLON 'l second that notion.

CHAl RVAN BORST: We've got a second,
Comm ssi oner Pill ow.

Everybody understand the notion with the
conditions? Any further discussion?

MR. BABBITT: M. Chair, | think to be
consistent, wouldn't a roll-call vote be

appropriate?

CHAI RVAN BORST: We'll get to that. |I'm
learning. |'magetting trained right. | was going
to go to the roll call. | think we're ready for

the roll-call vote then
MR, JACKSON. Thank you, M. Chairnman.
Rol |l -call vote. Chairman Borst.
CHAI RVAN BORST:  Aye.
MR. JACKSON: Vi ce-chai rman Schenkel .
MR SCHENKEL: Aye.
MR, JACKSON:. Comm ssioner MCarty.
COW SSI ONER McCARTY:  Aye.
MR JACKSON: And Conmi ssioner Pillow
COWM SSI ONER PI LLOW  Aye eye.
MR, JACKSON:. Thank you.
CHAI RMAN BORST: It was unani nously four to
not hi ng.
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Again, got to thank Indiana Grand for
arranging this. This was great, perfect, couldn't
have been any better, and we certainly appreciate
it.

We've got to thank El dorado organi zati on again
for answering all the questions. | guess if you're
in all these states, | don't know how you keep them
all straight, but | guess you figure that out.

Hor senen associ ati ons, thank you. Thank you
for neeting with themand comng up with ideas
because you're on the ground, you know the stuff
that's the nost inportant.

Qovi ously Deena and Noah and Jessica and Megan
and Tom and Dal e, everybody on the staff, thank you
because this is a tedious process, and we've tried
to do this right.

Robi n Babbitt, unbelievable guy. He's
forgotten nore than all of us in this room conbi ned
coul d ever know probably, and we appreciate it.

You are an unbelievabl e asset.
Also finally the Comm ssioners for reading all

this. There was a lot to read. And those of you

know nme, well, ny twenty-eight years on the
Cty-County Council | read everything and | drove
people nuts. | like that and | |like all the

Page 96



© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N D N D DNMNMNDN P P PP PR R R R
o A W N P O © 00 N O O b W N B+, O

i nformation that we' ve had.
So wth that, welcone to |Indiana, Eldorado.
(col l ective thank you)
(appl ause)
CHAI RMAN BORST: Do we have any ol d busi ness?
Any new busi ness?

Seei ng none, we are adjourned. Thank you.

(The neeting of the Indiana Horse Racing

Comm ssion adjourned at 1:10 p.m)
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STATE OF | NDI ANA
COUNTY OF NARI ON

I, Mchele K @stafson, CRR-RPR, a
Notary Public in and for said county and state, do
hereby certify that the foregoing matter was taken
down i n stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to
typewiting under nmy direction; and that the
typewitten transcript is a true record of the
| ndi ana Hor se Raci ng Comm ssi on neeti ng;

| do further certify that I am a disinterested
person in this; that | amnot a relative of the
attorneys for any of the parties.

I N WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny

hand and affixed ny notarial seal this 27th day of

Aty N Hofor

Michele K. Gustafson
NOTARY PUBLIC SEAL

STATE OF INDIANA

July, 2020.

Commission No. NPO02346
My Commission Expires Aug. 31, 2025

My Comm ssi on expires:
August 31, 2025

Job No. 154227
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      1          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  We'll call this



      2     meeting of the Indiana Horse Racing Commission to



      3     order, July 13, 2020.  We welcome all of you here.



      4     This is certainly weird times.  The last meeting



      5     was virtual and this one we're all masked people.



      6     So we appreciate you being here.



      7          I see that we have a quorum.  On the phone is



      8     Bill McCarty, commissioner.  Commissioner McCarty



      9     is on the phone, so we have four members here.  We



     10     just have to thank Indiana Grand because they've



     11     had so much on their plate in the last week, the



     12     derby and plus all this other stuff, and for them



     13     to make the accommodations for us, we just can't



     14     thank you enough.  Because we tried to get into the



     15     State Museum, as you know, but they weren't going



     16     to let us let the public in.  We tried to get



     17     government buildings, State Government, well,



     18     they're not open.  So Deena scrambled, and



     19     Indiana Grand was so gracious to let us be here and



     20     we certainly thank you.  So that's why we're here



     21     anyway.



     22          There's going to be a sign-up sheet.  Is the



     23     sign-up sheet in the back?



     24          MR. BABBITT:  The sign-up sheet is in the back



     25     on the bar.
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      1          CHAIRMAN BORST:  There's no beverages, so



      2     sorry.  You can go to the bar and sign up if you



      3     want to speak, and then you will be sworn in when



      4     the appropriate time comes.



      5          At this time I'd like to swear in our court



      6     reporter, Michele Gustafson.  Raise your right



      7     hand.



      8          (At this time the oath was administered to the



      9     court reporter by Chairman Borst.)



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     11          Okay.  So we'll have the approval of the



     12     minutes or the memorandum of May 28, 2020.



     13          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Second.



     14          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Been moved?  Do I have a



     15     motion first?



     16          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  I think George moved.



     17          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  So moved.



     18          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Second.



     19          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Any questions?



     20          All those in favor say "aye."



     21          THE COMMISSION:  "Aye."



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Do we have to do the roll



     23     call?



     24          MR. JACKSON:  Yes, sir.  I'm sorry, yes.



     25     Because Commissioner McCarty's on the phone, we'll
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      1     do a roll-call vote.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  We'll do a roll-call



      3     vote.



      4          MR. JACKSON:  Chairman Borst.



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Aye.



      6          MR. JACKSON:  Vice-chairman Schenkel.



      7          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.



      8          MR. JACKSON:  Commissioner Pillow.



      9          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.



     10          MR. JACKSON:  And Commissioner McCarty.



     11          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Aye.



     12          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  We'll get this



     14     down yet.



     15          Next on the agenda is consideration of the



     16     settlement agreement between the Commission Staff



     17     and Gabriel Saez.  Noah, are you going to handle



     18     that one?



     19          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



     20          Commissioners, you have in your packet the



     21     amended settlement agreement that was fully



     22     executed in July 2020 between Commission Staff and



     23     jockey Gabriel Saez.  Mr. Saez rode in the fourth



     24     race at Indiana Grand on June 17, 2020.  During the



     25     fourth race an incident occurred where three
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      1     jockeys were unseated from their mounts.  After



      2     reviewing the video of the race post-incident, the



      3     stewards suspended Mr. Saez for 30 days for



      4     careless riding, citing a violation of three



      5     separate rules.  Mr. Saez timely filed an appeal of



      6     the ruling.



      7          After settlement discussions Staff and



      8     Mr. Saez reached the agreement that you have before



      9     you.  Mr. Saez agreed to dismiss his appeal and



     10     serve the entirety of the 30-day suspension.  In



     11     return, the ruling against Mr. Saez was amended to



     12     state that he was considered eligible to ride



     13     stakes races during the suspension period, provided



     14     he agreed to add one day to his suspension for



     15     every day that he rode in a stakes race.



     16          At this time I would respectfully request the



     17     Commission's approval of the settlement agreement.



     18          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Have any motions?  Questions?



     19          Move acceptance of the settlement agreement?



     20          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Moved.



     21          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Second.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Moved by



     23     Commissioner Schenkel, seconded by



     24     Commissioner McCarty.  Further questions?



     25          Roll-call vote.
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      1          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.  Chairman Borst.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Aye.



      3          MR. JACKSON:  Vice-chairman Schenkel.



      4          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.



      5          MR. JACKSON:  Commissioner Pillow.



      6          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Aye.



      7          MR. JACKSON:  And Commissioner McCarty.



      8          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Aye.



      9          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  The vote is four to nothing.



     11          Next on the agenda is consideration of the



     12     following proposed emergency rule change on



     13     pick (n) pools.  Noah, you're going to take that



     14     one too?



     15          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you, yes.



     16          Commissioners, you have before you a single



     17     rule change to the Rule 71 IAC 9-4-7.  At the



     18     May 28 meeting you were asked to vote on



     19     Indiana Grand's request for promotional takeout



     20     reduction on pick five wagering.  The Commission



     21     unanimously voted to approve the change.  However,



     22     when Indiana Grand attempted to institute the



     23     change following the Commission approval, there



     24     were some issues with the rule before you now.  The



     25     proposed language has been tested by Indiana Grand
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      1     and we believe that all issues regarding the



      2     approved wager from May 28 will be resolved with



      3     this proposed change to the rules.



      4          At this time Commission Staff respectfully



      5     requests your approval of the proposed rule change,



      6     and the change will be made under the Commission's



      7     emergency adoption procedure, which means that it



      8     will go into effect as soon as it is filed.  I just



      9     also wanted to mention that the rule was put in



     10     front of stakeholders and we did not receive any



     11     comments on it.



     12          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  Any questions,



     13     Commission members?



     14          Do we have a motion?



     15          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  So moved.



     16          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Second.



     17          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Moved by Commissioner Pillow,



     18     second by Commissioner Schenkel.  Any further



     19     discussion?



     20          Roll-call vote.



     21          MR. JACKSON:  Chairman Borst.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Aye.



     23          MR. JACKSON:  Vice-chairman Schenkel.



     24          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.



     25          MR. JACKSON:  Commissioner Pillow.
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      1          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Aye.



      2          MR. JACKSON:  And Commissioner McCarty.



      3          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Aye.



      4          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Passes four to nothing.



      6          No. 3 on the agenda is just the review of



      7     Commission rulings from May 11 to July 6.  It's not



      8     anything we have to take a vote on, so that's just



      9     for our edification.



     10          No. 4, hearing, deliberation and issuance of



     11     decision relating to petition of Eldorado Resorts,



     12     Inc., notice of hearing and pre-hearing order on



     13     petition of Eldorado Resorts, Inc., for approval to



     14     transfer permits and licenses.



     15          The purpose of this hearing is for ERI, the



     16     petitioner, an opportunity to make the presentation



     17     relating to their transfer of petition to the



     18     Indiana Horse Racing Commission, an opportunity for



     19     the executive director to offer any testimony that



     20     she wishes to provide in order to supplement the



     21     record, the Commission an opportunity to ask



     22     questions of any party, representatives, and



     23     witnesses who may testify at the hearing, and an



     24     opportunity for non-party organizations and persons



     25     to provide testimony in support or adverse to the
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      1     petition.  The matter will be heard and will



      2     continue with appropriate recess until completed.



      3     The record will be closed at the conclusion of the



      4     hearing and the Commission will then deliberate and



      5     decide whether the petition will be approved,



      6     disapproved, or approved with conditions.  Does not



      7     comprehend discussion during the deliberation of



      8     the petitioner or other interested parties.



      9          I now defer to our Commission counsel to give



     10     us some housekeeping matters.



     11          MR. BABBITT:  Thank you, Chair Borst.



     12          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Robin Babbitt.



     13          MR. BABBITT:  I appreciate that.  I'd like to



     14     cover a few things before the presentation is



     15     actually started.  The first is that pursuant to



     16     the pre-hearing order, the Commission submitted an



     17     exhibit list which was captioned Exhibits A through



     18     W with particular subsections.



     19          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Is your microphone on?



     20          MR. BABBITT:  Is this not working?



     21          MS. PITMAN:  There you go.



     22          MR. BABBITT:  I haven't been singing karaoke



     23     enough lately to figure out how to do this.



     24          So we have all of the exhibits designated.



     25     The exhibits came in without objection.  I would
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      1     note that we had a catchall category, category W,



      2     that comprehended that if there were any letters or



      3     submissions provided in response to the public



      4     version of the staff report that we would make



      5     those a part of the record as well.  Those



      6     materials in category W include Mr. Reeg's letter



      7     to the Executive Director dated July 9, 2020.



      8     There was a submission made by Nat Hill in



      9     opposition which was a total of 13 pages.  In



     10     addition, there was a letter from Mayor Broderick,



     11     the City of Anderson, to the Commission in support



     12     of the petition dated July 9, 2020.  There was an



     13     additional letter from the ISA, again in support of



     14     the staff recommendations in the transfer petition,



     15     that was dated July 9.  There was a letter from



     16     ITOBA in support of the transfer of petition that



     17     came in, I believe, on the 10th of July.



     18     Thereafter, we received a letter in support of the



     19     transfer of petition from Dean Willie Reed, the



     20     chair of Purdue's College of Veterinary Medicine,



     21     dated July 10, 2020.  Lastly, at 11:57 last night,



     22     so it was actually dated July 12, I got a letter in



     23     support of the petition from Steve Bateson, the



     24     president of the Ohio Harness Horsemen's



     25     Association.
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      1          Those materials have all been circulated to



      2     the Commission and we would request that the chair



      3     make Commission Exhibits A through W inclusive a



      4     part of the record of these proceedings.



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I grant the request to make



      6     all Exhibits A through W from the Commission's



      7     exhibit list part of the record.



      8          MR. BABBITT:  Then the next thing that we



      9     would like to point out is that we filed a request



     10     for official notice pursuant to



     11     Indiana Code 4-21.5-3-26(f).  This was filed and



     12     dated timely on July 8, 2020.  The basic purpose of



     13     this is simply to make clear -- and I don't think



     14     that anyone will contest it for purposes of the



     15     proceeding -- that Eldorado, Caesars, and formerly



     16     Centaur were all subject to the statute rules and



     17     administrative regulations that are cited in the



     18     request for official notice.



     19          The Commission, because we have a long history



     20     that has sort of brought us to this point today,



     21     the Commission is entitled to take official notice



     22     of other proceedings before the Commission.  So in



     23     2 we are asking that the Commission take official



     24     notice of its final order in re: Centaur's



     25     acquisition of Indiana Grand dated January 7, 2013,
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      1     the Commission's final order in re: the approval of



      2     the initial distribution agreement dated



      3     December 10, 2013, and the Commission's final order



      4     in re: Caesars acquisition of Hoosier Park and



      5     Indiana Grand with related permits and licenses



      6     dated July 10, 2018.



      7          So we would ask at this time, Mr. Chair, that



      8     you grant our request to take official notice of



      9     all of the things referenced in the request for



     10     official notice which I have just described.



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I grant that counsel's



     12     request to take official notice of all the



     13     documents and laws referenced in the request for



     14     official notice filed on July 8 and direct that



     15     those be made a part of the record.



     16          MR. BABBITT:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.



     17          Then lastly I'll get some last housekeeping



     18     details covered and then we'll turn this over to



     19     the chair to turn it over to the petitioners.



     20          The first thing that I would note is that for



     21     the benefit of the Commission and the court



     22     reporter, it's very important that each person who



     23     addresses the Commission identify themselves.



     24     Given the fact that we're all wearing face masks,



     25     that's even more important than it has been in the
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      1     past.  So please identify who you are when you



      2     approach the podium to address the Commission.



      3     That also helps the court reporter as she's going



      4     through and putting the record of the proceedings



      5     together.



      6          There is a public comment section, and that



      7     public comment section based upon the notice that



      8     was issued will be limited to those people that are



      9     here, because I don't think the technology would



     10     support any other position and, quite frankly, the



     11     notice made clear that if you were going to provide



     12     public input you needed to come in person.  So if



     13     you're here and you would like to submit any



     14     testimony during the public input section, please



     15     sign the sign-up sheet in the back and at the



     16     appropriate time we'll bring that up to the front.



     17          Now, any witness who will testify during this



     18     particular proceeding must be sworn by the chairman



     19     so that obviously the petitioner knows who they're



     20     going to have address the Commission, so those



     21     people will stand to be sworn en masse by the



     22     chair.  Those of you who are going to speak during



     23     the public comment section, please stand and be



     24     sworn as well because it's important for everyone



     25     to be sworn before they give testimony.
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      1          The Commission will assume that all witnesses



      2     have been sworn at the beginning of the



      3     presentation of evidence unless instructed



      4     otherwise by the person or that party's



      5     representative.  So it's your responsibility to



      6     make sure you're sworn and if you come up and



      7     address the Commission we're going to assume that



      8     you were.



      9          With the permission of the chair, the



     10     Commissioners or the Commission's counsel may ask



     11     questions of any witness at any time or after the



     12     presentation is complete.  So there may be a



     13     situation where a Commissioner has a question that



     14     they want to address to you.  They obviously with



     15     the chair's permission will be able to do so.  If



     16     not, that doesn't mean that they won't ask it



     17     because it could come up at the end of the



     18     presentation.



     19          That's pretty much it for housekeeping



     20     matters.  Unless the Commission or the petitioners



     21     have anything else they'd like to address, I'm



     22     ready to turn it back over to you, Mr. Chair, so



     23     that you can preside over the hearing.



     24          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Seeing none, just to give you



     25     an idea of how the hearing's going to go.  There'll
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      1     be an opening statement, then there'll be a



      2     presentation by ERI, the opening statement by ERI,



      3     there'll be testimony of the Commission Staff and



      4     public testimony, then any rebuttal or final



      5     statement, and then we'll close the record, and



      6     then we'll have a deliberation and decision on it.



      7     So that way you know how things will go.  So I'm



      8     not going to forget anybody.



      9          All those who intend to testify, if you would



     10     stand and raise your right hand, we'll just do it



     11     all en masse.  If somebody comes later and decides,



     12     we'll swear them in.



     13          (At this time the oath was administered to any



     14     witnesses.)



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  All right.  Okay.  So we're



     16     here obviously this is a momentous occasion and



     17     horse racing in Indiana has taken a long time to



     18     get to this point.  Some people don't know the



     19     whole story, but there's a certain State Senator



     20     who spent over twenty years to get this through the



     21     legislature and had to change the



     22     Indiana Constitution because horse racing was



     23     deemed to be a lottery and so lottery had to come



     24     in and then horse racing.  It started about 1969



     25     and finally 1989, I guess, is when we had the
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      1     legislation and racing began about five years



      2     later.  I lived through a lot of that because that



      3     State Senator happened to have been my dad.



      4          So I'm really honored to be here at this



      5     juncture of horse racing.  As we all know, we've



      6     got a family here between the horsemen, between the



      7     tracks, between the Commission Staff,



      8     Commissioners, and I think ERI understands that and



      9     I hope they do because we want to continue that.



     10     We've got a good thing going in Indiana and we do



     11     not want it to go downhill.  We want it to only get



     12     better.  Hopefully that's where we're going to go.



     13          So with that, I don't know who's going to give



     14     the opening statement for ERI, but if you'd like to



     15     come up and, again, state your name so the



     16     transcriber will be able to get it all right.



     17          MR. REEG:  Morning.  I'm Tom Reeg, chief



     18     executive officer of Eldorado.  Is this working?



     19          MR. BABBITT:  It is.



     20          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I think so.  Maybe a little



     21     higher.  There you go.



     22          MR. REEG:  Tom Reeg, chief executive officer



     23     of Eldorado.  Chairman Borst, Commissioners,



     24     Executive Director Pitman, Noah, Robin, thank you



     25     for all the work that everybody's put in to get to
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      1     this point today.  I know this has been much longer



      2     process than any of us were anticipating.  We



      3     didn't expect to be wearing masks.  I personally



      4     appreciate you allowing us to come meet you here in



      5     person.  It's important to us to start these



      6     relationships on a face-to-face basis.



      7          I also want to thank all the various



      8     horsemen's groups that spent a great deal of time



      9     meeting with us, local community leaders.  It's a



     10     great thing to see how much pride the entire area



     11     takes in these businesses and it shows.  It showed



     12     as we've gotten into this starting a little over a



     13     year ago.



     14          You know, I'd say as I was walking the floor



     15     this morning, it's a beautiful property, continuing



     16     to get better.  The addition of tables on the



     17     casino side.  We know that none of this is here



     18     without the racing community.  This comes with the



     19     responsibility to be a steward of that business,



     20     and we understand that Centaur set a very high bar



     21     to be a leader in the space in these tracks.  You



     22     see it.  These tracks are as good as any in the



     23     country, and we understand it's a solemn



     24     responsibility to take control of them.



     25          I will tell you I read Executive Director
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      1     Pitman's report.  I read the Reed report.  I'll



      2     take that on right out of the box, and I'm not



      3     going to stand in front of you and offer excuses.



      4     What I'll tell you is what I read in the Reed



      5     report was not acceptable to me.  I know it's not



      6     acceptable to this Commission.  You've seen us make



      7     changes immediately upon the issuance of it,



      8     bringing in Joe Morris, who is our director of



      9     racing, is going to be the man on the ground here



     10     with you.  But I also understand that you can't fix



     11     that in a couple of months by hiring one guy.  It's



     12     got to be a commitment from the company.



     13          Going back to Executive Director Pitman's



     14     report, we've seen the list of conditions in that



     15     report.  We understand that this Commission, if



     16     they give us the opportunity to own these tracks,



     17     will need to hold our feet to the fire, and we are



     18     ready and willing to accept all of the conditions



     19     in that report.



     20          As I start to go through presentation, what



     21     I'd say is I'm presuming that everybody saw or is



     22     aware of what went on Friday at the Indiana Gaming



     23     Commission, so our remarks today are focused on



     24     racing.  We have the broader deal slides in the



     25     back of the presentation.  We're happy to go
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      1     through and cover any ground that you'd like to



      2     cover, but we're focused on the impact on racing in



      3     this transaction.



      4          So if we could put the presentation up on



      5     video and start on slide 1.



      6          MS. PITMAN:  Do you have somebody that's going



      7     to be doing that?



      8          MR. REEG:  I have it.



      9          CHAIRMAN BORST:  How about that?  There you



     10     go.



     11          MR. REEG:  Thank you.



     12          And I'd also tell you Joe is going to be your



     13     man on the ground, but I'm not coming in here and



     14     leaving again.  You're going to see me.  This is



     15     extremely important to our company.  These



     16     properties are going to be significant growth



     17     drivers for our company and we're making serious



     18     commitments here, and I'm going to see to it



     19     personally that we live up to the commitments that



     20     we're making, should we get the opportunity from



     21     this Commission to do so.



     22          As I said, we've appointed a new corporate



     23     leadership team dedicated to racing, brought in



     24     Joe Morris.  We empower local leadership, we don't



     25     do things on centralized basis generally, so it's
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      1     the people that are on the ground every day that



      2     you deal with here that are going to be empowered



      3     to make decisions.



      4          We have made commitments across all aspects of



      5     the business to reinvest in racing, to improve the



      6     racing product, to focus on equine safety, we made



      7     commitments to local communities, and we're going



      8     to implement marketing improvements that we'll go



      9     through in detail as we get through the



     10     presentation.  I should tell you that Joe Morris



     11     will follow me and that Anthony Carano, our chief



     12     operating officer, will follow Joe.



     13          We have a board member, Mike Pegram, who



     14     happens to be a former Indiana Derby winner with



     15     Lookin At Lucky.  As we started to respond to what



     16     we saw in the Reed report, Mike introduced us to



     17     Joe Morris, who is well known within the community



     18     and has really hit the ground running for us.  He's



     19     been a breath of fresh air.  Over forty years in



     20     the business in many different roles, track



     21     management, horsemen associations, has been an



     22     owner on the standardbred and thoroughbred side,



     23     and involvement in a boarding facility as well.



     24          Our structure is the following:  Joe will



     25     report directly to chief operating officer
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      1     Anthony Carano, who you will hear from later, many



      2     of you in the room have met, and Anthony reports to



      3     me, so Rick and Eric go up through Joe to Anthony



      4     to me.  As I said, you have senior focus on this



      5     business from as high up as it gets in our company,



      6     up to and including the board.



      7          As all of you are aware, on Friday the



      8     Gaming Commission approved us with the condition



      9     that we sell three assets post-transaction.  Should



     10     you provide us the opportunity to own the tracks,



     11     I'm willing to commit to you that the tracks will



     12     not be utilized to settle those conditions.  It



     13     would be Evansville, Southern Indiana, and Hammond.



     14          You know, we are excited to get moving.  We



     15     intend to invest $60 million into these properties



     16     on the casino side.  It'll expand the table games



     17     operation.  We're committing to extend the



     18     12 percent share to horsemen for a significant



     19     period of time.  We will hit the ground running in



     20     terms of that expansion, which will bring forward



     21     that revenue as quick as we possibly can.



     22          We come out of this transaction, to briefly



     23     touch on the broader transaction, with $4 billion



     24     of liquidity as a combined company, so we can make



     25     the investments that are necessary in these tracks.
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      1     I contrast that with Caesars, as large as they are,



      2     in the model that they submitted to all of the



      3     regulators that put those transactions on pause



      4     because they were preserving liquidity.  So this



      5     transaction allows us to move that forward and get



      6     moving and get the revenue flowing as quickly as



      7     possible.  As you know, we've also committed to



      8     $25 million minimum every ten years into the tracks



      9     themselves.  We're excited to put that money to



     10     work as well.



     11          The last issue that I would touch on before



     12     turning to Joe that we've had some conversation



     13     about throughout the process is as part of the



     14     transaction there is a call arrangement for the



     15     real estate underlying the tracks.  That is not in



     16     front of the Commission today, as you know.  What I



     17     would tell you is the $4 billion of liquidity that



     18     we have post-transaction and now with the three



     19     casino sales on the gaming side should bring us



     20     over $5 billion liquidity makes it unlikely that we



     21     would exercise.  In terms of our present



     22     circumstance, we have no intention of exercising,



     23     but we can't speak to what our partner will



     24     ultimately do at the call.



     25          But we do understand that nothing will happen
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      1     there without we and Veche (sp.) coming forward to



      2     this Commission and convincing you that that's in



      3     the best interest of the state of Indiana and



      4     particularly the racing industry in Indiana.  So I



      5     wanted to speak to that directly even though that's



      6     not directly in front of you today.  And we are



      7     absolutely comfortable with the language relative



      8     to that particular piece that's in



      9     Executive Director Pitman's report to the



     10     Commission.



     11          So with that, I will turn it over to



     12     Joe Morris to get into detail on the racing side



     13     and I'll be back to deliver conclusion.



     14          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     15          Welcome.



     16          MR. MORRIS:  Thank you.  Joe Morris, senior



     17     vice president of racing for Eldorado.  Mr. Chair,



     18     Commissioners, horsemen in the room, good morning.



     19     Thank you for having this meeting today.  I'd like



     20     to acknowledge Doug Reed first.  I've read that



     21     report.  He did a darn good job with that.  Lot of



     22     work.  And I've known Doug for many, many years,



     23     about his age actually with forty years in the



     24     industry myself as he does.



     25          I was on the University of Arizona's advisory
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      1     board for a number of years and Doug put me there



      2     and used to work with the students.  He would place



      3     interns at the different tracks that I've worked at



      4     over the years and hired many people out of that



      5     program.  We've got two in the state out of that



      6     program.  We've got Eric Halstrom and Dan Fick, two



      7     of the better racing minds I've ever worked with,



      8     right from that school.



      9          When I look at the Reed report, I come up with



     10     a couple of takeaways.  One, he points out on two



     11     or three occasions in it each property that



     12     Eldorado had did have a unique set of circumstances



     13     at one moment.  They weren't all the same.  They



     14     were different in different areas and different



     15     things happened with them.  The second part that



     16     he, probably his biggest point he makes, is



     17     Eldorado and the tracks lacked expertise in their



     18     management.  There's no arguing that.  That is the



     19     case.



     20          When they bought those tracks from MTR, they



     21     had a lady named Rosemary Williams.  She was a good



     22     track operator.  She operated the three groups.



     23     She retired probably year and a half, two years



     24     after that happened and didn't get replaced with



     25     the expertise that needed to be there.  The
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      1     managers did lack authority and they were mired in



      2     a bureaucracy.  Just took too long sometimes to get



      3     a decision.



      4          When I was talking with Anthony about taking



      5     this position, I had the same three concerns.



      6     Anthony, I've been doing this for a long time.  I



      7     need to have the authority to run the racing



      8     program; I need to be able to put the teams



      9     together; and if I need an answer, I need to be



     10     able to get up the chain quick, get the answer.



     11     It's a fluid situation running racetracks and you



     12     got to keep on the move with them.



     13          That chart there enables that.  That fixes



     14     that.  I would say that racing is dynamic to



     15     itself.  The racing people need to be making the



     16     racing decisions.  We fix that in this case, and



     17     this structure actually manages itself.  So this is



     18     part of what we're doing to make this workable.



     19          We can go to the next slide.



     20          MR. REEG:  There's a clicker in front of you,



     21     Joe.



     22          MR. MORRIS:  All right.  My technical



     23     expertise is far below my racetrack.



     24          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Join the club.



     25          MR. MORRIS:  Streamlined structure for
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      1     business decisions on racing matters.  As I said, I



      2     have the authority to work with the teams and make



      3     those decisions.  Team being the important part.



      4     No one person can run a racetrack.  There's too



      5     many moving parts.  We develop a team.  I look for



      6     the brightest people I can find and we put them



      7     into those position.  Good news here, Rick Moore,



      8     Eric Halstrom, Emily Gaskin.  They're working here.



      9     We promote from within, we work from within, and we



     10     collaborate on running these racetracks.



     11          Communication's key to any business.  You need



     12     to be talking with your partner.  In this case when



     13     I'm making a decision, what are the horsemen going



     14     to think about it, what are the gamblers going to



     15     think about it, how are our employees going to work



     16     and help execute it.  Those are the seats I try to



     17     put myself in.  You can only do that if you're on



     18     the property.  You can't run a racetrack remote.



     19     You got to be there day to day, talking with your



     20     horsemen, talking with your customers, owners,



     21     drivers, and your employees to make this work.



     22          Operational plans, every track I've ever been



     23     at, you do a yearly plan.  You submit it to the



     24     Commission as part of your licensing generally in



     25     other states, but you include your operations, you
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      1     include your marketing plan, you include your



      2     stakes schedule, your purse levels, your capital



      3     plans, and you do that by talking with your



      4     partners.  You talk with the horsemen on stakes, on



      5     purses.  You get with your marketing team and come



      6     up with a plan.  First thing you do is you review



      7     the year before's, what'd we do right, what'd we do



      8     wrong, rely on that, build it into the new plan



      9     going forward.  Take that, you present it to your



     10     horsemen, to your Commission Staff.  You get input



     11     from your gamblers and you put those forward.



     12          We work with horsemen, and you'll hear that



     13     today.  I mean, I talk to my horsemen on a daily



     14     basis.  I am a horseman.  I racehorses.  I raise



     15     horses.  I've got 13 of them in my barn in



     16     Lexington, Kentucky.  It's what I've done my whole



     17     life.



     18          Reed kind of takes our past into consideration



     19     and he talks about that.  Here's our present.  This



     20     is our first experiment with this new structure,



     21     Scioto Downs.  Became the first harness track in



     22     North America to reopen.  We had a chance to do



     23     that.  I called Anthony.  I said, Anthony, I think



     24     we can be the first track in North America open.



     25     He said, I want to be the first track in
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      1     North America open.  I don't know when the casino.



      2     Not that he didn't care, but I don't care when the



      3     casino opens.  Make that the first track open.  We



      4     were able to do that.



      5          We changed our wagering format.  It was stale



      6     and it wasn't what the gamblers wanted.  Brought in



      7     some better commentary in talking to the gamblers,



      8     a guy named Gabe Prewitt there.  We changed the way



      9     we placed our races into the program.  We worked



     10     with our horsemen to make this happen.  We had



     11     twelve straight days where we exceeded a million



     12     dollars in handle.  We've done it three times more



     13     since.  We had one over $2 million.  We only had



     14     three days as the only track in North America.  We



     15     kept that run going.  To date, we're still



     16     averaging $860,000.



     17          Again, this is a track that over the last



     18     five, six years has averaged somewhere around



     19     $215,000.  So the results have been really good.



     20     We've bet $31 million in 36 days, a year ago on 90



     21     days we bet $19.5 million.  So we've made a



     22     difference there.  We got excitement back into that



     23     place.



     24          Part of it is the way we manage our post



     25     times.  We've been helping this area a little bit.
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      1     You know, the old days all you had was your



      2     customers at the track so all you had to watch was



      3     your customers at the track.  Then you get into



      4     when we started simulcast and it's pretty much the



      5     other tracks when they were going.



      6          The biggest part of everybody's handle today



      7     is the computer, and you've got to give them a



      8     chance to get into your races.  You've got to have



      9     liquidity for them to come into the races.  We've



     10     reached out to them and they're embracing Scioto.



     11     Similar to Hoosier's product, it's full fields and



     12     it's a lot of races.



     13          This year in 2020 we've run 550 races.  Same



     14     period a year ago we had run 487 races.  Give me a



     15     competitive race, I'm going to run the thing.  It's



     16     not going to sit.  We're in the racing business.



     17          Working with our horsemen on qualifiers, that



     18     gives you the form for the horse, the gamblers need



     19     to see it.  We fill in all of you ours so they can



     20     go back and look at the horse's form.  A year ago



     21     for the whole 90 days we ran 138 qualifiers.  To



     22     date, we've run 258 qualifiers.  We're there with



     23     the horsemen.  We're working with them.  We're



     24     getting that product out in front of the betting



     25     public.
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      1          I went to a meeting there early on with the



      2     horsemen and some of our key people, and they



      3     looked at me and said, What are you going to do to



      4     make this better, Joe?  I said, What do you mean



      5     what am I going to do?  It's what are we going to



      6     do.  This is a team effort.  We're going to do



      7     what's right always.  We're going to do what's



      8     right by our horsemen.  We're going to do what's



      9     right by our gamblers and our employees.  That's



     10     where it starts at a track.  You do that



     11     consistently and you get that product out there,



     12     the financial results will follow.  That's happened



     13     for years and years the way we've done that, so we



     14     embrace that.



     15          The other important thing there is our track



     16     surface and our maintenance.  I've added track



     17     employees.  There wasn't enough there.  I brought



     18     in the Coons Brothers, Greg and Danny.  I wouldn't



     19     be at a harness track without them.  They are great



     20     consultants.  They have a worldwide reputation.



     21     They're part of our program there at Scioto, and



     22     we've got morale at record levels with employees



     23     and with horsemen.



     24          Growth of Indiana racing, this is the highest



     25     platform of any state I've ever come in on.  When
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      1     the horsemen, the Commission, and legislators put



      2     this program together, you really got it right.  I



      3     mean, we're coming in at a high level here.  One



      4     thing we need, I believe, is some more big days.



      5     We've got Indiana Derby and Oaks.  Last Wednesday,



      6     I mean, big day, record handle.  We need two or



      7     three more big days at Hoosier and we need to



      8     capitalize at Indiana Breeders Crown at Hoosier.



      9     We're in conversations now with Breeders Crown and



     10     there's an opportunity maybe for Hoosier to be on a



     11     three-year cycle, Meadowlands, Woodbine, and



     12     Hoosier, and we'd like to see that happen.



     13          On the quarter horse side of things, they're



     14     having a record meet here this year also and we're



     15     hoping to work with them and the AQHA and get



     16     quarter horse Challenge Championship here and that



     17     could be their crown race.



     18          Best-in-class racing, that's what you always



     19     strive for.  If you're in business, you want to be



     20     best in class.  Hoosier racetrack should become the



     21     number-one harness track in America.  They have the



     22     facilities, they have the horses, driver quality,



     23     horsemen.  We just need to get the handle up some



     24     and we'll do that.



     25          Indiana Grand, great product.  The Monday
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      1     through Thursday schedule is good.  Indiana Grand



      2     is the big signal on those days, so you're not



      3     competing against some of the giants on a Friday or



      4     Saturday.  You get to showcase it where you're the



      5     big signal.



      6          We need to continue to advertise and



      7     promotional spend.  We've looked at what they've



      8     done in the past.  We've looked at their schedules.



      9     They spend a decent amount of money on their



     10     promotions.  We will add to that as a part of what



     11     we do and we'll particularly add to it when we're



     12     promoting our big race days.



     13          Cross promotion, utilization, not only between



     14     the two tracks, between the casinos.  12 percent of



     15     our purse money comes from the casinos.  We need to



     16     be tying into that.  As a part of if this deal goes



     17     through, there'll be six other tracks that we can



     18     put together and leverage with each other and it'll



     19     make the Indiana tracks stronger as a part of that.



     20          Anthony's committed to another 10 percent in



     21     advertising and promotional spend for 2020.  At



     22     Hoosier we'll use that on Breeders Cup.



     23          The other huge advantage is Caesars Rewards.



     24     There's not another racetrack group that'll have



     25     Caesars Rewards.  He with the biggest list at the
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      1     end of the day is going to win and this is a



      2     60 million person list that we will be able to mine



      3     into and use to the benefit of Hoosier and Grand.



      4          Equine safety, human safety on the track,



      5     highest of priorities.  I worked with the NTRA.  I



      6     was there when they developed the NTRA safety



      7     alliance.  Every track I ran in California,



      8     thoroughbred track, was a part of that.  Big



      9     believer in it.  We will stay with that group.



     10     We'll work with the safety stewards and the



     11     Commission on other areas.



     12          One of the things I've always done is graph



     13     the information.  You're doing moisture readings.



     14     You're doing compaction readings.  You're doing



     15     compaction on your turf.  Graph that and it'll tell



     16     you a story over time as conditions change.



     17          We will have our industry experts -- as I said



     18     earlier, the Coons Brothers are already on -- and



     19     I've always used science at racetracks.  You need



     20     to be testing the viscosity of your gravel.  You



     21     need to know the level of silt and the level of



     22     clay.  Your root structure on a turf course, you



     23     need science to help determine that.  I've always



     24     used Mick Peterson from Kentucky, but we will



     25     continue to use that information.  Science has to
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      1     be a part of what we're doing on our track



      2     surfaces.



      3          The reinvestment in racing, we understand that



      4     we are starting at a high, high level here in



      5     Indiana and we need to keep adding to that.  We'll



      6     commit to the long-term agreement on purses at



      7     12 percent.  We'll commit to support future



      8     legislative efforts to make it 12 percent.  I



      9     believe it reads 10 to 12 now and we'll work with



     10     the horsemen and the first opportunity we get we'll



     11     go to the legislation and we'll try to make it



     12     instead of 10 to 12 percent we'll make it



     13     12 percent.



     14          We'll continue to run at minimum the same



     15     number of race days.  As I said, I like to race.



     16     There could be a chance for more possibly in the



     17     future.



     18          OTB facilities, first class.  We'll maintain



     19     our racing leadership positions.  As I said, it



     20     takes a team.  I always try to find the brightest



     21     to be on that team.



     22          More in reinvesting of racing, there's a new



     23     capital fund that will come if this deal goes



     24     through.  It's $25 million to be invested over a



     25     10-year period.  We've already agreed to the
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      1     10-year Caesars capital program.  Now we're



      2     agreeing to this.  First shot, first ideas on that,



      3     we need some more stalls here.  We don't really



      4     control our horse population destination.  We need



      5     another number of stalls to help make sure we've



      6     got the number of horses we need to put the product



      7     on and we need more dorm rooms for our grooms, and



      8     we will work to do both of those.



      9          At Hoosier we need to come up with an owner's



     10     area.  We don't do enough to distinguish,



     11     differentiate our owners versus our regular fans.



     12     So we need to come up with an area that's a VIP



     13     area for them.  We have enough horses in the state.



     14     We don't have enough owners to own, which means



     15     trainers end up owning too many of the horses, so



     16     we need to do owner improvement.



     17          A lot of states I've been in, too, you spend



     18     all your time arguing about track surface or a barn



     19     area that's not up to par or equipment.  We don't



     20     have that challenge here.  So our conversations are



     21     going to be how do we get more Indiana breds on the



     22     ground, thoroughbred, harness, and quarter horse.



     23     Great conversation.  Everybody can collaborate to



     24     that.  How do we get more owners, another great



     25     conversation.  Come up with some ideas on how to
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      1     attract more owners into our business.



      2          Then we're going to add a million a year to



      3     purses '20 through '22 as a jump-start on the



      4     impact of our tables.  That will go into the



      5     purses.  We'll work with the horsemen, see what



      6     levels and what conditions they want to put that



      7     into.



      8          Racing is very bright here.  We look forward



      9     to participating in it.  There's nothing to fix.  I



     10     think we can polish it a little bit, but there's



     11     really nothing to fix.  It's a heck of a problem.



     12          I will hand it back over to Anthony Carano.



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     14          MR. CARANO:  Thank you, Joe.



     15          Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission,



     16     Anthony Carano, president and chief operating



     17     officer of Eldorado Resorts.  It's an honor and a



     18     privilege to be in front of you today.  I want to



     19     thank Executive Director Pitman, Noah, Robin for



     20     all the incredible work you guys have put into



     21     this.  It's been a real team effort and they've



     22     done an excellent job --



     23          As Tom said, we are very excited about the



     24     future and the expansions of these two beautiful



     25     properties.  We're going to move very quickly to
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      1     expand the properties, and I'll go through a couple



      2     of pictures.  I'm sure you've seen them already,



      3     and we're happy to come in front of you again and



      4     update you on progress as we get through this.



      5          As you may know, the current company in



      6     Caesars has paused these projects due to COVID, but



      7     we're here today to commit to you that we will move



      8     forward day one with your blessing on the



      9     expansion.  The investment into these facilities



     10     will result in increased visitation, exposure to



     11     racing, and revenue opportunities for the racing



     12     industry.  So very exciting times and a very bright



     13     future for these two properties here in Indiana.



     14          As we move forward to the next pages, this is



     15     Harrah's Hoosier Park.  So we'll be expanding right



     16     off the front of Hoosier Park, more room for



     17     tables, slots, and some non-gaming amenities.  Then



     18     at this property here we'll be adding about 35 more



     19     tables, a live poker room, more slot machines, and,



     20     again, some non-gaming amenities that help draw



     21     more crowds, more people come out and see the



     22     beautiful tracks and the great racing product you



     23     have here.



     24          To move to the next and talk about our



     25     commitment to racing, I've got to start by thanking
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      1     the presidents and the directors of the racing



      2     associations here in Indiana.  They've spent a



      3     tremendous amount of time with myself and my team



      4     really getting to know us, getting to know our



      5     company, and they've been fantastic to deal with.



      6     I'm happy to report today that we've got very



      7     strong relations.  It's a beginning of a



      8     relationship.  As I tell them all the time, our



      9     words only mean so much.  We've got to prove to



     10     them that we're here and we're going to be great



     11     partners, but we're excited to do so.



     12          We've worked with them to come up with what we



     13     believe a very strong plan to keep these tracks as



     14     the gold standard in the country.  You guys have



     15     done an incredible job here in Indiana, and we just



     16     can't wait to make them even better, as Joe and Tom



     17     have said before.



     18          We're committing to fulfilling the remaining



     19     years of the financial commitment to the Centaur



     20     Equine Specialty Hospital in Shelbyville.  That's a



     21     very important project to us, and we're also going



     22     to rebrand that as Caesars Hospital, further



     23     showing our commitment to the industry and the



     24     health and safety throughout the industry.



     25          We're going to work with and help fund with
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      1     industry partners an update to the Horse Racing



      2     Economic Impact Study.  We're going to continue to



      3     support the Indiana Horse Racing Hall of Fame.  We



      4     know how important the legacy of this board is, so



      5     we will commit to continuing that and continuing to



      6     support the Empire of Hope race horse aftercare



      7     initiatives, another very important initiative that



      8     we've had a lot of discussions about.



      9          When we talk about our commitment to local



     10     communities, over the past year we've had the



     11     distinct pleasure to meet with Mayor DeBaun,



     12     Mayor Broderick, a number of other politicians,



     13     local legislators, and also incredible charitable



     14     organizations here in Shelbyville and Anderson and



     15     their incredible leaders.  We wanted to hear



     16     firsthand what we can do to make a real impact in



     17     these communities.



     18          When we talk about, you know, commitment to



     19     local communities, my family and our company's had



     20     a long, very long history of partnering with our



     21     local communities in making them better places not



     22     only for our team members but for everybody in the



     23     communities.  Indiana will be no different.



     24          We're going to continue to invest in the



     25     Indiana communities where we have the privilege of
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      1     operating.  We know and take great pride in the



      2     fact that Indiana racing just doesn't impact



      3     Shelbyville and Anderson, it impacts every county



      4     in this great state.  So we have a lot of areas



      5     that we can positively impact.



      6          We will also ensure that ourselves and our



      7     teams are substantial with treasure and time in the



      8     local communities.  Here it says we encourage but



      9     we really mandate our local property management to



     10     serve on local non-profit and civic boards.



     11          We will also continue what Caesars has with



     12     HERO volunteer service program.  We really want to



     13     empower our team members here at these properties



     14     and all across the country to get out and volunteer



     15     in their communities and support those interests



     16     that they have.



     17          We're going to be sure to exceed prior years



     18     community and involvement in participation.  To



     19     that end, we're going to commit an additional



     20     $250,000 in cash, and it's not to be confused with



     21     marketing dollars or anything else.  This is cash



     22     that we're contributing this year on top of all the



     23     other commitments that we've made post-merger for



     24     money to be spent here on charitable and local



     25     community organizations in Indiana.
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      1          The state will also have the continued support



      2     of the Caesars Foundation.  It's a great foundation



      3     that we think we can make even better.  I will



      4     personally be sitting on the board of that



      5     foundation to make sure that we're impacting the



      6     local communities where we do business.



      7          With that, in closing I'd just like to say a



      8     couple things.  This job is just not another job



      9     for me, the company's just not another company, and



     10     this transaction's just not another transaction.



     11     This is a company that my grandfather built over



     12     forty-eight years ago from nothing and it's always



     13     been a family business and will continue to be a



     14     family business, much like some of your businesses



     15     and much like the family farms and the businesses



     16     that are so integral to the racing in this great



     17     state.



     18          As Tom said, did we make some mistakes when we



     19     first got into racing a few years ago?  Absolutely.



     20     What we've done since is put together a great team



     21     led by Joe Morris and his team, great general



     22     managers both at the property and racing here in



     23     Indiana.  We're dedicating a tremendous amount of



     24     money and resources to racing.  We have great



     25     partners in the horsemen.  We just have a very,
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      1     very bright future, especially if you give us the



      2     distinct honor of owning these two tracks.  We take



      3     with great pride that we will only make these



      4     tracks better and make Indiana the gold standard of



      5     racing in this country.



      6          So with that, I'd like to turn it back over to



      7     Tom, make his closing remarks.



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



      9          MR. REEG:  In terms of current status,



     10     shareholders of both companies have approved the



     11     transaction.  The FTC as well.  Every regulatory



     12     body that we need for approval has approved save



     13     for this Commission that we're in front of today



     14     and New Jersey who we'll be in front of Wednesday.



     15     So this transaction should be in position,



     16     presuming successful appeals to those remaining



     17     Commissions by next week.



     18          All of the cash to close the merger is already



     19     in escrow and ready to go.  As I've said, the



     20     merged company will have $3.3 billion of day one



     21     liquidity, $4 billion by the end of the third



     22     quarter, and should have $5 billion by this point



     23     next year.  So 4 to 5X the next competitor in the



     24     space in terms of resources to bring to bear.



     25          Leadership team and new board of directors are
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      1     confirmed.  Post-opening results everywhere have



      2     been encouraging, much stronger than we anticipated



      3     in the post-COVID world.



      4          We've done a lot of talking here, so I want to



      5     turn it back for questions I'm sure the Commission



      6     has.  I want to thank you for seeing us here today



      7     in person, considering our application, and as I



      8     said at the start, we know that racing is why you



      9     have the casino opportunities that you have in



     10     these two properties and our pledge to you is to



     11     drive that racing business to another level.  As



     12     all three of us have said, you're already at a very



     13     high level.  We'll work to take it even higher.



     14          So with that, I'll turn it back to you,



     15     Mr. Chairman.



     16          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  Why don't we hold



     17     questions for a little bit.  Why don't we go ahead



     18     and hear any testimony from staff and public and



     19     then we can start asking questions.  That way we



     20     get everybody's thoughts out.



     21          So, Deena, do you have any more thoughts to go



     22     with your report?



     23          MS. PITMAN:  I really don't, Chairman.  I



     24     think everything that I have to say is basically



     25     included in my report and I'm going to stand by
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      1     that.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  Thank you.



      3          Do we have the sign-up sheet?  Has anybody



      4     retrieved that?  Let's go ahead and go to public



      5     testimony, and then that way after that then we'll



      6     start asking questions.  Sometimes the more you



      7     hear, the less questions you have sometimes.  You



      8     guys have cleared up a lot of things already, so we



      9     appreciate that.



     10          Brian Elmore gets to be first.  We know who



     11     got here first.



     12          (wiping with sanitizer wipe)



     13          (all laughing)



     14          CHAIRMAN BORST:  There you go.



     15          MR. ELMORE:  See, we're required to do this by



     16     Executive Director Pitman.



     17          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Do the microphone too.



     18          MR. ELMORE:  Don't want to get shocked.



     19          Brian Elmore, executive director of the



     20     Indiana Horsemen's Benevolent & Protective



     21     Association.  It's good to be with you and see you



     22     in person today.  At our last meeting when it was



     23     virtual, I had a difficult time getting online.  I



     24     knew I was going to be late for the meeting, but



     25     thank goodness there was one other person that was
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      1     having a difficult time getting on.  But I'm not



      2     going to mention any names.



      3          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Some of us never got on.



      4     That's how bad we are.



      5          (all laughing)



      6          MR. ELMORE:  In addition to the petition in



      7     front of you and the significant amount of time it



      8     takes to properly consider such a matter for



      9     decision, we've had to deal with the current



     10     pandemic.  On behalf of the horsemen and myself, we



     11     want to extend our gratitude to the Commissioners,



     12     the Governor's office, but especially to commend



     13     Executive Director Pitman, Deputy Director Tom



     14     Linkmeyer, their staff, Noah, Wendy, Jessica,



     15     Megan.  They all did a fantastic job and we



     16     appreciate everything that was done to get us



     17     reopened for training and subsequently racing.  We



     18     thank you very much.



     19          Our journey with Eldorado started many months



     20     ago with much skepticism about our new potential



     21     partner.  I stress the phrase partnership, because



     22     that's truly what we have.  We've made great



     23     strides in Indiana over the past several decades.



     24     We the horsemen firmly believe that if this



     25     petition is approved, the current standard of two
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      1     racetracks under the same ownership is imperative.



      2     I want to make this crystal clear to everybody in



      3     the room.  The horsemen's associations with the



      4     owner of the racinos is most beneficial to all, and



      5     I'm just going to quickly give you a few reasons



      6     why.



      7          Number one, race marketing across the larger



      8     geographic area rather than two different owners



      9     competing with one another and the horsemen end up



     10     getting pitted against each other.  Cross promoting



     11     all breeds that race in Indiana to a wider audience



     12     on a consistent basis via media, electronic



     13     messaging, media buys, and each track's racing



     14     analysis and handicapping shows promoting the other



     15     facility's race program not just locally but also



     16     to the 500 locations approved sites to send our



     17     signal through and to the millions of homes on TVG.



     18     We're more effective legislatively when we're



     19     cooperating and working together towards the same



     20     goals.



     21          Let's go back now some seven or eight months



     22     ago when we were first introduced to the Eldorado



     23     executive staff.  We met Mr. Gary Carano,



     24     Mr. Anthony Carano, Mr. Tom Reeg, and board of



     25     director member and Hoosier native Mike Pegram.  It
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      1     was kind of a difficult meeting because we asked a



      2     lot of difficult questions.  We didn't lob them any



      3     softballs.  We threw fast balls, few curves, and



      4     they answered our questions in what we believe were



      5     honest, whether it was good, bad, or ugly.



      6          As time progressed and more meetings were



      7     held, Eldorado asked us our vision for horse racing



      8     in Indiana, where do we want it to go.  Eldorado



      9     volunteered, we put pen to paper, and list those



     10     things the horsemen would like to see as conditions



     11     as part of the final order.  Adam and Jim started



     12     meeting with us and soon we had drafted numerous



     13     items that were not only approved by the Eldorado



     14     executive officers but actually expanded the list



     15     or enhanced the items that were on the list.



     16          We were then introduced to Mr. Joe Morris, who



     17     had been retained as director of racing for



     18     Eldorado.  Joe brought a vast knowledge of the



     19     horse racing industry to Eldorado and will play a



     20     key role in the success of this endeavor.  This was



     21     more than good-faith gesture.  This was the point



     22     in which Eldorado began gaining the trust of the



     23     horsemen and a significant moment in a relationship



     24     and hopefully future partnership.



     25          The result of all these meetings was the
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      1     document submitted to the Indiana Horse Racing



      2     Commission executive director, Miss Pitman, from



      3     Eldorado dated March 3, 2020.



      4          In addition to an Eldorado executive team and



      5     its officers, who we believe are committed to the



      6     success of the Indiana horse racing industry, and



      7     most importantly the expectations of the Indiana



      8     Horse Racing Commission, the Indiana legislature,



      9     and the Governor's office, I have great confidence



     10     in the two vice presidents of racing at our Indiana



     11     racetracks, Mr. Rick Moore at Hoosier Park and



     12     Mr. Eric Halstrom at Indiana Grand.  I've known



     13     both of these gentlemen for over twenty-five years.



     14     The horsemen do expect both these individuals to be



     15     empowered to make decisions and take action on



     16     issues that may arise and their hands not be tied.



     17          The respective senior vice presidents at the



     18     racetracks, I've only begun to know, Mr. Mike Rich



     19     at Indiana Grand, Mr. Trent McIntosh at



     20     Hoosier Park.  I have found them to be



     21     approachable, knowledgeable about horse racing,



     22     upfront, and helpful in resolving issues thus far.



     23     I believe they also are committed to the success of



     24     each respective facility's racing and gaming



     25     operations.
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      1          I am disappointed of the action taken last



      2     Friday by another Indiana regulatory agency



      3     requiring Eldorado that if you were to approve this



      4     to divest itself of three properties.  I'm not



      5     going to give a lot of details that wouldn't be



      6     appropriate, but I just want to tell you why I'm



      7     disappointed.  The horsemen lost three great



      8     opportunities in Northwest Indiana,



      9     Southwest Indiana, and Southern Indiana to promote



     10     our sport.  This would have been where we could



     11     have really gone in and got material in there, got



     12     information in there, and who knows, we could have



     13     made them talk to Eldorado and maybe they would



     14     have liked to have taken the two shell OTB licenses



     15     and put one up at Hammond and put one down in



     16     Evansville.  But I think I'll just take a line from



     17     Tom Hanks in Forrest Gump, and that's all I have to



     18     say that.



     19          In closing, including the testimony I



     20     presented today and in consideration of the staff



     21     report of the Indiana Horse Racing Commission



     22     executive director, the March 3, 2020, Eldorado



     23     letter to Executive Director Pitman, and the



     24     Indiana HBPA position paper dated July 7, 2020, we



     25     urge the Indiana Horse Racing Commission to adopt
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      1     and approve Eldorado's petition for transfer of



      2     licenses with conditions agreed upon between the



      3     horsemen's associations and Eldorado and any other



      4     condition deemed appropriate by the



      5     Executive Director or the Commissioners.



      6          So it is written in the book of Exodus that



      7     the Lord thy God gave 10 commandments to Moses on



      8     Mount Sinai.  Executive Director published 22



      9     commandments, conditions, what she expected.  And I



     10     just want to say this, I like 22.  Thank you for



     11     your time.  I appreciate it.



     12          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you very much.  I've



     13     never heard Deena referred to as Moses.  There's a



     14     first for everything.  She's good, but I don't



     15     know.  That's good.  We got a new name for you,



     16     Deena.



     17          Dwayne Rhule.



     18          MR. RHULE:  I'll be much briefer than our



     19     former speaker here.  I did read your notice that



     20     you said you want us to be brief.  I'll do that,



     21     all right.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     23          MR. RHULE:  Thank you, Chairman and



     24     Commissioners, for allowing me to speak up.



     25     Dwayne Rhule, chairman of the standardbred advisory
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      1     committee.  I'm a standardbred farm owner and a



      2     racer of horses at Hoosier Park.  You have my



      3     letter in your file dated July 6, 2020, and I will



      4     be brief as requested.  These are my thoughts and



      5     other people's concerns.



      6          We are here today because Mr. Icahn was not



      7     pleased with his ROI --



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Move the mic down.



      9          MR. RHULE:  Bring it down?  All right.



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  There you go.



     11          MR. RHULE:  You don't want me to do redo it,



     12     do you?



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  No, no.  You can pick up



     14     where you left off.



     15          MR. RHULE:  All right.  We are here today



     16     because Mr. Ichan was not pleased with his ROI in



     17     Caesars stock, which he reportedly owns 8 percent



     18     plus.  He put himself on the casino floor and



     19     helped to force this merger with Eldorado.  I was



     20     involved at the legislature with the slots bill in



     21     2007.  All three breeds and Centaur worked together



     22     to get the legislation passed.  We pushed the theme



     23     that it would be a boost to the Indiana



     24     agricultural economy.  It has been greatly



     25     successful.
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      1          This merger is about financial schemes,



      2     leverage, huge debt, $17.3 million in rent.  An



      3     additional $500 million has been promised in cost



      4     savings and recently I think it was bumped up to



      5     $620 million.  People somewhere will be



      6     reduced -- maybe not at Hoosier, maybe not here,



      7     but somewhere in the corporation -- and everything



      8     will be subject to ROI.



      9          I have read about 200 pages of financial



     10     analysts' thoughts on the merger.  They go from



     11     euphoric to a dangerous deal.  The Reed report is



     12     spot-on in all respects.  No need to review it.  I



     13     have been to Pompano.  If this deal is approved, a



     14     Reed report should be done again in two or less



     15     years as a benchmark for progress.  Will Pompano



     16     still be racing?



     17          I fully endorse the executive director's



     18     recommendations, except for a small change.



     19     No. 16, rent should not be allowed due to the



     20     racetracks being a major part of casino operations,



     21     not in two years as they propose in their petition.



     22     No. 4, if not allowing rent at the two tracks is



     23     enough to jeopardize the whole merger, then you



     24     would assume the merger is too leveraged to succeed



     25     with any economic downturn or surprise event.
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      1          This is a huge task for the Commission.  This



      2     will be a challenge for the Commission to enforce.



      3     Thank you very much for your time.



      4          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  Next is Nat U.



      5     Hill, IV.



      6          MR. NAT HILL:  I am Nat Hill, IV.  I'm a



      7     horseman and this testimony today is mine and mine



      8     alone.  Is it just me or is it kind of warm in



      9     here?  I didn't get the memo about being brief, so



     10     here we go.



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  On the clock.



     12          MR. NAT HILL:  How much have I got?



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  You got five minutes.



     14          MR. NAT HILL:  Hey, you know what?  You don't



     15     look at me near the same as your dad did.  You kind



     16     of smile.



     17          (all laughing)



     18          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I'm glad.



     19          MR. NAT HILL:  Let me start today by stating



     20     the obvious.  No horsemen's group can afford to



     21     publicly oppose the acquisition of Caesars by



     22     Eldorado.  Horseman makes his living at the track



     23     and any track has an absolute ability to refuse



     24     entries.  Over the years horsemen and horsemen's



     25     groups have learned to go with the flow.  In no
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      1     circumstance will they ever likely publicly oppose



      2     a change in ownership.



      3          So why am I quite possibly the only person who



      4     has been willing from the jump to take a public



      5     stance against this proposal?  Because I've been



      6     blessed in life and I don't make my living racing



      7     horses.  If I did, I would be more than broke.



      8     Here's why I'm concerned about this sale or merger



      9     or whatever this proposal is.



     10          Tom bruised his way onto the board of



     11     directors of Caesars.  He insisted on the sale of



     12     the company.  He got the job done.  Who agreed to



     13     buy Caesars?  Eldorado in a deal that has been



     14     described as a guppy swallowing a whale.



     15          Why Eldorado?  I believe part of it is based



     16     on several public claims that Eldorado believes a



     17     new partnership obtain up to $500 million of



     18     synergy to do this deal.  Now, best I can figure



     19     synergy is a buzzword used by folks in the big



     20     business world as code for cost cutting.



     21          My early research showed that a gentleman



     22     named Tom Reeg -- I believe he's here today -- is



     23     reported to have said to investors that his target



     24     was to shave $500 million in costs from the



     25     combined companies.  This is not an actual inquiry.
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      1     This is Bloomberg.



      2          Tom, with all due respect, I feel a little bit



      3     like when I was a kid my dad used to look at me and



      4     he had a favorite saying, I'd be making my case and



      5     he'd say, you know, son -- this is a respective



      6     jurist, 24 years judge in Monroe County -- he'd



      7     look at me and say, son, my mind is made up, quit



      8     confusing me with the facts.



      9          So that's sort of how I feel today.  I'm



     10     hearing good stuff.  I'd love to believe it.  Love



     11     to believe it.  We'll get to more of that later.



     12          Another main concern of mine is Eldorado's



     13     past performance as a racetrack and even as casino



     14     operators, they're good at cutting expenses.



     15     Marketing, promotion, the list is long and painful.



     16     Pompano Isle Casino and Raceway, 93 percent of the



     17     casino's workers voted to go on strike, although



     18     they reached a settlement.



     19          Perhaps most disturbing to me personally is



     20     the Florida lawsuit instituted by Eldorado to kill



     21     harness racing in Florida by replacing it with



     22     jai alai.  How could it be overstated that Eldorado



     23     is using every legal means possible to kill harness



     24     racing in Florida?  What will their plans be for



     25     Indiana in years to come?  Will they attempt to
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      1     kill horse racing either through this Commission,



      2     or far more likely through the Indiana state



      3     legislature?



      4          So why are we all here today?  Well, early on



      5     when this sale was first proposed, I set out on a



      6     mission to do what little I could to kill this



      7     deal.  I was convinced horsemen would never stand



      8     against it.  The scuttle and the conventional



      9     wisdom was that you're not going to kill this deal,



     10     the best we can hope for is a bunch of favorable



     11     conditions.  I am forever indebted to my friend



     12     Brian Elmore and the HBPA for their work with



     13     Eldorado to get this list of promises they have



     14     made.  I wouldn't have thought this from the jump.



     15          So where does your Horse Racing Commission go



     16     from here?  I really want to thank you for making



     17     it real clear to Eldorado from the jump how things



     18     are in Indiana.  In my mind the recent improvements



     19     in the racetrack management in other states by



     20     Joe Morris and Eldorado have been the direct result



     21     of your clearly-voiced concerns about their



     22     proposed merger with Caesar.  You have made it



     23     crystal clear to Eldorado that Indiana is different



     24     from any other state.  They know you're going to be



     25     hard to deal with.







�



                                                           59



      1          Now you're in a tough spot.  The most profound



      2     portion of the executive director's report in my



      3     mind is found in footnote number 4 on page 5.  In



      4     the current economic environment there is financial



      5     risk both in approving and allowing a merger where



      6     either I becomes a controlling product of Caesars



      7     or in denying the petition and forcing the old



      8     Caesars to move forward with their current gaming



      9     and racing responsibilities.  If the Commission



     10     were to approve the merger with stringent



     11     conditions related to horse racing, the Indiana



     12     horse racing industry would arguably be in a better



     13     position with increased leverage moving forward



     14     than if there was a denial of the merger petition



     15     and racing was to continue under the existing final



     16     order.



     17          Between the commitments already made by



     18     Eldorado and the stiff conditions of approval



     19     recommended in the executive director's report, a



     20     very strong case can be made for approval based



     21     upon the Eldorado previous commitments and the



     22     staff recommendations is better than rejecting the



     23     proposal and letting the chips fall where they may.



     24          I trust this Commission.  I have always



     25     trusted this Commission.  Sometime in the previous
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      1     century I appeared along with Ernie Gaskin,



      2     Eddie Martin with the thoroughbred breed



      3     development advisory committee, Jeff from



      4     Churchill Downs and perhaps a few others, and we



      5     were allowed to testify in front of the Senate



      6     finance committee, chaired by a



      7     previously-mentioned affable veterinarian, a



      8     champion of the horse racing industry.  He had



      9     proposed legislation that would dictate riverboat



     10     emisson fees sent to the Indiana horse racing.  At



     11     that time Churchill Downs was receiving 40 percent



     12     of the riverboat revenues.



     13          It's been a while, but as I recall, tracks



     14     would get nothing under the bill while purses and



     15     breed development would get it all.  We took a



     16     strong stand and we looked the senator in the eye



     17     and said the Indiana Horse Racing Commission's



     18     better equipped and more familiar to do what's



     19     right than the Indiana state legislation.  And I



     20     remember the senate's ranking minority member



     21     looking directly at me as if to say, Nat, now you



     22     see what we have to deal with every day.  I have to



     23     add that the legislation was eventually dropped by



     24     the author.



     25          So how does this at all affect you guys?
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      1     Well, let me close with this.  I've never talked



      2     like this to the Commission before and I probably



      3     shouldn't start now.  You can't just put Eldorado



      4     on noble seeker probation, then walk away and



      5     congratulate yourself on a job well done.  If this



      6     deal is approved, hopefully with Deena's list of



      7     very rigid conditions, your hard work as a



      8     Commission has just begun.  I repeat, I personally



      9     trust the Indiana Horse Racing Commission.



     10          Now let me close with this:  I would love



     11     nothing more than to be proven wrong regarding our



     12     current view of Eldorado.  Nothing would make me



     13     happier than to come back here ten years from now



     14     when I'm eighty-two, hopefully aboveground and



     15     thinking somewhat clearly by then, and testify how



     16     wrong I was on July 13, 2020, how Eldorado did not



     17     cut corners at Indiana racetracks, how they did not



     18     work behind our backs at the Indiana legislature,



     19     and what wonderful corporate citizens they have



     20     become in the state of Indiana.  I would love that



     21     opportunity.



     22          Did I make it in five minutes?



     23          CHAIRMAN BORST:  No, but you're fine.



     24          MR. NAT HILL:  Okay.  Thank you.



     25          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  You're fine.
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      1     Thank you.



      2          MR. NAT HILL:  Questions?



      3          CHAIRMAN BORST:  No, not yet.



      4          MR. NAT HILL:  Okay.



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  Ernie Gaskin,



      6     aforementioned.



      7          MR. GASKIN:  Thank you, Commissioner.



      8     Ernie Gaskin, owner, trainer, breeder, former



      9     chairman of the breed development committee through



     10     three different administrations.  So thank you.



     11     Been watching this closely.



     12          I'm just here mainly to thank you guys for



     13     wherever we are today in this program that we've



     14     built.  It's unbelievable.  We made bold



     15     predictions for the state of Indiana, where we'd



     16     be.  A billion in economics a year?  How about this



     17     one?  Three horse of the years.  Do you know how



     18     hard it is to breed a horse of the year?  We've



     19     bred three.  Surrounding states have been in racing



     20     for eighty years, haven't done it.  We've got



     21     three.  Thanks to you guys.  You made this program



     22     so people wanted to come here.  That's how we got



     23     here.  Thank you.



     24          You've led the way from Churchill to Eldorado.



     25     Here we are.  Perhaps this is a small explanation
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      1     to Eldorado of the scrutiny there involved.  Enter



      2     Joe Morris.  I think he could be a Bill Polian, of



      3     the Colts.  I think he has the capability of



      4     putting together a winning team.  He knows



      5     everybody.  He's been everywhere.  He's a great



      6     guy.  He'll do it for us if Eldorado backs him.



      7          At this point, unlike Nat, I'm going to put my



      8     vote with the Carano family.  They didn't build



      9     that business not doing the right thing.  I believe



     10     at this point they'll do the right thing for racing



     11     through Joe.



     12          So together with that, I just want to say that



     13     my comfort in this transition lies with you, the



     14     Indiana Horse Racing Commission.  Thank you.



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  We got to figure



     16     out who Peyton Manning's going to be, though, now



     17     that you got Bill Polian.



     18          Next, Paul Martin.



     19          MR. MARTIN:  My name is Paul Martin.  I



     20     currently serve as president of the Quarter Horse



     21     Racing Association of Indiana.  Just want to say



     22     good afternoon to the Commission, Madam Director



     23     Pitman, Deputy Director Linkmeyer, Chairman Borst,



     24     and legal staff.  Thank you for allowing me to be



     25     heard today.  My comments will be brief, but I do
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      1     have a few points.



      2          With me today is our executive director,



      3     Dianne Bennett, and we are here today to express



      4     our total support for Eldorado Resorts,



      5     Incorporated.  I have to admit when we first heard



      6     about potential new track ownership, we obviously



      7     were full of skepticism.  However, that was fairly



      8     short-lived when the horsemen's groups compiled a



      9     list of important items pertaining to the race



     10     programs and nearly everything was actually



     11     committed to and guaranteed.  In reality, even more



     12     than we asked for was put on the table and



     13     committed to by Eldorado.  With that, I would also



     14     say with our growing program we have a huge need



     15     for another barn and more stalls.



     16          Most notable item on that list from the QHRAI



     17     was a 12 percent guarantee through 2033.  That was



     18     huge for us.  Another was the racing capital escrow



     19     fund of $20 million to $25 million to enhance our



     20     programs here.  Additionally, Eldorado had enough



     21     vision to go out and get an expert like senior vice



     22     president of racing Joe Morris, which will play a



     23     huge role in the success of our partnership.  There



     24     are many more but not enough time for every detail,



     25     but our skepticism has now turned into optimism.
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      1          In closing, QHRAI is confident that with this



      2     partnership the sky is the only limit.  In recent



      3     times our tracks were tagged as the gold standard.



      4     Working together and in unity with the HBPA, ITOBA,



      5     ISA, and with Eldorado as our partner, there is



      6     little doubt that the gold standard can and will



      7     become the platinum standard.  Thank you very much.



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



      9          Joe Putnam.



     10          (microphone feedback)



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Somewhere there's a



     12     microphone doing something.



     13          MR. PUTNAM:  Thought that was Paul up here.



     14          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I did too, but we can't blame



     15     him because he's gone.



     16          (all laughing)



     17          MR. PUTNAM:  Good morning.  Joe Putnam,



     18     president of the ISA standardbred association,



     19     1,100-plus members that we represent.  Just wanted



     20     to say a few quick words.  I believe we have a



     21     great opportunity for us in our industry for all



     22     the breeds.  I'm a very active participant in



     23     racing.  I have a 40-horse stable, race Indiana,



     24     Ohio, Kentucky, so do a lot of traveling, see a lot



     25     of things.  Personal testament is what I have
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      1     witnessed with Eldorado at Scioto.  Joe Morris



      2     leading the racing operations over the past several



      3     months with his dedication and attention they're



      4     giving to the racing operations at Scioto.  I like



      5     what I see going on there.  Lots of improvements,



      6     and we're looking forward to working with them here



      7     in Indiana.



      8          One of the big things in our industry -- I



      9     know we've touched on it briefly -- but is the



     10     stability of racing.  The 12 percent for the long



     11     term, I think that's very important.  Like,



     12     investing in racing -- I do all facets of it,



     13     breeding, owning, training, driving -- it's a



     14     long-term commitment.  It takes, you know, I'm



     15     thinking about three, four, five, six, seven years



     16     out when I'm breeding horses and thinking about the



     17     future.  So long-term stability, the long-term



     18     12 percent commitment, very important things.



     19          The added commitment from Eldorado over the



     20     next three years putting the million dollars up



     21     each year to go to the purses, I think that's a



     22     pretty good impact there.  You know, with this



     23     COVID going on we've all took a pretty good hit, so



     24     those kinds of things for support are very



     25     important to our industry.
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      1          One other thing, if I may.  I know it was



      2     listed in the exhibits, but I received a letter



      3     from the Ohio Harness Horse Association president,



      4     Mr. Steve Bateson, and I'd like to read his letter.



      5     I think it's pretty important for everybody just to



      6     hear firsthand how things have changed over there.



      7          To the Honorable Indiana Horse Racing



      8     Commission:



      9          I would like to provide a different



     10     perspective on racing in Ohio at Eldorado.  The



     11     "New Scioto Downs" has opened their race meet with



     12     great enthusiasm towards racing.  I would like to



     13     site a few examples.



     14          They've addressed track issues prior to the



     15     race meeting with added material and addressed



     16     grade issues with consolidation and consideration



     17     from the Coon Brothers.  They've added personnel to



     18     ensure proper track maintenance.  The results have



     19     been impressive thus far into the race meet.



     20          Eldorado's Scioto Downs property was the first



     21     racetrack to open in Ohio and the first



     22     Standardbred track to open in North America.  They



     23     made this commitment with no assurances when the



     24     casino would be permitted to open.  Management went



     25     above and beyond to get all the horses qualified to
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      1     race.



      2          Eldorado's new team at Scioto Downs, led by



      3     Joe Morris, is tackling issues head on.  They have



      4     made the best of a difficult situation.  It appears



      5     the process for a new beginning with Scioto Downs



      6     has started.



      7          This team has made a concerted effort to



      8     reconnect with horse players.  Scioto Downs has had



      9     full racing cards with full fields since they've



     10     opened.  The horse players have responded by



     11     wagering at a much higher level than years past.



     12          Based on what I've witnessed I have confidence



     13     that Eldorado's management recognizes the value of



     14     horse racing in Ohio.  I look forward to working



     15     with this "New Scioto Downs" management team and



     16     seeing Scioto Downs restored to the glory it once



     17     shared.



     18          That was from Steve Bateson, again, president



     19     of the Ohio Harness Horsemen's Association.



     20          One other thing I'd like to add just quickly



     21     is if you so approve the final order, I think it's



     22     very important to put in there that they maintain



     23     ownership of both tracks.  I think that will give



     24     us the stability and the long-term commitment that



     25     we're looking for here today.  Thank you.
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      1          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



      2          Next the honorable State Representative



      3     Bob Cherry.  I give him an honorable.  He's a



      4     former Boilermaker too, so . . .



      5          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Not everybody could



      6     get into Ball State, so . . .



      7          (all laughing)



      8          MR. CHERRY:  I'm Bob Cherry,



      9     State Representative, District 53.  My district



     10     really is between the two tracks.  I'm kind of the



     11     flyover.  If you think of the Midwest, we're the



     12     flyover states, I'm the flyover of if anyone wants



     13     to go from one track to the other, they have to go



     14     through my district.



     15          Mr. Chairman and members of the Commission, I



     16     applaud what you're trying to do and I trust, like



     17     everyone said before, you are the key.



     18          I'm glad you mentioned about your dad.



     19     Senator Larry Borst worked with Ralph Wilfong many



     20     years ago to get this thing started.  Then we had



     21     couple other State Senators and another



     22     veterinarian, Bob Jackman, and then the Harvard



     23     lawyer, Luke Kinley, they carried the torch



     24     further.  So we got a really good plan in our



     25     state, and I applaud that.
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      1          We got many other legislators supported horse



      2     racing as we have today, and I applaud the merger



      3     with the investment in racing.  I think that's



      4     important.  Bringing on Joe Morris is an excellent



      5     thing, what I understand, and everybody's for it.



      6     When we got a lot of these things done, we worked



      7     with the tracks and the legislature, with the



      8     horsemen, and the communities, and I applaud the



      9     investment in the local communities, too, that



     10     they're going to continue doing that.



     11          I know we've talked about a lot of ifs, if



     12     this, if this, if this was to happen what we'd do.



     13     Again, I think lot of those things have taken place



     14     already in the proposal but, again, I think that



     15     long term reevaluation of this maybe in the short



     16     distance looking at what we've done.  I really



     17     think this is in your hands and I think it's a good



     18     proposal.  Thank you.



     19          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     20          Next is Bruce Murphy.  Two more to go.



     21          MR. MURPHY:  Bruce Murphy, Indiana



     22     Thoroughbred Owner's and Breeder's Association.



     23     Good morning, Chairman Borst, IHRC Commissioners,



     24     Executive Director Pitman, legal staff.  My name is



     25     Bruce Murphy.  Serve as the president of the board
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      1     of directors of the Indiana Thoroughbred Owner's



      2     and Breeder's Association.  ITOBA has provided a



      3     letter of support for your Commission materials



      4     today, but we believe it is very important for us



      5     to take the time during your deliberations to be



      6     present and provide additional comments.



      7          The Carano family and the executive leadership



      8     team of Eldorado Resorts has spent a considerable



      9     amount of time in Indiana the past few months to



     10     familiarize themselves with the horsemen's groups,



     11     the current racino operations, and the general



     12     equine industry.  ITOBA applauds their actions and



     13     looks forward to continuing this working



     14     relationship.  The commitment by the Carano family



     15     to place a proven leader like Joe Morris to oversee



     16     racing at both tracks is paramount to the continued



     17     success of the first-class horse racing industry we



     18     have in our great state of Indiana.



     19          With the decision made by the Indiana Gaming



     20     Commission last Friday, ITOBA would encourage the



     21     Commission to require Eldorado to divest themselves



     22     of the three riverboats they own after the



     23     transaction is complete and keep the two racinos as



     24     one track, one group.



     25          Again, thank you for your time today and your
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      1     dedication to this very important agribusiness in



      2     our state.  If you have any questions, I'd be very



      3     happy to answer best of my ability.



      4          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you, Bruce.



      5          MR. MURPHY:  Thank you.



      6          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Last but not least, the



      7     honorable State Representative Terri Austin.  You



      8     get to bring it home.



      9          MS. AUSTIN:  Thank you, Chairman Borst.  My



     10     husband says I always do like to get the last word



     11     in, so . . .



     12          (all laughing)



     13          MS. AUSTIN:  And your dad was very kind to me



     14     as a new legislator, I will tell you.



     15          So my name is Terri Austin and I serve Indiana



     16     House District 36 and I will tell you the track is



     17     right not in the middle, off to the side, but



     18     they're fully in my district.  I've been in the



     19     General Assembly for eighteen years -- it does not



     20     seem possible to hear me say that -- and I've been



     21     on the Public Policy Committee since my very first



     22     day, which is where all the gaming bills go



     23     through.  Alcohol too.  Be glad you're not the



     24     Alcohol Commission, folks, let me tell you.



     25          I read with great interest the executive
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      1     director's report last night and I applaud the



      2     guardrails that she has attempted to put up to



      3     ensure that racing and the investment in racing



      4     maintains under this transition of ownership.  It's



      5     been a very interesting perspective for me to watch



      6     from what was Churchill Downs Tom Meeker,



      7     transition to Centaur, transition to Caesars, and



      8     now to Eldorado under the Carano family.  I've had



      9     a chance to go from local corporate -- I call



     10     Kentucky local -- and then to, well, family-owned



     11     corporate under Centaur, large corporate under



     12     Caesars, and now anticipating that shift under the



     13     family-owned structure.  And each bring their own



     14     set of rewards and challenges.



     15          The truth is the marriage of casino gaming and



     16     horse racing is a unique perspective and the truth



     17     is it's a huge impact in my community.  It's a huge



     18     impact, just like it is here.  It allows us to draw



     19     a wide variety of people and personalities that



     20     might not normally come to Anderson, quite



     21     honestly.  And it's also a hallmark for us, it's



     22     one of the things that we can boast about when



     23     we're marketing our community to future business



     24     and industry as we hopefully work through this



     25     post-COVID environment.
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      1          I think the return on investment of the equine



      2     industry and all the industry sectors is well



      3     documented.  At least according to the 2011 Purdue



      4     study, it was more than a million dollars in direct



      5     and $500 million in indirect and induced, but that



      6     was 2011.  I applaud the fact that we're going to



      7     update that study because I don't think you can



      8     ever underestimate the impact that agribusiness has



      9     on the state of Indiana.



     10          I think the tax dollars, aside from the gaming



     11     tax dollars, the tax dollars associated with the



     12     equine industry and across the industry sectors has



     13     a huge impact on the State budget, and the truth is



     14     it's been my direct experience and observation that



     15     the staff that have been associated with both the



     16     horse racing side and the casino side are



     17     knowledgeable, they are professional, and they have



     18     the highest levels of integrity.  All of those I



     19     think have helped and a lot of that's been under



     20     your direct supervision, you know, all the things



     21     that you've recommended, the things that you have



     22     put in place to make sure that we do have premier



     23     racing facilities here.



     24          So finally, I would just say Joe mentioned the



     25     stability of racing, but I would also talk about
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      1     the stability of that marriage, the casino and the



      2     racing industry together, and I will tell you that



      3     it impacts a community's image in significant ways.



      4     It impacts our reputation.  It impacts how people



      5     see and feel about Anderson, Indiana, and



      6     Shelbyville.  And the truth is any sudden



      7     departures or movements are not necessarily going



      8     to be viewed in the best interest of not just the



      9     institutions itself but of the municipalities and



     10     the local governments that are involved.



     11          Finally, I would just tell you in all



     12     candidness, I was not necessarily a fan in the



     13     beginning.  I was very reluctant, having lived



     14     through all those transitions, and I was fearful



     15     about what it might mean for my community.  I have



     16     talked to employees.  I have talked to staff.  I



     17     have talked to community representatives.  We all



     18     feel like this is in the best interest of Anderson,



     19     Indiana, and Hoosier Park.  I can't speak for



     20     Shelbyville.  But I think with the 22



     21     recommendations that have been put forward, with



     22     the actions of the Gaming Commission, this is going



     23     to give us not only some stability but actually



     24     it's going to serve as a launching pad so that both



     25     Hoosier Park and Indiana Grand can go to the next
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      1     level.



      2          That's going to be tough, quite honestly.



      3     It's going to take some hard work.  It's going to



      4     take consistent commitment on the part of the



      5     Carano family.  And I trust that this Horse Racing



      6     Commission, who always does its due diligence, will



      7     make sure that the right actions are taken, that



      8     people are true to their word, and that their



      9     commitments are held and they will uphold their end



     10     of the bargain, because I guarantee you I will be



     11     one of the very first people at your meetings in



     12     the future to say if I think things are going off



     13     the rails.



     14          I will also tell you I appreciated the



     15     interest in the community commitments and the



     16     community impact dollars, because everybody brings



     17     their own style to that -- I understand it -- but I



     18     read with great interest the minutes of the



     19     December meeting and the reports that followed.  I



     20     appreciate the fact that you're taking an interest



     21     in that and I do appreciate the fact that the



     22     Carano family has agreed to increase that amount



     23     because I hear it from my community organizations.



     24          So we'll be watching.  And trust me.  This



     25     community will speak up.  I guarantee you.  Thank
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      1     you for allowing me to testify today, sir.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



      3          Okay.  Just one last chance.  Everybody's



      4     testified who wanted to testify?  Don't want to



      5     leave anybody out.  That's why we had this here



      6     because we didn't want to leave anybody out.



      7          Why don't we open it up to questions from



      8     counsel, staff, Commissioners.  Anybody have any



      9     burning questions that they want to ask at this



     10     point?  I'll ask Commissioner McCarty on the phone,



     11     anything you'd like to ask to start with?



     12          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Not at this point.



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.



     14          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Want to express



     15     appreciation for Representative Austin's comments.



     16     And, yes, I confirm she does always get the last



     17     word.



     18          (all laughing)



     19          CHAIRMAN BORST:  You've dealt with her before



     20     then.



     21          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  No questions at this



     22     time.



     23          CHAIRMAN BORST:  All right.



     24     Commission Schenkel?



     25          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Sure.  I won't miss a
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      1     chance.  And not in any particular order, so as I



      2     throw these out, whoever wants to answer them from



      3     ERI, that's fine.



      4          Let me start by saying thank you for your kind



      5     words that you have expressed today in terms of



      6     your confidence in Indiana horse racing as a



      7     product and as an endeavor that you're willing to



      8     invest in.  And I will be the first to admit it's a



      9     incredibly large investment, so I know that you're



     10     not taking it lightly.  But let me preface it by



     11     saying -- and it's been eluded to here



     12     already -- that I was one who was very skeptical



     13     and needed some convincing and needed to hear some



     14     things.  So that you understand my questions a



     15     little bit and where I'm coming from.



     16          I guess one of the first questions I have



     17     is:  As we read the Reed report and as I'd done



     18     some research looking back through things,



     19     historically it appeared that when ERI came into a



     20     market, basically a couple of things jumped out at



     21     me.  One was the overall revenues tended to



     22     decrease, which if that's the case that's not good



     23     for the state of Indiana if that would happen here;



     24     employment and head count in your facilities were



     25     somewhat reduced; and yet, at the very end -- and
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      1     this is admirable for you and your



      2     shareholders -- your profits went up and that



      3     strikes me as not a good.  Our job is to do things



      4     in the public interest, not in your interest.  So



      5     my question to you is:  Explain to me or talk to me



      6     a little bit about why that's a good business model



      7     or why we should embrace this in Indiana.



      8          MR. REEG:  Again, it's Tom Reeg, CEO.  The



      9     casino business in this country is a mature



     10     business.  There's effectively casinos that someone



     11     can visit in every major metropolitan area that



     12     you've got in the country that can drive to a



     13     property.  So growth typically is GDP-type growth.



     14     What the casino sector has in terms of an operating



     15     style is they'll try and subsidize, right, so



     16     they'll give away something for free to thinking



     17     that it creates a visit.



     18          Very simply, our view is a lot of those



     19     subsidies are not necessary and the customer will



     20     come without that inducement.  And so what happens



     21     is as we remove those subsidies, the total revenue



     22     goes down.  But that revenue's not really revenue,



     23     it's something I'm giving you that you're giving



     24     back to me.



     25          The real way to drive revenue is to invest in
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      1     your facilities, to continue to add to them.



      2     You've seen that happen here in the addition of



      3     table games.  You're going to see that happen in



      4     the future as we add the $60 million table game



      5     expansion.  That's how you drive real revenue



      6     growth, by investing capital and getting return,



      7     not by giving away a hamburger or a buffet.  So



      8     that's really our operating philosophy.



      9          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Then let me follow-up



     10     with you mentioned you have established, you're



     11     willing to establish this $25 million escrow



     12     account, but you also -- I believe it was you or



     13     maybe it was one of the other gentlemen --



     14     mentioned the $60 million improvements effort.  Is



     15     that in addition to?



     16          MR. REEG:  That is in addition to.



     17          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  That's not mixed in



     18     with that $25 million?



     19          MR. REEG:  No.  The $25 million over 10 years



     20     renewable is racing specific, will be invested into



     21     the racing side.  The $60 million in expansion



     22     capital is to increase the footprint of this casino



     23     and Hoosier Park.



     24          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  So it's generic across



     25     the board of the properties?
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      1          MR. REEG:  That's right.



      2          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Okay.  I just wanted



      3     to make sure I understood that.  Thank you.  I



      4     think that's all I've got right now.  Those were



      5     the two.



      6          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Commissioner Pillow?



      7          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  I don't have any.



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  While you're there, I guess



      9     it has been brought up before about the savings



     10     that you'll have with this merger, $500 million or



     11     whatever the number is.  Is there any more you can



     12     say on that without giving away trade secrets?



     13          MR. REEG:  What I would say is it's really a



     14     function of difference in operating philosophy.



     15     Caesars built up a very large centralized



     16     organization based in Las Vegas that is kind of a



     17     command and control system that operates the entire



     18     company.  As I said in my prepared remarks, we



     19     empower the local leaders.  Our view is in Indiana



     20     we make our money here, we make it at Hoosier Park,



     21     we make it in our casinos.  The people that are



     22     making the decisions on an operating basis within



     23     the framework that we set are the people that are



     24     dealing with the customers every day.  So on the



     25     cost side, almost all of those cost savings in the
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      1     $500 million are in that corporate group in



      2     Las Vegas.



      3          In addition, on the Caesars side, which is



      4     different than prior acquisitions, because we bring



      5     Caesars Rewards into the existing Eldorado system,



      6     $100 million of that $500 million was actually



      7     revenue synergy, it's not cost cutting.  It's the



      8     12 million people in our system coming into the



      9     50 million Caesars Rewards.  You've seen that in



     10     these two properties here.  Despite the road



     11     construction in the area, bringing that into the



     12     Caesars program, they out-performed the rest of the



     13     state from a revenue perspective.  So that's a big



     14     piece of our synergies as well.



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Then ducktailing on the



     16     conditions we're in now, which I feel so sorry for



     17     you guys -- the country has just been rocked by all



     18     the COVID stuff and all -- somebody mentioned that



     19     you thought maybe things were coming back better



     20     than you thought so far.



     21          MR. REEG:  Yes.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  And I guess what I'm going to



     23     say is:  Do you think then we can finish the rest



     24     of the meets, as long as nothing else happens and



     25     we don't get any more state mandates that shut down
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      1     and all that, so everything should, the rest of the



      2     seasons for both tracks should go as normal as can



      3     be?



      4          MR. REEG:  We are certainly hopeful that's the



      5     case.  Obviously that's a function of the public



      6     health situation.



      7          We had to submit numbers to you and other



      8     jurisdictions frankly in the middle of the crisis



      9     when everything was shut down, and we put forth



     10     numbers that were in front of you that thankfully



     11     turned out to be extraordinarily conservative.  The



     12     customers have come back really pretty quickly.



     13     Revenues are up.  Casino revenue here is actually



     14     up at all five Indiana properties.  So that's been



     15     heartening to us, and now it's a matter of, A, does



     16     the public health situation remain stable enough



     17     that you don't retrench, which in Indiana, knock on



     18     wood, doesn't seem to be the case to this point,



     19     and then it's how do you keep reopening and



     20     bringing things back that are still pulled back at



     21     this point.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I hope we don't have to do



     23     that.  I hope nobody has to do that.



     24          MR. REEG:  I hope so too.



     25          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Any questions?
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      1          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Mr. Chairman, while



      2     Mr. Reeg's there, couple other questions.  Number



      3     one, thank you for stating your commitment to us



      4     and everybody here for the record today that the



      5     tracks are on the table for divestiture because I'm



      6     one of the people who've been on this Commission



      7     going back to the Centaur bankruptcy days and then



      8     the one breed, one track when they purchased this



      9     facility out of bankruptcy, so forth.  So we've



     10     seen lots of ups and downs, and so that's obviously



     11     very important and we appreciate your pledge.



     12          The one thing I would say that you offered



     13     that I'm not interested in is the offer to go to



     14     the legislature.  And with all due respect to the



     15     legislators that are here, sometimes the



     16     legislature giveth and they can also taketh away.



     17     I'm not in favor of going to the legislature and



     18     legislating the 12 percent.  Quite frankly, the



     19     legislature acted a couple of years ago to put a



     20     process in place that arrives at the correct



     21     percentage, and my preference would be to let that



     22     process work its way and not put 12 percent



     23     statutorily in.  We can have that discussion with



     24     more length at some point, but I feel very strongly



     25     about that.
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      1          MR. REEG:  Okay.  We look to you.  We want to



      2     get to --



      3          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  I appreciate that.  I



      4     just wanted to make sure that I state that.



      5          MR. REEG:  We certainly don't want to --



      6          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Good.  We appreciate



      7     that very much.  Thank you, Mr. Reeg.



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  He doesn't beat around the



      9     bush.



     10          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  No.



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Any questions from staff?



     12     Robin?



     13          MR. BABBITT:  I just have a couple questions.



     14          So I understand that you put Mr. Morris in



     15     place as the senior vice president of racing and



     16     he'll be in that position for some undefined time,



     17     but I'm assuming that the commitment is an ongoing



     18     commitment.  I've heard only good things about



     19     Mr. Morris, but that this position will be a



     20     permanent position --



     21          MR. REEG:  That's correct.



     22          MR. BABBITT:  -- that will be embedded in the



     23     sort of philosophy and culture of Eldorado going



     24     forward.



     25          MR. REEG:  That's right.  We'd like Mr. Morris
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      1     to stay as long as he'd like.



      2          MR. BABBITT:  Well, I hope it's decades and



      3     decades and I hope Mr. Carano is there for him to



      4     report to for decades and decades.  But there will



      5     be a direct report between the senior vice



      6     president of racing and chief operating officer?



      7          MR. REEG:  That's correct, sir.



      8          MR. BABBITT:  The other thing, I think, that



      9     would be helpful, just because the Pompano issue



     10     has been addressed and I think



     11     Representative Austin said it really well.  There's



     12     a marriage of gaming and racing in Indiana.  It was



     13     instituted at the same time.  It came up through



     14     the legislature.  The legislature did all of these



     15     things that supported the horse racing agribusiness



     16     end of it.  So I think it's helpful for someone



     17     from Eldorado simply to make clear that that



     18     situation in Pompano is that situation, it's a



     19     unique situation, and that you would never perceive



     20     taking any actions to decouple racing and gaming in



     21     the state of Indiana.



     22          MR. REEG:  Yes.  I think it's important that



     23     I'm the guy to address that and tell you that we



     24     have absolutely no intention of pursuing that in



     25     Indiana.
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      1          MR. BABBITT:  Thank you for that.



      2          Then there was a discussion -- I actually was



      3     able to watch the Gaming Commission meeting -- a



      4     discussion about diversity and your commitment to



      5     diversity.  I do think there's serious concern at



      6     this Commission to increase gender and racial



      7     diversity in any way possible and I think it would



      8     make sense for you to sort of repeat those points



      9     to the Commission.



     10          MR. REEG:  Absolutely.  So Caesars has



     11     existing programs around gender and minority



     12     diversity.  And given the events over the last two



     13     to three months, I've started talking to Jan Jones



     14     at Caesars.  Jan Jones headed those efforts at



     15     Caesars.  She's the former mayor of Las Vegas, head



     16     of corporate social responsibility area.



     17          As part of the transaction, there are five



     18     Caesars board members joining six of our Eldorado



     19     board members to form the new eleven-member



     20     Eldorado board.  We asked prior to closing if



     21     Caesars would put Jan Jones on their board so that



     22     we could take her as one of our board members, and



     23     I'm pleased to report that that actually took place



     24     and Jan will be joining our board.  We'll be



     25     forming a corporate social responsibility committee
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      1     of the board that Jan will chair.



      2          I have given her direction in the midst of



      3     recent activity to pull forward the gender and



      4     minority diversity programs that Caesars had been



      5     developing that are quite well developed, but we



      6     want to get there quicker.  You know, we pride



      7     ourselves on being a company that finds



      8     inefficiencies where we can drive value.  I think



      9     what we're talking about here is an inefficiency



     10     where the entire casino sector seems to fish in the



     11     over 50 white male pool for management talent, and



     12     we think, A, it's the right thing to do, but we



     13     think, B, it's an opportunity for us to develop new



     14     talent for the future.



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Good.  Thank you.



     16          MR. BABBITT:  The last question, Mr. Chair,



     17     with your permission, would be that:  During the



     18     Gaming Commission's hearing there was some



     19     discussion about not cutting employment levels at



     20     the Indiana casinos and I think there was a general



     21     commitment made to that effect and I would think it



     22     would be appropriate to ask you if you would make



     23     the same commitment to racing.  I would mention



     24     that racing is a highly labor-intensive endeavor



     25     both from a public safety standpoint and from an
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      1     integrity standpoint, both which are critical to



      2     the operation of Indiana horse racing.  So if you



      3     would be prepared to make a similar commitment to



      4     the Racing Commission, I think that would be



      5     appropriate.



      6          MR. REEG:  We're happy to make a similar



      7     commitment relative to racing that we did to



      8     gaming.



      9          MR. BABBITT:  I have no further questions.



     10     Thank you, Mr. Chair.



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Do you have any final



     12     statement that you'd like to make?



     13          MR. REEG:  Just thank you again for your



     14     consideration and thank you for bringing us all



     15     together in person.



     16          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Thank you.



     17          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  Commissioners have no



     18     further questions, then at this point I'm going to



     19     close the record.



     20          The next step will be each Commission member



     21     has a chance to make a statement or a concern again



     22     if they'd like to.  Not a motion yet.  We'll go



     23     through each of us.  If you don't have anything to



     24     say, that's fine.  If you've got something you want



     25     to say.  Commissioner McCarty, do you got anything
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      1     that you'd like to . . .?



      2          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Yes.  In closing, I



      3     would just like to emphasize how seriously we take



      4     these commitments and obligations and will be very



      5     assertive about making sure they are fulfilled.  We



      6     appreciate both the responsiveness and relation to



      7     (audio interruption), and we just want everybody to



      8     understand we are thoroughly very serious about



      9     making sure they're complied with.  That's it.



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     11     Commissioner Pillow?



     12          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  My mic isn't working.



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  It isn't?



     14          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  I would just kind of



     15     like to echo Bill's statement that we will be



     16     looking at this pretty thoroughly.  I've been on



     17     this Commission now for about five or six years and



     18     I've seen a lot of changes and two or three



     19     ownerships, and stability is what I think that



     20     we're all looking for to make sure that horse



     21     racing in Indiana stays at the golden standard now



     22     like you said it is.  I just wanted to commend



     23     Eldorado on coming in and stepping up to the plate.



     24          I would like to ask one quick question.  How



     25     far along are you on your divestiture process, if
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      1     that's not corporate secrets?



      2          MR. REEG:  Mr. Commissioner, I assume your



      3     question is relative to Indiana divestitures?



      4          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Yes.



      5          MR. REEG:  Because we didn't want to be



      6     presumptuous of outcomes, we really haven't done



      7     significant work.  In our financing, which we did



      8     about a little under a month ago at this point, we



      9     had to disclose the expectation that we would have



     10     divestitures in Indiana.  So we've had quite a few



     11     incoming calls, but we have not yet started the



     12     process.



     13          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Okay.  Thank you.



     14     That's all.



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Commission Schenkel?



     16          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  I think before that we



     17     have no experience with you folks up to this point,



     18     so we're relying on your word and on your promises.



     19     I'm very encouraged -- as I said earlier, I was



     20     skeptical -- but I've been encouraged as time has



     21     gone on and you've repeatedly promised to maintain



     22     first-class facilities and to promote and do all



     23     the things that we're charged with to make sure



     24     that horse racing in Indiana is done in the best



     25     public interest.  So we look forward to those words
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      1     becoming deeds and actions.  Thank you.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Well, I guess to wrap it up,



      3     want to thank everybody for all their cooperation,



      4     Eldorado especially.  It's been tough times these



      5     last few months and like you say things haven't



      6     quite gone the pace that we thought they would, but



      7     neither has the rest of the country.  I appreciate



      8     you just going right off the bat on the Reed report



      9     and addressing that.  That's a good sign of things



     10     that you recognize that and we have to reflect on



     11     that report.  When we see some of the things that



     12     have happened since then with Joe Morris.  Joe,



     13     you've got a lot riding on your shoulders, buddy.



     14     I don't know.  You may not want the job after all



     15     this.  That and the things that you've done, the



     16     commitments to all of the executive director's



     17     things and some other things through some letters



     18     that aren't in her memo.  There'll probably be



     19     20-some conditions that we'll have on there and



     20     you've, I think, pretty much said okay to all of



     21     them.  You've agreed to have the same management



     22     style that we've gotten to know in all these years



     23     here in Indiana, and that's important.  You're



     24     going to keep the same management team.  That's



     25     important too.
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      1          So I think with all these concerns addressed,



      2     I disagree with some of the horsemen that don't put



      3     it all on us because this is a team.  I think in



      4     keeping Eldorado's feet to the fire, it's going to



      5     take horsemen, too, because you guys are on the



      6     ground.  In this state horsemen are not afraid to



      7     speak up, as you may have heard, and that's great.



      8     So you all know how to get ahold of us if things



      9     aren't going right.  So it's going to take a team



     10     between the horsemen, the Commission Staff,



     11     Commissioners, and obviously the track management



     12     to make this work, but the good news is we've got



     13     stability, as George said, for most of this, the



     14     people on the ground that make things happen, and



     15     it's just ownership is going to change and so I



     16     think that's a good sign too.



     17          Anyway, we appreciate all your forthrightness



     18     today especially to come in and talk to us and tell



     19     us how you feel.  You've got it figured out, as I



     20     said earlier, this is a family and we'd like to



     21     keep it that way.



     22          With that, if there's no other discussion, I



     23     guess we're ready for a motion.  We can have a



     24     motion to pass the permits or we can have a motion



     25     with conditions or we can have a motion to deny.
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      1     So if somebody would want to make a motion, we're



      2     ready, we're at that point.  Commissioner Schenkel?



      3          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  I would move to



      4     approve the Eldorado transfer of petition subject



      5     to the following conditions and/or covenants:



      6          1.  Any proposed conditions contained in the



      7     staff report submitted by the Commission's



      8     executive director;



      9          2.  Any conditions that reflect any



     10     commitments made by Eldorado since the transfer



     11     petition was filed;



     12          3.  Any other necessary and appropriate



     13     conditions, additions, and/or revisions made by our



     14     counsel that are supported by the comments of the



     15     Commission during this hearing and our



     16     deliberations; and



     17          4.  Any technical or legal additions that our



     18     counsel deems appropriate.



     19          As a part of the motion, I request that our



     20     counsel promptly provide a proposed final order for



     21     the Commission's review, revision, and execution



     22     that would subsequently be provided to Eldorado and



     23     would become effective upon Eldorado's acceptance



     24     of any conditions or covenants set forth in this



     25     final order or as otherwise provided for by
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      1     applicable Indiana law.



      2          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  I'll second that motion.



      3          CHAIRMAN BORST:  We've got a second,



      4     Commissioner Pillow.



      5          Everybody understand the motion with the



      6     conditions?  Any further discussion?



      7          MR. BABBITT:  Mr. Chair, I think to be



      8     consistent, wouldn't a roll-call vote be



      9     appropriate?



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  We'll get to that.  I'm



     11     learning.  I'm getting trained right.  I was going



     12     to go to the roll call.  I think we're ready for



     13     the roll-call vote then.



     14          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     15          Roll-call vote.  Chairman Borst.



     16          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Aye.



     17          MR. JACKSON:  Vice-chairman Schenkel.



     18          MR. SCHENKEL:  Aye.



     19          MR. JACKSON:  Commissioner McCarty.



     20          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Aye.



     21          MR. JACKSON:  And Commissioner Pillow.



     22          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Aye eye.



     23          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



     24          CHAIRMAN BORST:  It was unanimously four to



     25     nothing.
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      1          Again, got to thank Indiana Grand for



      2     arranging this.  This was great, perfect, couldn't



      3     have been any better, and we certainly appreciate



      4     it.



      5          We've got to thank Eldorado organization again



      6     for answering all the questions.  I guess if you're



      7     in all these states, I don't know how you keep them



      8     all straight, but I guess you figure that out.



      9          Horsemen associations, thank you.  Thank you



     10     for meeting with them and coming up with ideas



     11     because you're on the ground, you know the stuff



     12     that's the most important.



     13          Obviously Deena and Noah and Jessica and Megan



     14     and Tom and Dale, everybody on the staff, thank you



     15     because this is a tedious process, and we've tried



     16     to do this right.



     17          Robin Babbitt, unbelievable guy.  He's



     18     forgotten more than all of us in this room combined



     19     could ever know probably, and we appreciate it.



     20     You are an unbelievable asset.



     21          Also finally the Commissioners for reading all



     22     this.  There was a lot to read.  And those of you



     23     know me, well, my twenty-eight years on the



     24     City-County Council I read everything and I drove



     25     people nuts.  I like that and I like all the
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      1     information that we've had.



      2          So with that, welcome to Indiana, Eldorado.



      3          (collective thank you)



      4          (applause)



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Do we have any old business?



      6     Any new business?



      7          Seeing none, we are adjourned.  Thank you.



      8



      9          (The meeting of the Indiana Horse Racing



     10     Commission adjourned at 1:10 p.m.)



     11



     12



     13



     14



     15



     16



     17



     18



     19



     20



     21



     22



     23



     24



     25
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      1  STATE OF INDIANA



      2  COUNTY OF MARION



      3



      4          I, Michele K. Gustafson, CRR-RPR, a



      5  Notary Public in and for said county and state, do



      6  hereby certify that the foregoing matter was taken



      7  down in stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to



      8  typewriting under my direction; and that the



      9  typewritten transcript is a true record of the



     10  Indiana Horse Racing Commission meeting;



     11          I do further certify that I am a disinterested



     12  person in this; that I am not a relative of the



     13  attorneys for any of the parties.



     14          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my



     15  hand and affixed my notarial seal this 27th day of



     16  July, 2020.



     17



     18



     19          



     20		  



     21  My Commission expires:

         August 31, 2025

     22

         Job No. 154227

     23



     24



     25
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1 1 AGENDA
2 2 I. Call to Oder
3 I'l. Approval of menorandum and executive session
3 | NDI ANA HCRSE RACI NG OOMM SSI ON MEETI NG menor andum from the May 28, 2020, neeting
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5 JULY 13, 2020 1. Agenda
5
6 11:05 A M 1. Consideration of Settlenment Agreenent between
7 6 IHRC Staff and Gabriel Saez.
8 AT THE 7 2. Consideration of the follow ng proposed
enmergency rule change: 71 IAC 9-4-7 Pick (n)
9 I NDI ANA GRAND RACI NG AND CASI NO 8 pool s
10 4100 NORTH M CHI GAN RCAD 9 3. Review of conmission rulings - May 11, 2020
11 SHELBYVI LLE, I N 46176 through July 9, 2020.
12 10
4. Hearing, Deliberation and Issuance of
13 11 Decision relating to Petition of
14 TAKEN BY: El dorado Resorts, Inc., Notice of Hearing and
15 M CHELE K. GUSTAFSON, CRR RPR, 12 Pre-Hearing Order on Petition of
El dorado Resorts, Inc., for Approval to
16 NOTARY PUBLIC 13 Transfer Permts and Licenses.
17 14 I1V. dd Business
18 15 V. New Busi ness
16 VI.  Adj our nment
19 17
20 18
21 19
20
22 21
23 22
24 23
24
25 25
Page 2 Page 4
1 APPEARANCES 1 CHAL RVAN BCRST:  kay. Ve'll call this
2 onilio Borst Chai 2 neeting of the Indiana Horse Racing Commission to
11p borst, alrnman
3 Greg Schenkel, Vice-chairman 3 or.der‘, July 13, 2020: V%. wel cone all of you here.
George Pillow 4 Thisis certainly weird times. The |ast neeting
4 WIliam McCarty (by tel ephone) 5 was virtual and this one we're all nasked peopl e.
5 Deena Pitnman, Executive Director 6 0 we appr eci ate you bei ng her e.
A Robi n Babbi tt 7 | see that we have a quorum n the phone is
Noah Jackson, Esq. 8 QII MCarty, comm ssioner. Conm ssioner MCarty
7 | NDI ANA HORSE RACI NG COMM SSI ON 9 is on the phone, so we have four nenbers here. ¢
1302 North Meridian Street, Suite 175 10 just have to thank Indiana G and because they' ve
8 Indianapolis, IN 46202 11  had so nuch on their plate in the last week, the
12 12 derby and plus all this other stuff, and for them
1 13 to make the accommodations for us, we just can't
12 14 thank you enough. Because we tried to get into the
13 15 Sate Miseum as you know, but they weren't going
14 16 tolet us let the public in. W tried to get
12 17 governnent buildings, State Government, well,
1
17 18 they're not open. So Deena scranbl ed, and
18 19 Indiana Gand was so gracious to let us be here and
19 20 we certainly thank you. So that's why we're here
20 21 anyway.
21 22 There's going to be a sign-up sheet. Is the
22 . .
23 23 sign-up sheet in the back?
24 24 MR BABBITT: The sign-up sheet is in the back
25 25 on the bar.






Page 5 Page 7
1 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  There's no beverages, so 1 jockeys were unseated fromtheir nounts. After
2 sorry. You can go to the bar and sign up if you 2 reviewng the video of the race post-incident, the
3 want to speak, and then you will be sworn in when 3 stewards suspended M. Saez for 30 days for
4 the appropriate tine cones. 4 careless riding, citing a violation of three
5 At thistime |I'dlike to swear in our court 5 separate rules. M. Saez tinely filed an appeal of
6 reporter, Mchele Qustafson. Raise your right 6 the ruling.
7 hand. 7 After settlenent discussions Saff and
8 (At this tinme the oath was admnistered to the | 8 M. Saez reached the agreenent that you have before
9 court reporter by Chairnan Borst.) 9 you. M. Saez agreed to dismss his appeal and
10 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. 10 serve the entirety of the 30-day suspension. In
11 (kay. So we'll have the approval of the 11 return, the ruling against M. Saez was amended to
12 ninutes or the menorandumof My 28, 2020. 12 state that he was considered eligible to ride
13 COW SSI ONER PILLONV  Second. 13  stakes races during the suspension period, provided
14 CHAI RVAN BORST:  Been noved? Do | have a 14  he agreed to add one day to his suspension for
15 notion first? 15 every day that he rode in a stakes race.
16 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: | think George noved. | 16 A this tinme | woul d respectfully request the
17 COMM SSI ONER PILLON S0 noved. 17 Commission's approval of the settlement agreenent.
18 COMWM SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Second. 18 CHA RVAN BCRST:  Have any notions? Questions?
19 CHAI RVMAN BCRST:  Any questi ons? 19 Move acceptance of the settlement agreenent?
20 Al those in favor say "aye." 20 COW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Moved.
21 THE COWM SSICN  "Aye.” 21 OOW SSI ONER MECARTY:  Second.
22 CHAI RVAN BCRST: Do we have to do the roll 22 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Moved by
23 cal? 23 Commi ssi oner Schenkel , seconded by
24 MR JACKSCN  Yes, sir. |'msorry, yes. 24 Conmissioner MCarty. Further questions?
25 Because Conmissioner McCarty's on the phone, we'll |25 Rol|-call vote.

Page 6 Page 8
1 doaroll-call vote. 1 MR JACKSCN  Thank you. Chairman Borst.
2 CHAI RVAN BORST:  Ckay. W'l do a roll-call 2 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Aye.
3 vote. 3 MR JACKSCN Vi ce-chairman Schenkel .
4 MR JACKSCN  Chairnan Borst. 4 COWM SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.
5 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Aye. 5 MR JACKSON  Cormi ssioner Pillow
6 MR JACKSCN Vi ce-chairman Schenkel . 6 COMM SSI ONER PILLON  Aye.
7 COMM SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Aye. 7 MR JAKSCN  And Conmi ssi oner MCarty.
8 MR JACKSCN  Cormissioner Pillow 8 COW SSI ONER MeCARTY:  Aye.
9 COWM SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Aye. 9 MR JACKSCN  Thank you.
10 MR JACKSCN  And Conmi ssi oner MCarty. 10 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  The vote is four to nothing.
11 COW SSI ONER MCARTY:  Aye. 11 Next on the agenda i s consideration of the
12 MR JACKSON  Thank you. 12 follow ng proposed energency rul e change on
13 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. V@'I| get this 13 pick (n) pools. Noah, you're going to take that
14 down yet. 14 one too?
15 Next on the agenda is consideration of the 15 MR JACKSON  Thank you, yes.
16  settlenment agreenent between the Conmission Staff 16 Cormi ssi oners, you have before you a single
17 and Gabriel Saez. Noah, are you going to handl e 17 rule change to the Rule 71 IAC 9-4-7. At the
18 that one? 18 My 28 neeting you were asked to vote on
19 MR JACKSCN  Thank you. 19 Indiana Gand s request for pronotional takeout
20 Cormi ssi oners, you have in your packet the 20 reduction on pick five wagering. The Conmi ssion
21 amended settlement agreenent that was fully 21 unani nously voted to approve the change. However,
22 executed in July 2020 between Cormission Staff and |22 when Indiana Gand attenpted to institute the
23 jockey Gabriel Saez. M. Saez rode in the fourth 23 change fol | owing the Conm ssion approval, there
24 race at Indiana Gand on June 17, 2020. During the |24 were sone issues with the rule before you now The
25 fourth race an incident occurred where three 25 proposed | anguage has been tested by |ndiana Gand
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1 and we believe that all issues regarding the 1 petition. The matter will be heard and will

2 approved wager fromMy 28 will be resolved with 2 continue with appropriate recess until conpleted.

3 this proposed change to the rul es. 3 The record will be closed at the conclusion of the

4 At this time Coomission Staff respectful ly 4 hearing and the Conmission will then deliberate and

5 requests your approval of the proposed rule change, | 5 decide whether the petition will be approved,

6 and the change will be nade under the Conm ssion's 6 disapproved, or approved with conditions. Does not

7 energency adoption procedure, which neans that it 7 conprehend di scussion during the deliberation of

8 will gointo effect as soon as it is filed. | just | 8 the petitioner or other interested parties.

9 also wanted to nention that the rule was put in 9 I now defer to our Conmission counsel to give

10 front of stakehol ders and we did not receive any 10 us sonme housekeeping matters.

11 comments on it. 11 MR BABBITT: Thank you, Chair Borst.

12 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. Any questi ons, 12 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Robin Babbitt.

13 Commi ssi on menber s? 13 MR BABBITT: | appreciate that. 1'd like to

14 Do we have a motion? 14 cover a fewthings before the presentation is

15 OOW SSI ONER PILLON  So noved. 15 actually started. The first is that pursuant to

16 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Second. 16 the pre-hearing order, the GComm ssion submtted an

17 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Moved by Conmissioner Pillow |17 exhibit |ist which was captioned Exhibits A through

18 second by Cormissioner Schenkel. Any further 18 Wwith particul ar subsections.

19  discussion? 19 CHAI RMAN BCRST:  |'s your ni crophone on?

20 Rol | -cal | vote. 20 MR BABBITT: Is this not working?

21 MR JACKSON  Chai rnan Borst. 21 M5. PITMAN  There you go.

22 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  Aye. 22 MR BABBITT: | haven't been singing karaoke

23 MR JACKSCN Vi ce-chairman Schenkel . 23 enough lately to figure out howto do this.

24 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Aye. 24 So we have all of the exhibits designated.

25 MR JACKSCN  Cormi ssioner Pillow 25 The exhibits came in wthout objection. | would
Page 10 Page 12

1 OOW SSI ONER PILLON  Aye. 1 note that we had a catchall category, category W

2 MR JACKSON  And Gormi ssioner MCarty. 2 that conprehended that if there were any letters or

3 OOW SSI ONER MECARTY:  Aye. 3 submssions provided in response to the public

4 MR JACKSCN  Thank you. 4 version of the staff report that we woul d nake

5 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Passes four to not hing. 5 those a part of the record as well. Those

6 No. 3 on the agenda is just the review of 6 rmaterials in category Winclude M. Reeg's letter

7 Commission rulings fromMay 11 to July 6. It'snot | 7 to the Executive Drector dated July 9, 2020.

8 anything we have to take a vote on, so that's just 8 There was a submission nade by Nat HIl in

9 for our edification. 9 opposition which was a total of 13 pages. In

10 No. 4, hearing, deliberation and issuance of 10 addition, there was a |l etter fromMyor Broderi ck,

11 decision relating to petition of Hdorado Resorts, |11 the Aty of Anderson, to the Comm ssion in support

12 Inc., notice of hearing and pre-hearing order on 12 of the petition dated July 9, 2020. There was an

13 petition of Hdorado Resorts, Inc., for approval to |13 additional letter fromthe | SA again in support of

14 transfer pernmits and |icenses. 14 the staff reconmendations in the transfer petition,

15 The purpose of this hearing is for ER, the 15 that was dated July 9. There was a letter from

16 petitioner, an opportunity to make the presentation |16 |ITCGBA in support of the transfer of petition that

17 relating to their transfer of petitionto the 17 cane in, | believe, on the 10th of July.

18 Indiana Horse Racing Conmssion, an opportunity for |18 Thereafter, we received a letter in support of the

19 the executive director to offer any testinmony that |19 transfer of petition fromDean Wllie Reed, the

20 she wishes to provide in order to suppl enent the 20 chair of Purdue's College of Veterinary Medicine,

21 record, the Commission an opportunity to ask 21 dated July 10, 2020. Lastly, at 11:57 last night,

22 questions of any party, representatives, and 22 soit was actually dated July 12, | got a letter in

23  witnesses who may testify at the hearing, and an 23 support of the petition fromSeve Bateson, the

24 opportunity for non-party organizations and persons | 24 president of the Chio Harness Horsemen's

25 to provide testinony in support or adverse to the 25 Association.
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1 Those materials have all been circulated to 1 past. So please identify who you are when you
2 the Commission and we woul d request that the chair 2 approach the podiumto address the Commission.
3 nmake Commission Exhibits A through Winclusive a 3 That also helps the court reporter as she's going
4 part of the record of these proceedings. 4 through and putting the record of the proceedi ngs
5 CHAI RVMAN BCRST: | grant the request to make 5 together.
6 all Exhibits Athrough Wfromthe Commission's 6 There is a public comment section, and that
7 exhibit list part of the record. 7 public conment section based upon the notice that
8 MR BABBITT: Then the next thing that we 8 was issued will be linted to those people that are
9 wouldlike to point out is that we filed a request 9 here, because | don't think the technol ogy woul d
10 for official notice pursuant to 10 support any other position and, quite frankly, the
11 Indiana Code 4-21.5-3-26(f). This was filed and 11  notice nade clear that if you were going to provide
12 dated tinmely on July 8, 2020. The basic purpose of |12 public input you needed to cone in person. Soif
13 thisis sinply to make clear -- and | don't think 13 you're here and you woul d like to submt any
14 that anyone will contest it for purposes of the 14  testinony during the public input section, please
15 proceeding -- that Edorado, Caesars, and fornerly |15 sign the sign-up sheet in the back and at the
16  Centaur were all subject to the statute rules and 16 appropriate time we'll bring that up to the front.
17 adnministrative regulations that are cited in the 17 Now, any witness who will testify during this
18 request for official notice. 18 particul ar proceeding nust be sworn by the chairnan
19 The Cormmi ssion, because we have a long history |19 so that obviously the petitioner knows who they're
20 that has sort of brought us to this point today, 20 going to have address the Commi ssion, so those
21 the Conmissionis entitled to take official notice |21 people will stand to be sworn en masse by the
22 of other proceedings before the Commission. Soin |22 chair. Those of you who are going to speak during
23 2 we are asking that the GConmission take official 23 the public comrent section, please stand and be
24 notice of its final order inre: Centaur's 24 sworn as well because it's inportant for everyone
25 acquisition of Indiana Gand dated January 7, 2013, |25 to be sworn before they give testinony.

Page 14 Page 16
1 the Coomission's final order inre: the approval of | 1 The Commission will assume that all wtnesses
2 theinitial distribution agreement dated 2 have been sworn at the begi nning of the
3 Decenber 10, 2013, and the Conmission's final order | 3 presentation of evidence unless instructed
4 inre: Caesars acquisition of Hoosier Park and 4 otherw se by the person or that party's
5 Indiana Gand with related permts and |icenses 5 representative. Soit's your responsibility to
6 dated July 10, 2018. 6 nake sure you're sworn and if you cone up and
7 So we woul d ask at this tine, M. Chair, that 7 address the Commssion we're going to assune that
8 you grant our request to take official notice of 8 you were.
9 all of the things referenced in the request for 9 Wth the pernission of the chair, the
10 official notice which | have just described. 10 Commissioners or the Cormission's counsel nay ask
11 CHAI RVAN BCRST: | grant that counsel's 11 questions of any witness at any tine or after the
12 request to take official notice of all the 12 presentation is conplete. So there nay be a
13 docunents and | aws referenced in the request for 13 situation where a Conm ssioner has a question that
14 official notice filed on July 8 and direct that 14 they want to address to you. They obviously with
15 those be made a part of the record. 15 the chair's pernmission will be able to do so. |If
16 MR BABBITT: Thank you, M. Chair. 16 not, that doesn't nean that they won't ask it
17 Then lastly I'll get some |ast housekeeping 17  because it could cone up at the end of the
18 details covered and then we'll turn this over to 18 presentation.
19 the chair to turn it over to the petitioners. 19 That's pretty much it for housekeepi ng
20 The first thing that | would note is that for |20 matters. Unless the Cormission or the petitioners
21 the benefit of the Commission and the court 21 have anything el se they'd like to address, |I'm
22 reporter, it's very inportant that each person who |22 ready to turn it back over to you, M. Chair, so
23 addresses the Cormission identify thensel ves. 23 that you can preside over the hearing.
24 Qven the fact that we're all wearing face masks, 24 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Seeing none, just to give you
25 that's even nore inportant than it has been in the |25 an idea of howthe hearing's going to go. There'll
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1 Dbe an opening statement, then there'll be a 1 this point today. | know this has been nuch | onger
2 presentation by ER, the opening statenent by ER, 2 process than any of us were anticipating. W
3 there'll be testinony of the Conmission Staff and 3 didn't expect to be wearing nmasks. | personally
4 public testinony, then any rebuttal or final 4 appreciate you allowing us to cone meet you here in
5 statenment, and then we'll close the record, and 5 person. It's inportant to us to start these
6 then we'll have a deliberation and decision onit. 6 relationships on a face-to-face basis.
7 So that way you know how things will go. Sol'm 7 | also want to thank all the various
8 not going to forget anybody. 8 horsenen's groups that spent a great deal of tine
9 Al those who intend to testify, if you woul d 9 neeting with us, local community leaders. It's a
10 stand and raise your right hand, we'll just do it 10 great thing to see how nuch pride the entire area
11 all en nasse. |f sonebody conmes later and decides, |11 takes in these businesses and it shows. It showed
12 we'll swear themin. 12 as we've gotten into this starting a little over a
13 (At this tinme the oath was admnistered to any | 13  year ago.
14 witnesses.) 14 You know, |'d say as | was wal king the floor
15 CHA RVAN BCRST: Al right. Gkay. So we're 15 this morning, it's a beautiful property, continuing
16  here obviously this is a nonmentous occasion and 16 to get better. The addition of tables on the
17 horse racing in Indiana has taken a long tine to 17 casino side. V¢ knowthat none of this is here
18 get to this point. Some people don't know the 18 without the racing comunity. This cones with the
19 whole story, but there's a certain State Senator 19 responsibility to be a steward of that business,
20 who spent over twenty years to get this through the |20 and we understand that Centaur set a very high bar
21 legislature and had to change the 21 to be a leader in the space in these tracks. You
22 Indiana Constitution because horse racing was 22 seeit. These tracks are as good as any in the
23  deened to be a lottery and so lottery had to conme 23 country, and we understand it's a sol emn
24 in and then horse racing. It started about 1969 24 responsibility to take control of them
25 and finally 1989, | guess, is when we had the 25 | will tell you | read Executive Drector

Page 18 Page 20
1 legislation and racing began about five years 1 PFtman's report. | read the Reed report. 1"l
2 later. | lived through a lot of that because that 2 take that on right out of the box, and |I'm not
3 Sate Senator happened to have been ny dad. 3 going to stand in front of you and of fer excuses.
4 So I'mreally honored to be here at this 4  Wat I'll tell youis what | read in the Reed
5 juncture of horse racing. As we all know, we've 5 report was not acceptable to ne. | knowit's not
6 got afamly here between the horsenen, between the | 6 acceptable to this Commssion. You' ve seen us nake
7 tracks, between the Conmission Saff, 7 changes immediatel y upon the issuance of it,
8 Commissioners, and | think ER understands that and | 8 bringing in Joe Mrris, who is our director of
9 | hope they do because we want to continue that. 9 racing, is going to be the man on the ground here
10 W've got a good thing going in Indiana and we do 10 wthyou. But | also understand that you can't fix
11 not want it to go downhill. Ve want it toonly get |11 that in a couple of nonths by hiring one guy. It's
12 better. Hopefully that's where we're going to go. |12 got to be a coomtnent fromthe conpany.
13 So with that, | don't know who's going to give | 13 Going back to Executive Drector Pitman's
14 the opening statement for ER, but if you'd like to |14 report, we've seen the list of conditions in that
15 cone up and, again, state your nane so the 15 report. \¢é understand that this Commission, if
16 transcriber will be able to get it all right. 16 they give us the opportunity to own these tracks,
17 MR REEG Mrning. |'mTomReeg, chief 17 will need to hold our feet to the fire, and we are
18 executive officer of Edorado. Is this working? 18 ready and willing to accept all of the conditions
19 MR BABBITT: It is. 19 inthat report.
20 CHAI RVMAN BCRST: | think so. Maybe a little 20 As | start to go through presentation, what
21 higher. There you go. 21 I1'dsay is |"'mpresuning that everybody sawor is
22 MR REEG TomReeg, chief executive officer 22 aware of what went on Friday at the Indiana Gam ng
23 of Hdorado. Chairnan Borst, Conm ssioners, 23  Conmission, so our renarks today are focused on
24 Executive Director Fitman, Noah, Robin, thank you 24 racing. V¢ have the broader deal slides in the
25 for all the work that everybody's put into get to |25 back of the presentation. V¥ re happy to go
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1 through and cover any ground that you'd like to 1 Anthony Carano, who you will hear fromlater, nany

2 cover, but we're focused on the inpact on racingin| 2 of you in the roomhave net, and Anthony reports to

3 this transaction. 3 ne so Rck and Eric go up through Joe to Anthony

4 So if we could put the presentation up on 4 tome. As| said, you have senior focus on this

5 video and start on slide 1. 5 business fromas high up as it gets in our conpany,

6 MB. PITMAN Do you have somebody that's going | 6 up to and including the board.

7 to be doing that? 7 As all of you are aware, on Friday the

8 M REEG | haveit. 8 Gaming Cormission approved us with the condition

9 CHAI RVAN BCORST:  How about that? There you 9 that we sell three assets post-transaction. Shoul d

10 go. 10  you provide us the opportunity to own the tracks,

11 MR REEG Thank you. 11 I'mwlling to comit to you that the tracks will

12 And |'d also tell you Joe is going to be your |12 not be utilized to settle those conditions. It

13  man on the ground, but 1'mnot comng in here and 13 would be Evansville, Southern Indiana, and Hanmond.

14 leaving again. You're going to see ne. This is 14 You know, we are excited to get noving. W&

15 extremely inportant to our conpany. These 15 intend to invest $60 mllion into these properties

16 properties are going to be significant growh 16 on the casino side. It'Il expand the table games

17 drivers for our conpany and we're nmaking serious 17 operation. \'re conmtting to extend the

18 commtrents here, and 1'mgoing to see to it 18 12 percent share to horsenen for a significant

19 personally that we live up to the coomtments that |19 period of time. Ve wll hit the ground running in

20 we're naking, should we get the opportunity from 20 terns of that expansion, which will bring forward

21 this Comnmission to do so. 21 that revenue as quick as we possibly can.

22 As | said, we've appointed a new corporate 22 W& cone out of this transaction, to briefly

23 leadership teamdedicated to racing, brought in 23 touch on the broader transaction, with $4 hillion

24 Joe Morris. V& enpower |ocal leadership, we don't |24 of liquidity as a conbined conpany, so we can nake

25 do things on centralized basis generally, soit's 25 the investnents that are necessary in these tracks.
Page 22 Page 24

1 the people that are on the ground every day that 1 | contrast that with Caesars, as large as they are,

2 you deal with here that are going to be enpowered 2 inthe nodel that they submtted to all of the

3 to nmake deci sions. 3 regulators that put those transactions on pause

4 V¢ have made cormitnents across all aspects of | 4 because they were preserving liquidity. Sothis

5 the business to reinvest in racing, to inprove the 5 transaction allows us to nove that forward and get

6 racing product, to focus on equine safety, we made 6 noving and get the revenue flowing as quickly as

7 comitnents to local comunities, and we're going 7 possible. As you know, we've also committed to

8 toinplenent narketing inprovenents that we'll go 8 $25 nillion mninmumevery ten years into the tracks

9 through in detail as we get through the 9 thenselves. Vé're excited to put that noney to

10 presentation. | should tell you that Joe Mrris 10  work as well.

11 will follow e and that Anthony Carano, our chi ef 11 The last issue that | would touch on before

12 operating officer, wll follow Joe. 12 turning to Joe that we've had sone conversation

13 & have a board nenber, Mke Pegram who 13 about throughout the process is as part of the

14 happens to be a former Indiana Derby winner with 14 transaction there is a call arrangerment for the

15 Lookin At Lucky. As we started to respond to what |15 real estate underlying the tracks. That is not in

16 we sawin the Reed report, Mke introduced us to 16  front of the Conmission today, as you know \Mat |

17 Joe Morris, who is well known within the conmunity |17 would tell youis the $4 billion of liquidity that

18 and has really hit the ground running for us. He's |18 we have post-transaction and now with the three

19 been a breath of fresh air. Over forty years in 19 casino sales on the gamng side should bring us

20 the business in many different roles, track 20 over $5 billion liquidity makes it unlikely that we

21 managenent, horsenen associ ations, has been an 21 woul d exercise. In terns of our present

22 owner on the standardbred and thoroughbred side, 22 circunstance, we have no intention of exercising,

23 and involvenent in a boarding facility as well. 23  but we can't speak to what our partner will

24 Qur structure is the followng: Joe will 24 ultinately do at the call.

25 report directly to chief operating officer 25 But we do understand that nothing wll happen
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1 there without we and Veche (sp.) comng forward to 1 nmanagers did lack authority and they were mired in
2 this Commission and convincing you that that's in 2 a bureaucracy. Just took too long sonetines to get
3 the best interest of the state of Indiana and 3 a decision.
4 particularly the racing industry in Indiana. So | 4 Wen | was talking with Anthony about taking
5 wanted to speak to that directly even though that's | 5 this position, | had the same three concerns.
6 not directly in front of you today. And we are 6 Anthony, |'ve been doing this for a long tine. |
7 absolutely confortable with the | anguage rel ative 7 need to have the authority to run the racing
8 tothat particular piece that's in 8 program | need to be able to put the teans
9 Executive Director Pitman's report to the 9 together; and if | need an answer, | need to be
10 Conmi ssi on. 10 able to get up the chain quick, get the answer.
11 So with that, I wll turnit over to 11 It's a fluid situation running racetracks and you
12 Joe Mrris to get into detail on the racing side 12 got to keep on the nove with them
13 and I'Il be back to deliver concl usion. 13 That chart there enables that. That fixes
14 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. 14 that. | would say that racing is dynamc to
15 V¢l cone. 15 itself. The racing people need to be naking the
16 M MRR'S Thank you. Joe Morris, senior 16 racing decisions. W fix that in this case, and
17 vice president of racing for Hdorado. M. Chair, |17 this structure actually manages itself. So thisis
18  Commi ssioners, horsenen in the room good norning. |18 part of what we' re doing to make this workabl e.
19 Thank you for having this meeting today. 1'd like |19 & can go to the next slide.
20 to acknow edge Doug Reed first. |'ve read that 20 MR REEG There's a clicker in front of you,
21 report. He did adarn good job with that. Lot of |21 Joe.
22 work. And I've known Doug for many, many years, 22 M MRRS Al right. M technical
23 about his age actually with forty years in the 23  expertise is far bel ow ny racetrack.
24 industry nyself as he does. 24 CHAI RMAN BCRST:  Join the cl ub.
25 | was on the University of Arizona's advisory |25 MR MRRS Sreanined structure for
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1 board for a nunber of years and Doug put ne there 1 business decisions on racing matters. As | said, |
2 and used to work with the students. He would place | 2 have the authority to work with the teans and nake
3 interns at the different tracks that 1've worked at | 3 those decisions. Teambeing the inportant part.
4 over the years and hired nany people out of that 4 No one person can run a racetrack. There's too
5 program \W've got two in the state out of that 5 nmany noving parts. \¥ develop a team | look for
6 program \W&'ve got Eric Halstromand Dan Fick, two | 6 the brightest people | can find and we put them
7 of the better racing ninds |I've ever worked with, 7 into those position. @od news here, R ck More,
8 right fromthat school. 8 FEric Hilstrom Enily Gaskin. They're working here.
9 Wien | look at the Reed report, | cone up with| 9 V& pronote fromwithin, we work fromwthin, and we
10 a couple of takeaways. One, he points out on two 10 col |l aborate on running these racetracks.
11 or three occasions in it each property that 11 Communi cation's key to any business. You need
12 Hdorado had did have a unique set of circunstances |12 to be talking with your partner. In this case when
13 at one nonent. They weren't all the same. They 13 I'mnaking a decision, what are the horsemen going
14  were different in different areas and different 14 to think about it, what are the ganblers going to
15 things happened with them The second part that 15 think about it, how are our enpl oyees going to work
16  he, probably his biggest point he nakes, is 16 and hel p execute it. Those are the seats | try to
17 Hdorado and the tracks |acked expertise in their 17 put nyself in. You can only do that if you're on
18 managenment. There's no arguing that. That is the |18 the property. You can't run a racetrack renote.
19 case. 19 You got to be there day to day, talking wth your
20 Wen they bought those tracks from MR they 20 horsenen, talking with your custoners, owners,
21  had a lady named Rosenary Wllians. She was a good |21 drivers, and your enpl oyees to nake this work.
22 track operator. She operated the three groups. 22 Qperational plans, every track |'ve ever been
23 She retired probably year and a hal f, two years 23 at, you do a yearly plan. You subnit it to the
24 after that happened and didn't get replaced with 24 Commission as part of your licensing generally in
25 the expertise that needed to be there. The 25 other states, but you include your operations, you
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1 include your marketing plan, you include your 1  You know, the old days all you had was your
2 stakes schedul e, your purse |evels, your capital 2 custoners at the track so all you had to watch was
3 plans, and you do that by talking with your 3 your custoners at the track. Then you get into
4 partners. You talk with the horsemen on stakes, on | 4 when we started simulcast and it's pretty much the
5 purses. You get with your marketing teamand come 5 other tracks when they were going.
6 wupwthaplan. First thing you do is you review 6 The biggest part of everybody's handl e today
7 the year before's, what'd we do right, what'd we do | 7 is the conputer, and you' ve got to give thema
8 wong, rely onthat, buildit into the new plan 8 chance to get into your races. You ve got to have
9 going forward. Take that, you present it to your 9 liquidity for themto cone into the races. V¢'ve
10 horsenen, to your Conmission Staff. You get input |10 reached out to themand they' re enbracing Scioto.
11 fromyour ganbl ers and you put those forward. 11 Sinilar to Hoosier's product, it's full fields and
12 V& work with horsenen, and you'll hear that 12 it's alot of races.
13 today. | nean, | talk to ny horsermen on a daily 13 This year in 2020 we've run 550 races. Same
14 basis. | ama horseman. | racehorses. | raise 14 period a year ago we had run 487 races. Gdve ne a
15 horses. 1've got 13 of themin ny barn in 15 conpetitive race, |'mgoing to run the thing. It's
16  Lexington, Kentucky. It's what |'ve done ny whole |16 not going to sit. \V¥'re in the racing business.
17 life. 17 Wirking with our horsenen on qualifiers, that
18 Reed kind of takes our past into consideration |18 gives you the formfor the horse, the ganbl ers need
19 and he talks about that. Here's our present. This |19 toseeit. Ve fill inall of you ours so they can
20 is our first experinment with this new structure, 20 go back and look at the horse's form A year ago
21 Scioto Downs. Becane the first harness track in 21 for the whol e 90 days we ran 138 qualifiers. To
22 North Arerica to reopen. \¢ had a chance to do 22 date, we've run 258 qualifiers. V' re there with
23 that. | called Anthony. | said, Anthony, | think |23 the horsenen. V¢'re working with them Wé're
24 we can be the first track in North Arerica open. 24 getting that product out in front of the betting
25 Hesaid | want to be the first track in 25 public.
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1 North Amverica open. | don't know when the casino. 1 | went to a neeting there early on with the
2 MNot that he didn't care, but | don't care when the 2 horsenen and sorme of our key people, and they
3 casino opens. Mke that the first track open. W 3 looked at ne and said, Wat are you going to do to
4 were able to do that. 4 nake this better, Joe? | said, Wat do you nean
5 & changed our wagering format. It was stale 5 what aml going to do? It's what are we going to
6 andit wasn't what the ganblers wanted. Brought in| 6 do. Thisis ateameffort. V&' re going to do
7 sone better commentary in talking to the ganblers, 7 what's right always. VW're going to do what's
8 aguy naned Gabe Prewitt there. W& changed the way | 8 right by our horsemen. \¢'re going to do what's
9 we placed our races into the program \¢ worked 9 right by our ganblers and our enpl oyees. That's
10 wth our horsenen to nake this happen. V¢ had 10 where it starts at a track. You do that
11  twelve straight days where we exceeded a mllion 11 consistently and you get that product out there,
12 dollars in handle. V&'ve done it three times nore |12 the financial results will follow That's happened
13 since. V¢ had one over $2 mllion. V& only had 13 for years and years the way we've done that, so we
14 three days as the only track in North America. W |14 enbrace that.
15 kept that run going. To date, we're still 15 The other inportant thing there is our track
16  averagi ng $860, 000. 16 surface and our maintenance. |'ve added track
17 Again, this is atrack that over the |ast 17  enployees. There wasn't enough there. | brought
18 five, six years has averaged somewhere around 18 in the Coons Brothers, Geg and Danny. | woul dn't
19  $215,000. So the results have been really good. 19 be at a harness track without them They are great
20 \V¢'ve bet $31 nillion in 36 days, a year ago on 90 |20 consultants. They have a worldwi de reputation.
21  days we bet $19.5 nillion. So we've nade a 21 They're part of our programthere at Scioto, and
22 difference there. W& got excitenment back into that {22 we've got norale at record |evel s with enpl oyees
23 place. 23 and with horsemen.
24 Part of it is the way we nanage our post 24 Gowh of Indiana racing, this is the highest
25 times. V@'ve been helping this area a little bit. |25 platformof any state I've ever cone in on. Wen
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1 the horsenen, the Commission, and |egislators put 1 end of the day is going towin and thisis a

2 this programtogether, you really got it right. | 2 60 nillion person list that we will be able to mne

3 nean, we're coming in at a high level here. (e 3 into and use to the benefit of Hoosier and G and.

4 thing we need, | believe, is sone nore big days. 4 Equi ne safety, human safety on the track,

5 WW've got Indiana Derby and Caks. Last Vednesday, 5  highest of priorities. | worked with the NTRA |

6 | nean, big day, record handle. \& need two or 6 was there when they devel oped the NTRA safety

7 three nore big days at Hoosier and we need to 7 alliance. EBEvery track | ranin California,

8 capitalize at Indiana Breeders Qrown at Hoosier. 8 thoroughbred track, was a part of that. Big

9 W're in conversations now with Breeders O own and 9 believer init. Ve wll stay with that group.

10 there's an opportunity maybe for Hoosier to be ona |10 We'Il work with the safety stewards and the

11  three-year cycle, Meadow ands, Wodbi ne, and 11  Conmission on other areas.

12 Hoosier, and we'd like to see that happen. 12 (ne of the things 1've always done is graph

13 On the quarter horse side of things, they're 13 the information. You re doing noisture readings.

14 having a record neet here this year also and we're |14 You're doi ng conpaction readings. You' re doing

15 hoping to work with themand the AGHA and get 15 conpaction on your turf. Gaph that and it'll tell

16 quarter horse Chal |l enge Chanpionship here and that |16 you a story over tine as conditions change.

17  could be their crown race. 17 W will have our industry experts -- as | said

18 Best-in-class racing, that's what you al ways 18 earlier, the Goons Brothers are already on -- and

19 strive for. If you' re in business, you want to be |19 |'ve always used science at racetracks. You need

20 best in class. Hoosier racetrack shoul d becone the |20 to be testing the viscosity of your gravel. You

21 nunber-one harness track in America. They have the |21 need to know the level of silt and the |evel of

22 facilities, they have the horses, driver quality, 22 clay. Your root structure on a turf course, you

23 horsemen. V¢ just need to get the handl e up some 23 need science to help deternine that. |'ve always

24 and we'll do that. 24 used Mck Peterson fromKentucky, but we wll

25 Indiana Gand, great product. The Mnday 25 continue to use that information. Science has to
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1 through Thursday schedul e is good. |ndiana Gand 1 be a part of what we're doing on our track

2 is the big signal on those days, so you're not 2 surfaces.

3 conpeting against sorme of the giants on a Friday or | 3 The reinvestnent in racing, we understand that

4 Saturday. You get to showcase it where you're the | 4 we are starting at a high, high level here in

5 big signal. 5 Indiana and we need to keep adding to that. Veé'll

6 & need to continue to advertise and 6 comit to the |ong-termagreenent on purses at

7 pronotional spend. \¢'ve |ooked at what they've 7 12 percent. Ve'Il commit to support future

8 doneinthe past. Vé've looked at their schedules. | 8 legislative efforts to nake it 12 percent. |

9 They spend a decent anmount of noney on their 9 believe it reads 10 to 12 now and we' Il work with

10 pronotions. V¢ will add to that as a part of what |10 the horsenen and the first opportunity we get we'll

11 we do and we'll particularly add to it when we're 11 gotothe legislation and we'll try to nake it

12 pronoting our big race days. 12 instead of 10 to 12 percent we'll make it

13 Qoss pronotion, utilization, not only between | 13 12 percent.

14 the two tracks, between the casinos. 12 percent of |14 V' Il continue to run at minimumthe same

15  our purse nmoney cones fromthe casinos. W need to |15 nunber of race days. As | said, | like to race.

16 be tying into that. As a part of if this deal goes | 16 There could be a chance for nore possibly in the

17 through, there'll be six other tracks that we can 17 future.

18 put together and | everage with each other and it'll |18 OB facilities, first class. VIl maintain

19 make the Indiana tracks stronger as a part of that. |19 our racing | eadership positions. As | said, it

20 Anthony's committed to another 10 percent in 20 takes ateam | always try to find the brightest

21 advertising and pronotional spend for 2020. A 21 to be on that team

22 Hoosier we'll use that on Breeders Qup. 22 More in reinvesting of racing, there's a new

23 The ot her huge advantage is Caesars Rewards. 23 capital fund that will conme if this deal goes

24 There's not another racetrack group that'll have 24 through. It's $25 mllion to be invested over a

25 (Caesars Rewards. He with the biggest list at the 25 10-year period. \¢'ve already agreed to the
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1 10-year Caesars capital program Now we're 1 expand the properties, and |'Il go through a couple
2 agreeing to this. First shot, first ideas onthat, | 2 of pictures. |'msure you ve seen themalready,
3  we need sone nore stalls here. V& don't really 3 and we're happy to come in front of you again and
4 control our horse popul ation destination. V¢ need 4 update you on progress as we get through this.
5 another nunber of stalls to hel p make sure we've 5 As you nmay know, the current conpany in
6 got the nunber of horses we need to put the product | 6 Caesars has paused these projects due to GOV D, but
7 on and we need nore dormroons for our groons, and 7 we're here today to conmit to you that we wll nove
8 wewll work to do both of those. 8 forward day one with your blessing on the
9 At Hoosier we need to cone up with an owner's 9 expansion. The investnent into these facilities
10 area. V¢ don't do enough to distinguish, 10 wll result inincreased visitation, exposure to
11 differentiate our owners versus our regular fans. 11  racing, and revenue opportunities for the racing
12 So we need to cone up with an area that's a IP 12 industry. So very exciting times and a very bright
13 area for them V¢ have enough horses in the state. |13 future for these two properties here in Indiana.
14 \%¢ don't have enough owners to own, which neans 14 As we nove forward to the next pages, this is
15 trainers end up owning too nany of the horses, so 15 Harrah's Hoosier Park. So we'll be expanding right
16 we need to do owner inprovenent. 16  off the front of Hoosier Park, nore roomfor
17 Alot of states |'ve been in, too, you spend 17 tables, slots, and sone non-ganing anenities. Then
18 all your tine arguing about track surface or a barn |18 at this property here we'll be addi ng about 35 more
19 areathat's not up to par or equipnent. V& don't 19 tables, a live poker room nore slot nachines, and,
20 have that challenge here. So our conversations are |20 again, sone non-gamng amenities that help draw
21 going to be how do we get nore Indiana breds on the |21 nore crowds, nmore peopl e cone out and see the
22 ground, thoroughbred, harness, and quarter horse. 22 beautiful tracks and the great racing product you
23 Qeat conversation. Everybody can collaborate to 23 have here.
24 that. Howdo we get nore owners, another great 24 To nove to the next and tal k about our
25 conversation. Cone up with sone ideas on howto 25 comtnent to racing, |'ve got to start by thanking
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1 attract nore owners into our business. 1 the presidents and the directors of the racing
2 Then we're going to add a nillion a year to 2 associations here in Indiana. They' ve spent a
3 purses '20 through '22 as a junp-start on the 3 tremendous anount of tinme with nyself and ny team
4 inpact of our tables. That will gointo the 4 really getting to know us, getting to know our
5 purses. V¢'Il work with the horsenmen, see what 5 conpany, and they' ve been fantastic to deal wth.
6 levels and what conditions they want to put that 6 |'mhappy to report today that we've got very
7 into. 7 strong relations. It's a beginning of a
8 Racing is very bright here. VW& ook forward 8 relationship. As | tell themall the tine, our
9 toparticipatinginit. There's nothing tofix. | | 9 words only nean so nuch. \¢'ve got to prove to
10 think we can polish it alittle bit, but there's 10 themthat we're here and we're going to be great
11 really nothing to fix. It's a heck of a problem 11 partners, but we're excited to do so.
12 | will hand it back over to Anthony Carano. 12 V¢' ve worked with themto conme up with what we
13 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. 13  believe a very strong plan to keep these tracks as
14 MR CARANQ Thank you, Joe. 14 the gold standard in the country. You guys have
15 M. Chairman, nenbers of the Conm ssion, 15 done an incredible job here in Indiana, and we just
16 Anthony Carano, president and chief operating 16 can't wait to make themeven better, as Joe and Tom
17 officer of Hdorado Resorts. It's an honor and a 17  have said before.
18 privilege to be in front of you today. | want to 18 W're comtting to fulfilling the renaining
19 thank Executive Drector Pitman, Noah, Robin for 19 years of the financial conmtnent to the Centaur
20 all the incredible work you guys have put into 20 Equine Specialty Hospital in Shelbyville. That's a
21 this. It's been areal teameffort and they' ve 21 very inportant project to us, and we're al so going
22 done an excellent job -- 22 torebrand that as Caesars Hospital, further
23 As Tomsaid, we are very excited about the 23 showing our cormitnment to the industry and the
24 future and the expansions of these two beautiful 24 health and safety throughout the industry.
25 properties. \é're going to nove very quickly to 25 W' re going to work with and help fund with
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1 industry partners an update to the Horse Racing 1 The state will al so have the continued support

2 Econonic Inpact Study. W're going to continue to 2 of the Caesars Foundation. It's a great foundation

3 support the Indiana Horse Racing Hall of Fane. W 3 that we think we can make even better. | wll

4 know how inportant the legacy of this board is, so 4 personally be sitting on the board of that

5 wewll coomt to continuing that and continuing to| 5 foundation to nake sure that we're inpacting the

6 support the Enpire of Hope race horse aftercare 6 local communities where we do business.

7 initiatives, another very inportant initiative that | 7 Wth that, inclosing 1'd just like to say a

8 we've had a lot of discussions about. 8 couple things. This job is just not another job

9 Wen we tal k about our commitrnent to | ocal 9 for nme, the conpany's just not another conpany, and

10 communities, over the past year we've had the 10 this transaction's just not another transaction.

11 distinct pleasure to neet with Mayor DeBaun, 11 This is a conpany that ny grandfather built over

12 Mayor Broderick, a nunber of other politicians, 12 forty-eight years ago fromnothing and it's al ways

13 local legislators, and also incredible charitable 13 been a famly business and will continue to be a

14 organizations here in Shelbyville and Anderson and |14 fanmly business, much |ike some of your businesses

15 their incredible | eaders. W& wanted to hear 15 and much like the famly farns and the busi nesses

16 firsthand what we can do to make a real inpact in 16 that are so integral to the racing in this great

17  these communities. 17 state.

18 Wien we tal k about, you know, commtnent to 18 As Tomsaid, did we make sorme m stakes when we

19 local commnities, ny famly and our conpany's had |19 first got into racing a few years ago? Absol utely.

20 along, very long history of partnering with our 20 Wat we've done since is put together a great team

21 local communities in making thembetter places not |21 led by Joe Mrris and his team great general

22 only for our teammenbers but for everybody in the |22 nanagers both at the property and racing here in

23 comunities. Indiana wll be no different. 23 Indiana. V¢'re dedicating a tremendous amount of

24 W're going to continue to invest in the 24 noney and resources to racing. \¢ have great

25 Indiana communities where we have the privilege of |25 partners in the horsemen. & just have a very,
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1 operating. W know and take great pride in the 1 very bright future, especially if you give us the

2 fact that Indiana racing just doesn't inpact 2 distinct honor of owning these two tracks. Ve take

3 Shelbyville and Anderson, it inpacts every county 3 wth great pride that we will only make these

4 inthis great state. So we have a lot of areas 4 tracks better and make Indiana the gold standard of

5 that we can positively inpact. 5 racing in this country.

6 V¢ will also ensure that oursel ves and our 6 Sowth that, I'd like to turn it back over to

7 teans are substantial with treasure and time inthe| 7 Tom mnake his closing renarks.

8 local communities. Here it says we encourage but 8 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you.

9 we really mandate our |ocal property managerent to 9 MR REEG In terns of current status,

10 serve on local non-profit and civic boards. 10  sharehol ders of both conpani es have approved the

11 W will also continue what Caesars has with 11 transaction. The FTC as well. Every regulatory

12 HEROvolunteer service program V¢ really want to |12 body that we need for approval has approved save

13 enpowver our teammenbers here at these properties 13 for this Cormission that we're in front of today

14 and all across the country to get out and volunteer |14 and New Jersey who we'll be in front of \dnesday.

15 intheir comunities and support those interests 15 So this transaction should be in position,

16 that they have. 16 presum ng successful appeals to those remaining

17 W're going to be sure to exceed prior years 17 Commi ssions by next week.

18 community and invol venent in participation. To 18 Al of the cash to close the nerger is already

19 that end, we're going to commt an additional 19 in escrowand ready to go. As I've said, the

20  $250,000 in cash, and it's not to be confused with |20 nerged conpany will have $3.3 hillion of day one

21 nmarketing dollars or anything else. This is cash 21 liquidity, $4 billion by the end of the third

22 that we're contributing this year on top of all the |22 quarter, and should have $5 billion by this point

23 other commtrments that we've made post-nerger for 23 next year. So 4 to 5X the next conpetitor in the

24 noney to be spent here on charitable and | ocal 24 space in terns of resources to bring to bear.

25 community organizations in Indiana. 25 Leader ship teamand new board of directors are
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1 confirmed. Post-opening results everywhere have 1 having adifficult tine getting on. But |'mnot
2 been encouragi ng, much stronger than we anticipated | 2 going to nention any names.
3 in the post-COM D world. 3 CHAI RVMAN BCRST:  Sore of us never got on.
4 W' ve done a lot of talking here, so | want to| 4 That's how bad we are.
5 turnit back for questions |I'msure the Conm ssion 5 (al'l laughi ng)
6 has. | want to thank you for seeing us here today 6 MR ELMRE In addition to the petitionin
7 in person, considering our application, and as | 7 front of you and the significant amount of tine it
8 saidat the start, we knowthat racing i s why you 8 takes to properly consider such a matter for
9 have the casino opportunities that you have in 9 decision, we've had to deal with the current
10 these two properties and our pledge to you is to 10 pandemc. n behal f of the horsenen and nysel f, we
11 drive that racing business to another |evel. As 11  want to extend our gratitude to the Conm ssioners,
12 all three of us have said, you're already at a very |12 the Governor's office, but especially to commend
13  high level. W'Il work to take it even higher. 13 Executive Director Pitman, Deputy Director Tom
14 So with that, I'Il turnit back to you, 14  Linkneyer, their staff, Noah, \endy, Jessica,
15 M. Chairman. 15 Megan. They all did a fantastic job and we
16 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. Wiy don't we hold | 16 appreciate everything that was done to get us
17 questions for alittle bit. Wy don't we go ahead |17 reopened for training and subsequently racing. W
18 and hear any testinony fromstaff and public and 18 thank you very much.
19 then we can start asking questions. That way we 19 Qur journey with Hdorado started many nont hs
20 get everybody's thoughts out. 20 ago with nuch skeptici smabout our new potenti al
21 So, Deena, do you have any nore thoughts to go |21 partner. | stress the phrase partnership, because
22 with your report? 22 that's truly what we have. W¢'ve nade great
23 MB. PPITMAN | really don't, Chairman. | 23 strides in Indiana over the past several decades.
24 think everything that | have to say is basically 24\ the horsemen firmy believe that if this
25 included in ny report and 1'mgoing to stand by 25 petition is approved, the current standard of two
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1 that. 1 racetracks under the same ownership is inperative.
2 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Ckay.  Thank you. 2 | want to nake this crystal clear to everybody in
3 Do we have the sign-up sheet? Has anybody 3 the room The horsemen's associations with the
4 retrieved that? Let's go ahead and go to public 4 owner of the racinos is nost beneficial to all, and
5 testinony, and then that way after that then we'll 5 I'mjust going to quickly give you a few reasons
6 start asking questions. Sonetimes the nore you 6 why.
7 hear, the less questions you have sonetines. You 7 Nunber one, race marketing across the |arger
8 guys have cleared up a lot of things already, so we | 8 geographic area rather than two different owners
9 appreciate that. 9 conpeting with one another and the horsenen end up
10 Brian Hnore gets to be first. V& know who 10 getting pitted against each other. (Qoss pronoting
11  got here first. 11  all breeds that race in Indiana to a wder audience
12 (wiping with sanitizer wipe) 12 on a consistent basis via nedia, electronic
13 (al'l laughi ng) 13 nessaging, nedia buys, and each track's racing
14 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  There you go. 14 analysis and handi cappi ng shows pronoting the other
15 MR ELMRE See, we're required to do this by |15 facility's race programnot just locally but also
16  Executive Director PFitnan. 16 to the 500 | ocations approved sites to send our
17 CHAI RMAN BCRST: Do the ni crophone too. 17 signal through and to the mllions of homes on TVG
18 MR ELMRE Don't want to get shocked. 18 W're nore effective legislatively when we're
19 Brian Hnore, executive director of the 19  cooperating and working together towards the sane
20 Indiana Horsemen's Benevol ent & Protective 20 goals.
21 Association. It's good to be with you and see you |21 Let's go back now sonme seven or eight nonths
22 in person today. A our |ast meeting when it was 22 ago when we were first introduced to the H dorado
23 virtual, | had a difficult time getting online. | |23 executive staff. W met M. Gary Carano,
24 knew | was going to be late for the neeting, but 24 M. Anthony Carano, M. Tom Reeg, and board of
25 thank goodness there was one other person that was |25 director nenber and Hoosier native Mke Pegram It
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1 was kind of a difficult neeting because we asked a 1 | am di sappoi nted of the action taken |ast

2 lot of difficult questions. Ve didn't lob themany | 2 Friday by another Indiana regul atory agency

3 softballs. V¢ threwfast balls, few curves, and 3 requiring Bdorado that if you were to approve this

4 they answered our questions in what we believe were | 4 to divest itself of three properties. |'mnot

5 honest, whether it was good, bad, or ugly. 5 going to give alot of details that wouldn't be

6 As tinme progressed and nore neetings were 6 appropriate, but | just want to tell you why I'm

7 held, BHdorado asked us our vision for horse racing | 7 disappointed. The horsemen |ost three great

8 inIndiana, where do we want it to go. Hdorado 8 opportunities in Northwest |ndiana,

9 volunteered, we put pen to paper, and list those 9 Southwest Indiana, and Southern Indiana to pronote

10 things the horsenen would like to see as conditions |10 our sport. This woul d have been where we coul d

11 as part of the final order. Adamand Jimstarted 11  have really gone in and got material in there, got

12 meeting with us and soon we had drafted nurerous 12 information in there, and who knows, we coul d have

13 itens that were not only approved by the H dorado 13 nmade themtalk to B dorado and maybe they woul d

14 executive officers but actually expanded the Iist 14 have liked to have taken the two shell OIB |icenses

15 or enhanced the itens that were on the |ist. 15 and put one up at Hanmond and put one down in

16 V¢ vere then introduced to M. Joe Morris, who |16 Evansville. But | think I'Il just take a line from

17  had been retained as director of racing for 17  TomHanks in Forrest Qunp, and that's all | have to

18 Hdorado. Joe brought a vast know edge of the 18 say that.

19  horse racing industry to Hdorado and will play a 19 In closing, including the testinony |

20 key role in the success of this endeavor. This was |20 presented today and in consideration of the staff

21 nore than good-faith gesture. This was the point 21 report of the Indiana Horse Raci ng Commi ssion

22 in which Bdorado began gaining the trust of the 22 executive director, the March 3, 2020, H dorado

23  horsenen and a significant noment in arelationship |23 letter to Executive Director Pitnan, and the

24 and hopeful |y future partnershinp. 24 Indiana HBPA position paper dated July 7, 2020, we

25 The result of all these meetings was the 25 urge the Indiana Horse Racing Cormission to adopt
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1 docunent submitted to the Indiana Horse Racing 1 and approve Hdorado' s petition for transfer of

2 Conm ssion executive director, Mss Pitnan, from 2 licenses with conditions agreed upon between the

3 Hdorado dated March 3, 2020. 3 horsenen's associations and H dorado and any ot her

4 In addition to an Hdorado executive team and 4 condition deened appropriate by the

5 its officers, who we believe are commtted to the 5 Executive Drector or the Conmi ssioners.

6 success of the Indiana horse racing industry, and 6 So it iswitten in the book of Exodus that

7 nost inportantly the expectations of the Indiana 7 the Lord thy God gave 10 commandrents to Mbses on

8 Horse Racing Cormission, the Indiana |egislature, 8 Munt Sinai. Executive Drector published 22

9 and the Governor's office, | have great confidence 9 commandnents, conditions, what she expected. And |

10 inthe tw vice presidents of racing at our Indiana |10 just want to say this, | like 22. Thank you for

11 racetracks, M. R ck More at Hoosier Park and 11 your tine. | appreciate it.

12 M. Eic Halstromat Indiana Gand. |'ve known 12 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you very much. |'ve

13 both of these gentlenen for over twenty-five years. |13 never heard Deena referred to as Mses. There's a

14 The horsenen do expect both these individuals to be |14 first for everything. She's good, but | don't

15  enpovered to make decisions and take action on 15  know That's good. W& got a new nane for you,

16 issues that may arise and their hands not be tied. |16 Deena.

17 The respective senior vice presidents at the 17 Dnayne Rhul e.

18 racetracks, I've only begun to know, M. Mke Rch |18 MR RHLE [|'Il be much briefer than our

19 at Indiana Gand, M. Trent MIntosh at 19 forner speaker here. | did read your notice that

20 Hoosier Park. | have found themto be 20 you said you want us to be brief. I'll do that,

21 approachabl e, know edgeabl e about horse racing, 21 all right.

22 upfront, and helpful in resolving issues thus far. |22 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you.

23 | believe they also are conmitted to the success of |23 MR RHLE Thank you, Chairman and

24 each respective facility's racing and ganing 24 Conmissioners, for allowing me to speak up.

25 operations. 25 Dwayne Rhul e, chairman of the standardbred advisory
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1 comittee. |'ma standardbred farmowner and a 1 This is a huge task for the Conmssion. This
2 racer of horses at Hoosier Park. You have ny 2 will be a challenge for the Commssion to enforce.
3 letter inyour file dated July 6, 2020, and | will 3 Thank you very much for your tine.
4 Dbe brief as requested. These are ny thoughts and 4 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. Next is Nat U
5 other people's concerns. 5 HII, IV
6 W& are here today because M. Icahn was not 6 MR NAT HLL: | amNat HII, IV. |I'ma
7 pleased with his RO -- 7 horseman and this testinony today is nine and mne
8 CHA RVAN BCRST:  Move the nic down. 8 alone. Isit just meor isit kind of warmin
9 MR RHLE Bring it down? Al right. 9 here? | didn't get the neno about being brief, so
10 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  There you go. 10 here we go.
11 MR RHLE You don't want ne to do redo it, 11 CHA RVAN BCRST:  (n the cl ock.
12 do you? 12 MR NAT HLL: How much have | got?
13 CHA RVAN BCRST:  No, no.  You can pick up 13 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  You got five minutes.
14 where you left off. 14 MR NAT HLL: Hey, you know what? You don't
15 MR RHLE Al right. W are here today 15 look at me near the sane as your dad did. You kind
16  because M. Ichan was not pleased with his RO in 16  of smle.
17 Caesars stock, which he reportedly owns 8 percent 17 (al'l 1aughing)
18 plus. He put hinself on the casino floor and 18 CHAI RVAN BCRST: 1" m gl ad.
19 helped to force this nerger with Hdorado. | was 19 MR NAT HLL: Let ne start today by stating
20 involved at the legislature with the slots bill in |20 the obvious. No horsenen's group can afford to
21 2007. Al three breeds and Centaur worked together |21 publicly oppose the acquisition of Caesars by
22 to get the legislation passed. W pushed the theme |22 Edorado. Horsenman makes his living at the track
23 that it would be a boost to the Indiana 23 and any track has an absolute ability to refuse
24 agricultural econony. It has been greatly 24 entries. Over the years horsemen and horsenen's
25 successful . 25 groups have learned to go with the flow In no
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1 This merger is about financial schenes, 1 circunstance will they ever likely publicly oppose
2 leverage, huge debt, $17.3 mllionin rent. An 2 a change in ownership.
3 additional $500 nillion has been promsed in cost 3 So why am| quite possibly the only person who
4 savings and recently | think it was bunped up to 4  has been willing fromthe junp to take a public
5 $620 mllion. People somewhere will be 5 stance against this proposal ? Because |'ve been
6 reduced -- maybe not at Hoosier, nmaybe not here, 6 blessedinlife and | don't make ny living racing
7 but sonewhere in the corporation -- and everyt hing 7 horses. If | did, | would be more than broke.
8 will be subject to RQ. 8 Here's why |"'mconcerned about this sale or merger
9 | have read about 200 pages of financial 9 or whatever this proposal is.
10 analysts' thoughts on the nerger. They go from 10 Tom brui sed his way onto the board of
11  euphoric to a dangerous deal. The Reed report is 11 directors of Caesars. He insisted on the sale of
12 spot-onin all respects. No need to reviewit. | |12 the conpany. He got the job done. Wo agreed to
13 have been to Ponpano. |If this deal is approved, a |13 buy Caesars? Hdorado in a deal that has been
14 Reed report shoul d be done again in tw or |ess 14 described as a guppy swal | owing a whal e.
15 years as a benchnark for progress. WII Ponpano 15 Wy Hdorado? | believe part of it is based
16  still be racing? 16 on several public clains that Hdorado believes a
17 | fully endorse the executive director's 17  new partnership obtain up to $500 mllion of
18 reconmendations, except for a small change. 18 synergy to do this deal. MNow best | can figure
19 No. 16, rent should not be allowed due to the 19 synergy is a buzzword used by folks in the big
20 racetracks being a major part of casino operations, |20 business world as code for cost cutting.
21 not in two years as they propose in their petition. |21 M early research showed that a gentlenan
22 No. 4, if not allowing rent at the two tracks is 22 named TomReeg -- | believe he's here today -- is
23 enough to jeopardize the whol e merger, then you 23 reported to have said to investors that his target
24 woul d assune the nerger is too | everaged to succeed |24 was to shave $500 mllion in costs fromthe
25 with any economc downturn or surprise event. 25 conbined conpanies. This is not an actual inquiry.
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1 This is B oonberg. 1 Now you're in a tough spot. The nost prof ound

2 Tom with all due respect, | feel alittle bit | 2 portion of the executive director's report in ny

3 like when | was a kid ny dad used to ook at me and | 3 nind is found in footnote nunber 4 on page 5. In

4 he had a favorite saying, |'d be making ny case and | 4 the current econonic environnment there is financial

5 he'd say, you know, son -- this is a respective 5 risk both in approving and allowing a nerger where

6 jurist, 24 years judge in Mnroe Gounty -- he'd 6 either | becomes a controlling product of Caesars

7 look at ne and say, son, ny mnd is made up, quit 7 or in denying the petition and forcing the ol d

8 confusing ne with the facts. 8 Caesars to nove forward with their current gam ng

9 So that's sort of how! feel today. ['m 9 and racing responsibilities. |f the Comm ssion

10 hearing good stuff. 1'd love to believe it. Love |10 were to approve the nerger with stringent

11 to believe it. VeIl get to nore of that later. 11 conditions related to horse racing, the Indiana

12 Another main concern of mne is Bdorado' s 12 horse racing industry woul d arguably be in a better

13 past performance as a racetrack and even as casino |13 position with increased | everage moving forward

14 operators, they're good at cutting expenses. 14 than if there was a denial of the nerger petition

15 Marketing, promotion, the list is long and painful. |15 and racing was to continue under the existing final

16  Ponpano Isle Casino and Raceway, 93 percent of the |16 order.

17 casino's workers voted to go on strike, although 17 Between the commtnents al ready made by

18 they reached a settlenent. 18 Hdorado and the stiff conditions of approval

19 Perhaps nost disturbing to me personally is 19 recommended in the executive director's report, a

20 the Florida lawsuit instituted by Hdorado to kill |20 very strong case can be nade for approval based

21 harness racing in Florida by replacing it with 21 upon the B dorado previous commtnents and the

22 jai alai. Howecouldit be overstated that Hdorado |22 staff recommendations is better than rejecting the

23 is using every legal neans possible to kill harness |23 proposal and letting the chips fall where they may.

24 racing in Florida? Wat wll their plans be for 24 | trust this Coonmssion. | have al ways

25 Indiana in years to cone? WII they attenpt to 25 trusted this Cormission. Sonmetine in the previous
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1 kill horse racing either through this Conm ssion, 1 century | appeared along with Ernie Gaskin,

2 or far nore likely through the Indiana state 2 Eddie Martin with the thoroughbred breed

3 legislature? 3 devel opnent advisory comittee, Jeff from

4 So why are we all here today? Wéll, early on 4  Churchill Downs and perhaps a few others, and we

5 when this sale was first proposed, | set out on a 5 were allowed to testify in front of the Senate

6 mssionto do what little | could to kill this 6 finance conmttee, chaired by a

7 deal. | was convinced horsenen woul d never stand 7 previously-nentioned affable veterinarian, a

8 against it. The scuttle and the conventional 8 chanpion of the horse racing industry. He had

9 wisdomwas that you're not going to kill this deal, | 9 proposed |egislation that woul d dictate riverboat

10 the best we can hope for is a bunch of favorable 10 enisson fees sent to the Indiana horse racing. A

11 conditions. | amforever indebted to ny friend 11 that tinme Churchill Downs was receiving 40 percent

12 Brian Bnore and the HBPA for their work with 12 of the riverboat revenues.

13 Hdorado to get this Iist of pronises they have 13 It's been a while, but as | recall, tracks

14  rmade. | wouldn't have thought this fromthe junp. |14 would get nothing under the bill while purses and

15 So where does your Horse Racing Commission go |15 breed devel opment would get it all. W& took a

16 fromhere? | really want to thank you for making 16 strong stand and we | ooked the senator in the eye

17 it real clear to Hdorado fromthe junp howthings |17 and said the Indiana Horse Racing Cormission's

18 areinlIndiana. Inny mnd the recent inprovenents |18 better equipped and nore famliar to do what's

19 in the racetrack nmanagement in other states by 19 right than the Indiana state legislation. And |

20 Joe Morris and H dorado have been the direct result |20 renmenber the senate's ranking nminority menber

21 of your clearly-voiced concerns about their 21 looking directly at ne as if to say, Nat, now you

22 proposed nerger with Caesar. You have nade it 22 see what we have to deal with every day. | have to

23 crystal clear to Bdorado that Indiana is different |23 add that the |egislation was eventual |y dropped by

24 fromany other state. They know you're going to be | 24  the author.

25 hard to deal with. 25 So how does this at all affect you guys?
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1 \Vell, let neclose with this. |'ve never tal ked 1 to Hdorado of the scrutiny there involved. Enter
2 like this to the Cormission before and | probably 2 Joe Morris. | think he could be a Bill Polian, of
3 shouldn't start now You can't just put H dorado 3 the Qolts. | think he has the capability of
4 on nobl e seeker probation, then wal k away and 4 putting together a winning team He knows
5 congratul ate yourself on a job well done. If this 5 everybody. He's been everywhere. He's a great
6 deal is approved, hopefully with Deena's |ist of 6 guy. H'Il doit for us if Hdorado backs him
7 very rigid conditions, your hard work as a 7 At this point, unlike Nat, 1'mgoing to put ny
8 Commission has just begun. | repeat, | personally 8 votewth the Carano famly. They didn't build
9 trust the Indiana Horse Racing Cormi ssion. 9 that business not doing the right thing. | believe
10 Now | et ne close with this: | would |ove 10 at this point they' Il do the right thing for racing
11 nothing more than to be proven wong regarding our |11 through Joe.
12 current view of Hdorado. MNothing would nake nme 12 So together with that, | just want to say that
13 happier than to cone back here ten years fromnow |13 ny confort in this transition lies with you, the
14 when |'meighty-two, hopeful Iy aboveground and 14 Indiana Horse Racing Cormission. Thank you.
15 thinking somewhat clearly by then, and testify how |15 CHAI RVAN BCORST:  Thank you. V& got to figure
16 wong | was on July 13, 2020, how H dorado did not |16 out who Peyton Manning' s going to be, though, now
17 cut corners at Indiana racetracks, howthey did not |17 that you got Bill Polian.
18  work behind our backs at the Indiana |egislature, 18 Next, Paul Martin.
19 and what wonderful corporate citizens they have 19 MR MARTIN M nane is Paul Martin. |
20 becone in the state of Indiana. | would love that |20 currently serve as president of the Quarter Horse
21 opportunity. 21 Racing Association of Indiana. Just want to say
22 Dd |l nake it in five mnutes? 22 good afternoon to the Conm ssion, Madam Director
23 CHA RVAN BCRST:  No, but you're fine. 23  Pitman, Deputy Drector Linkneyer, Chairnan Borst,
24 MR NAT HLL: Ckay. Thank you. 24 and legal staff. Thank you for allowng ne to be
25 CHAI RVMAN BCRST:  Thank you. You're fine. 25 heard today. M/ comments will be brief, but I do
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1 Thank you. 1 have a few points.
2 MR NAT HLL: Questions? 2 Wth ne today is our executive director,
3 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  No, not yet. 3 Dianne Bennett, and we are here today to express
4 MR NAT HLL: Ckay. 4 our total support for Hdorado Resorts,
5 CHAI RVAN BORST:  (kay. Ernie Gaskin, 5 Incorporated. | have to admt when we first heard
6 aforenentioned. 6 about potential new track ownership, we obviously
7 MR GASKIN Thank you, Conmi ssioner. 7 were full of skepticism However, that was fairly
8 Ernie Gaskin, owner, trainer, breeder, forner 8 short-lived when the horsenen's groups conpiled a
9 chairman of the breed devel opnent conmittee through | 9 list of inportant itens pertaining to the race
10 three different adnministrations. So thank you. 10 prograns and nearly everything was actually
11 Been watching this closely. 11 commtted to and guaranteed. In reality, even nore
12 I'mjust here nainly to thank you guys for 12 than vwe asked for was put on the table and
13 wherever we are today in this programthat we've 13 commtted to by Hdorado. Wth that, | would al so
14  built. It's unbelievable. V¢ nade bol d 14 say with our grow ng programwe have a huge need
15 predictions for the state of Indiana, where we'd 15 for another barn and nore stalls.
16 be. Awbillion in economcs a year? How about this |16 Most notable itemon that |ist fromthe QGHRA
17 one? Three horse of the years. Do you know how 17 was a 12 percent guarantee through 2033. That was
18 hard it is to breed a horse of the year? W' ve 18 huge for us. Another was the racing capital escrow
19 bred three. Surrounding states have been in racing |19 fund of $20 mllion to $25 nillion to enhance our
20 for eighty years, haven't done it. \¢'ve got 20 prograns here. Additionally, H dorado had enough
21 three. Thanks to you guys. You nmade this program |21 vision to go out and get an expert |ike senior vice
22 so peopl e wanted to cone here. That's how we got 22 president of racing Joe Mrris, which will play a
23 here. Thank you. 23 huge role in the success of our partnership. There
24 You' ve led the way fromChurchill to Hdorado. |24 are many nore but not enough tine for every detail,
25 Here we are. Perhaps this is a small explanation 25 but our skepticismhas nowturned into optimsm
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1 In closing, GHRAl is confident that with this 1 One other thing, if | may. | knowit was
2 partnership the sky is the only linmt. In recent 2 listed inthe exhibits, but | received a letter
3 times our tracks were tagged as the gol d standard. 3 fromthe Chio Harness Horse Association president,
4 Wrking together and in unity with the HBPA | TCBA 4 M. Steve Bateson, and |'d like to read his letter.
5 1SA and with Hdorado as our partner, there is 5 | think it's pretty inportant for everybody just to
6 little doubt that the gold standard can and will 6 hear firsthand how things have changed over there.
7 becone the platinumstandard. Thank you very nuch. | 7 To the Honorabl e | ndi ana Horse Raci ng
8 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. 8  Commission:
9 Joe Putnam 9 I would like to provide a different
10 (m crophone feedback) 10 perspective on racing in Chio at Hdorado. The
11 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Sorewhere there's a 11 "New Scioto Downs" has opened their race meet with
12 nicrophone doi ng sonet hi ng. 12 great enthusiasmtowards racing. | would like to
13 MR PUINAM Thought that was Paul up here. 13  site a few exanpl es.
14 CHAIRVAN BORST: | did too, but we can't blane | 14 They' ve addressed track issues prior to the
15  hi mbecause he's gone. 15 race nmeeting with added material and addressed
16 (al'l 1aughi ng) 16  grade issues with consolidation and consideration
17 MR PUINAM  Good norning. Joe Putnam 17  fromthe Goon Brothers. They' ve added personnel to
18 president of the | SA standardbred association, 18 ensure proper track naintenance. The results have
19 1,100-plus nenbers that we represent. Just wanted |19 been inpressive thus far into the race neet.
20 to say a fewquick words. | believe we have a 20 B dorado' s Scioto Downs property was the first
21 great opportunity for us in our industry for all 21 racetrack to open in Chio and the first
22 the breeds. |'ma very active participant in 22 Sandardbred track to open in North Anerica. They
23 racing. | have a 40-horse stable, race Indiana, 23 nade this conmtrent wth no assurances when the
24 Chio, Kentucky, so do a lot of traveling, see a lot |24 casino would be permtted to open. Mnagenent went
25 of things. Personal testanment is what | have 25 above and beyond to get all the horses qualified to
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1 witnessed with Bdorado at Scioto. Joe Mrris 1 race.
2 leading the racing operations over the past several | 2 B dorado' s newteamat Scioto Downs, |ed by
3 nonths with his dedication and attention they' re 3 Joe Mirris, is tackling issues head on. They have
4 giving to the racing operations at Scioto. | like | 4 nade the best of a difficult situation. It appears
5 what | see going on there. Lots of inprovenents, 5 the process for a new beginning with Scioto Downs
6 and we're looking forward to working with themhere | 6 has started.
7 in Indiana. 7 This teamhas nade a concerted effort to
8 (ne of the big things in our industry -- | 8 reconnect with horse players. Scioto Downs has had
9 know we've touched on it briefly -- but is the 9 full racing cards with full fields since they' ve
10 stability of racing. The 12 percent for the long 10 opened. The horse players have responded by
11 term | think that's very inportant. Like, 11 wagering at a much higher level than years past.
12 investing inracing -- | do all facets of it, 12 Based on what |'ve witnessed | have confidence
13 breeding, owning, training, driving -- it's a 13 that Hdorado's managenment recogni zes the val ue of
14 long-termcomitnent. It takes, you know, |'m 14 horse racing in Chio. | look forward to working
15 thinking about three, four, five, six, seven years |15 with this "New Scioto Downs" nanagenent team and
16 out when I'mbreeding horses and thinking about the | 16 seeing Scioto Downs restored to the glory it once
17  future. So long-termstability, the long-term 17  shared.
18 12 percent commitnent, very inportant things. 18 That was from Steve Bateson, again, president
19 The added comm tnent from H dorado over the 19 of the Chio Harness Horsenen's Associ ation.
20 next three years putting the mllion dollars up 20 (ne other thing 1'd like to add just quickly
21 each year to go to the purses, | think that's a 21 is if you so approve the final order, | think it's
22 pretty good inpact there. You know, with this 22 very inportant to put in there that they maintain
23 Q0N Dgoing on we've all took a pretty good hit, so |23 ownership of both tracks. | think that will give
24 those kinds of things for support are very 24 us the stability and the | ong-termconmtnent that
25 inportant to our industry. 25 we're looking for here today. Thank you.

Pages 65..68





Page 69 Page 71
1 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. 1 of directors of the Indiana Thoroughbred Oaner's
2 Next the honorable State Representative 2 and Breeder's Association. |TCBA has provided a
3 Bob Cherry. | give himan honorable. H's a 3 letter of support for your Conm ssion nmaterials
4 former Boilernaker too, so. . . 4 today, but we believe it is very inportant for us
5 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Not  ever ybody coul d 5 totake the time during your deliberations to be
6 get intoBall Sate, so. . . 6 present and provide additional comrents.
7 (al'l" laughi ng) 7 The Carano fanily and the executive | eadership
8 MR CGERRY: |'mBob Cherry, 8 teamof Hdorado Resorts has spent a considerabl e
9 State Representative, District 53. M district 9 anount of tine in Indiana the past few nonths to
10 really is between the two tracks. |'mkind of the |10 faniliarize thenselves with the horsenen' s groups,
11 flyover. If you think of the Mdwest, we're the 11 the current racino operations, and the general
12 flyover states, I'mthe flyover of if anyone wants |12 equine industry. |TCBA applauds their actions and
13 to go fromone track to the other, they have to go |13 looks forward to continuing this working
14 through ny district. 14 relationship. The conmtnent by the Carano famly
15 M. Chairman and nenbers of the Coomission, | |15 to place a proven |eader |ike Joe Mrris to oversee
16  appl aud what you're trying to do and | trust, like |16 racing at both tracks is paramount to the continued
17  everyone said before, you are the key. 17  success of the first-class horse racing industry we
18 I'mglad you mentioned about your dad. 18 have in our great state of Indiana.
19 Senator Larry Borst worked with Ral ph Wlfong many |19 Wth the decision nade by the Indiana Gam ng
20 years ago to get this thing started. Then we had 20 Commission last Friday, | TCBA woul d encourage the
21 couple other State Senators and anot her 21 Commission to require E dorado to divest thensel ves
22 veterinarian, Bob Jacknman, and then the Harvard 22 of the three riverboats they own after the
23 lawyer, Luke Kinley, they carried the torch 23 transaction is conpl ete and keep the two racinos as
24 further. So we got a really good plan in our 24 one track, one group.
25 state, and | applaud that. 25 Again, thank you for your time today and your
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1 W& got many other |egislators supported horse 1 dedication to this very inportant agribusiness in
2 racing as we have today, and | applaud the nerger 2 our state. If you have any questions, |'d be very
3 wththeinvestnent inracing. | think that's 3  happy to answer best of ny ability.
4 inportant. Bringing on Joe Mrris is an excellent 4 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  Thank you, Bruce.
5 thing, what | understand, and everybody's for it. 5 MR MRPHY: Thank you.
6 Wen we got a lot of these things done, we worked 6 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Last but not |east, the
7 with the tracks and the legislature, with the 7 honorable State Representative Terri Austin. You
8 horsenen, and the comunities, and | applaud the 8 get to bring it hone.
9 investnent in the local communities, too, that 9 MB. AUSTIN Thank you, Chairman Borst. M
10 they're going to continue doing that. 10  husband says | always do like to get the last word
11 | know we' ve tal ked about a lot of ifs, if 11 in, so. . .
12 this, if this, if this was to happen what we'd do. |12 (al'l 1aughi ng)
13 Again, | think lot of those things have taken place |13 MB. AUSTIN And your dad was very kind to ne
14 already in the proposal but, again, | think that 14 as anewlegislator, | will tell you.
15 long termreeval uation of this maybe in the short 15 So ny nane is Terri Austin and | serve Indiana
16  distance looking at what we've done. | really 16 House District 36 and | will tell you the track is
17 think this is in your hands and | think it's a good | 17 right not in the nmddle, off to the side, but
18 proposal. Thank you. 18 they're fully in ny district. [|'ve beenin the
19 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. 19 General Assenbly for eighteen years -- it does not
20 Next is Bruce Mirphy. Two nore to go. 20 seempossible to hear ne say that -- and |'ve been
21 MR MRPHY: Bruce Mirphy, Indiana 21 on the Public Policy Coomittee since ny very first
22  Thoroughbred Oaner's and Breeder's Associati on. 22 day, which is where all the gaming bills go
23 God norning, Chairman Borst, |HRC Conmissioners, 23 through. A cohol too. Be glad you're not the
24  Executive Director Pitnman, legal staff. M name is |24 Acohol Conmission, folks, let ne tell you.
25 Bruce Muirphy. Serve as the president of the board |25 | read with great interest the executive
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1 director's report last night and | applaud the 1 the stability of that narriage, the casino and the

2 guardrails that she has attenpted to put up to 2 racing industry together, and | will tell you that

3 ensure that racing and the investnent in racing 3 it inpacts a community's image in significant ways.

4 nmaintains under this transition of ownership. It's | 4 It inpacts our reputation. It inpacts how peopl e

5 been a very interesting perspective for ne to watch | 5 see and feel about Anderson, |ndiana, and

6 fromwhat was Churchill Downs Tom Meeker, 6 Shelbyville. And the truth is any sudden

7 transition to Centaur, transition to Caesars, and 7 departures or novenents are not necessarily going

8 nowto Hdorado under the Carano famly. |'ve had 8 to be viewed in the best interest of not just the

9 achance to go fromlocal corporate -- | call 9 institutions itself but of the municipalities and

10  Kentucky local -- and then to, well, famly-owned 10 the local governnents that are invol ved.

11 corporate under Centaur, |arge corporate under 11 Finally, | would just tell you in all

12 Caesars, and now anticipating that shift under the |12 candidness, | was not necessarily a fanin the

13 famly-owned structure. And each bring their own 13 beginning. | was very reluctant, having |ived

14 set of rewards and chal | enges. 14 through all those transitions, and | was fearful

15 The truth is the narriage of casino ganming and | 15 about what it nmight nean for ny community. | have

16 horse racing is a unique perspective and the truth |16 talked to enployees. | have talked to staff. |

17 isit's a huge inpact in ny coomunity. It's a huge |17 have talked to community representatives. V¢ all

18 inpact, just like it is here. It allows us to draw|18 feel like this is in the best interest of Anderson,

19 awde variety of people and personalities that 19 Indiana, and Hoosier Park. | can't speak for

20 night not normally cone to Anderson, quite 20 Shelbyville. But | think with the 22

21  honestly. Andit's also a hallmark for us, it's 21 reconmendations that have been put forward, wth

22 one of the things that we can boast about when 22 the actions of the Ganming Conm ssion, this is going

23 we're nmarketing our community to future business 23 togive us not only sone stability but actually

24 and industry as we hopeful |y work through this 24 it's going to serve as a launching pad so that both

25  post- QO D envi ronnent . 25 Hoosier Park and Indiana Gand can go to the next
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1 | think the return on investment of the equine | 1 |level.

2 industry and all the industry sectors is well 2 That's going to be tough, quite honestly.

3 docurented. At least according to the 2011 Purdue 3 It's going to take sonme hard work. 1t's going to

4 study, it was nore than a mllion dollars in direct | 4 take consistent conmtnent on the part of the

5 and $500 nillion in indirect and induced, but that 5 Carano famly. And | trust that this Horse Racing

6 was 2011. | applaud the fact that we're going to 6 Commission, who always does its due diligence, will

7 update that study because | don't think you can 7 nake sure that the right actions are taken, that

8 ever underestimate the inpact that agribusiness has | 8 people are true to their word, and that their

9 onthe state of Indiana. 9 comitnents are held and they will uphold their end

10 I think the tax dollars, aside fromthe gamng |10 of the bargain, because | guarantee you | will be

11 tax dollars, the tax dollars associated with the 11  one of the very first people at your neetings in

12 equine industry and across the industry sectors has |12 the future to say if | think things are going of f

13 a huge inpact on the State budget, and the truthis |13 the rails.

14 it's been ny direct experience and observation that | 14 | will alsotell you | appreciated the

15 the staff that have been associated with both the 15 interest in the community comitnents and the

16  horse racing side and the casino side are 16 community inpact dollars, because everybody brings

17  knowl edgeabl e, they are professional, and they have | 17 their own style to that -- | understand it -- but |

18 the highest levels of integrity. Al of those | 18 read with great interest the mnutes of the

19 think have helped and a lot of that's been under 19  Decenber neeting and the reports that fol lowed. |

20 your direct supervision, you know, all the things 20 appreciate the fact that you're taking an interest

21 that you' ve recommended, the things that you have 21 inthat and | do appreciate the fact that the

22 put in place to nake sure that we do have premer 22 Carano famly has agreed to increase that amount

23 racing facilities here. 23  because | hear it fromny community organi zations.

24 So finally, | would just say Joe mentioned the | 24 So we'll be watching. And trust nme. This

25 stability of racing, but 1 would also talk about 25 comunity wll speak up. | guarantee you. Thank
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1 you for allowing ne to testify today, sir. 1 thisis adnirable for you and your

2 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. 2 sharehol ders -- your profits went up and that

3 (kay. Just one last chance. Everybody's 3 strikes me as not a good. Qur job is to do things

4 testified who wanted to testify? Don't want to 4 inthe public interest, not in your interest. So

5 leave anybody out. That's why we had this here 5 ny questionto youis: Explaintone or talk to me

6 because we didn't want to | eave anybody out. 6 alittle bit about why that's a good business nmodel

7 Wy don't we open it up to questions from 7 or why we shoul d enbrace this in Indiana.

8 counsel, staff, Conmssioners. Anybody have any 8 MR REEG Again, it's TomReeg, CEQ The

9 burning questions that they want to ask at this 9 casino business in this country is a mature

10 point? 1'Il ask Conm ssioner MCarty on the phone, | 10 business. There's effectively casinos that someone

11 anything you'd like to ask to start with? 11 can visit in every najor metropolitan area that

12 OOW SSI ONER MECARTY:  Not at this point. 12 you've got in the country that can drive to a

13 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  Ckay. 13  property. So growth typically is CDP-type growh.

14 COW SSI ONER MCARTY:  Vént to express 14 Wat the casino sector has in terns of an operating

15 appreciation for Representative Austin's comments. |15 styleis they'll try and subsidize, right, so

16 And, yes, | confirmshe does al ways get the |ast 16 they'll give away sonething for free to thinking

17 word. 17 that it creates a visit.

18 (al'l 1 aughi ng) 18 Very sinply, our viewis a lot of those

19 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  You've dealt with her before |19 subsidies are not necessary and the customer will

20 then. 20 cone wthout that inducenent. And so what happens

21 OOW SSI ONER MCARTY:  No questions at this 21 is as we renove those subsidies, the total revenue

22 tine. 22 goes down. But that revenue's not really revenue,

23 CHA RVAN BCRST: Al right. 23 it's something |'mgiving you that you're giving

24 Commi ssion Schenkel ? 24 Dback to ne.

25 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Sure. | won't nmiss a |25 The real way to drive revenue is to invest in
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1 chance. And not in any particular order, so as | 1 your facilities, to continue to add to them

2 throwthese out, whoever wants to answer themfrom | 2  You've seen that happen here in the addition of

3 ER, that's fine. 3 table games. You're going to see that happen in

4 Let me start by saying thank you for your kind | 4 the future as we add the $60 nillion table game

5 words that you have expressed today in terns of 5 expansion. That's how you drive real revenue

6 your confidence in Indiana horse racing as a 6 growh, by investing capital and getting return,

7 product and as an endeavor that you're willing to 7 not by giving away a hanburger or a buffet. So

8 invest in. And | wll bethe first to admt it'sa| 8 that's really our operating philosophy.

9 incredibly large investnent, so | know that you're 9 COMWM SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Then | et ne fol | ow up

10 not taking it lightly. But let me preface it by 10 with you nmentioned you have established, you' re

11 saying -- and it's been el uded to here 11 willing to establish this $25 nillion escrow

12 already -- that | was one who was very skepti cal 12 account, but you also -- | believe it was you or

13 and needed sone convincing and needed to hear some |13 naybe it was one of the other gentlenen --

14 things. So that you understand ny questions a 14 nentioned the $60 mllion inprovenents effort. Is

15 little bit and where |'mcomng from 15 that in addition to?

16 | guess one of the first questions | have 16 MR REEG That isin addition to.

17 is: As we read the Reed report and as |'d done 17 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  That's not mixed in

18 sone research | ooki ng back through things, 18 with that $25 mllion?

19 historically it appeared that when ER cane into a |19 MR REEG No. The $25 nmillion over 10 years

20 narket, basically a couple of things junped out at |20 renewable is racing specific, will be invested into

21 nme. (ne was the overall revenues tended to 21 the racing side. The $60 mllion in expansion

22 decrease, which if that's the case that's not good |22 capital is to increase the footprint of this casino

23 for the state of Indiana if that woul d happen here; |23 and Hoosier Park.

24 enpl oynent and head count in your facilities were 24 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  So it's generic across

25 somewhat reduced; and yet, at the very end -- and 25 the board of the properties?
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1 MR REEG That's right. 1 and all that, so everything should, the rest of the
2 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Ckay. | just wanted 2 seasons for both tracks should go as nornal as can
3 to make sure | understood that. Thank you. | 3 be?
4 think that's all 1've got right now Those were 4 MR REEG Wé are certainly hopeful that's the
5 the two. 5 case. (oviously that's a function of the public
6 CHAl RVAN BCRST:  Cormi ssi oner Pil | ow? 6 health situation.
7 OCOW SSI ONER PILLOW | don't have any. 7 W had to submt nunbers to you and ot her
8 CHAl RVAN BCRST: Wil e you're there, | guess 8 jurisdictions frankly in the mddle of the crisis
9 it has been brought up before about the savings 9 when everything was shut down, and we put forth
10 that you'll have with this nmerger, $500 mllion or |10 nunbers that were in front of you that thankfully
11 whatever the nunber is. 1Is there any nore you can |11 turned out to be extraordinarily conservative. The
12 say on that wthout giving away trade secrets? 12 custoners have cone back really pretty quickly.
13 MR REEG Wiat | would say isit'sreally a |13 Revenues are up. GCasino revenue here is actually
14 function of difference in operating philosophy. 14 up at all five Indiana properties. So that's been
15 Caesars built up a very large centralized 15 heartening to us, and nowit's a natter of, A does
16  organization based in Las Vegas that is kind of a 16 the public health situation remain stabl e enough
17 command and control systemthat operates the entire |17 that you don't retrench, which in Indiana, knock on
18 conpany. As | said in ny prepared renarks, we 18 wood, doesn't seemto be the case to this point,
19  enpowver the local leaders. Qur viewis inlIndiana |19 and then it's how do you keep reopeni ng and
20 we nmake our noney here, we nake it at Hoosier Park, |20 bringing things back that are still pulled back at
21 we nmake it in our casinos. The people that are 21 this point.
22 nmaking the decisions on an operating basis within 22 CHA RVAN BCRST: | hope we don't have to do
23 the framework that we set are the people that are 23 that. | hope nobody has to do that.
24  dealing with the custoners every day. So on the 24 MR REEG | hope so too.
25 cost side, alnost all of those cost savings in the |25 CHAI RMAN BCRST:  Any questi ons?
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1 $500 mllion are in that corporate group in 1 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: M. Chairman, while
2 Las Vegas. 2 M. Reeg' s there, couple other questions. Nunber
3 In addition, on the Caesars side, whichis 3 one, thank you for stating your conmtrent to us
4 different than prior acquisitions, because we bring | 4 and everybody here for the record today that the
5 Caesars Rewards into the existing H dorado system 5 tracks are on the table for divestiture because I'm
6 $100 mllion of that $500 mllion was actually 6 one of the people who' ve been on this Conm ssion
7 revenue synergy, it's not cost cutting. It's the 7 going back to the Centaur bankruptcy days and then
8 12 nillion people in our systemconing into the 8 the one breed, one track when they purchased this
9 50 nillion Caesars Rewards. You've seen that in 9 facility out of bankruptcy, so forth. So we've
10 these two properties here. Despite the road 10 seen lots of ups and downs, and so that's obviously
11 construction in the area, bringing that into the 11 very inportant and we appreciate your pledge.
12 Caesars program they out-perforned the rest of the |12 The one thing | woul d say that you offered
13 state froma revenue perspective. So that's abig |13 that I'mnot interested inis the offer to go to
14 piece of our synergies as well. 14 the legislature. And with all due respect to the
15 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Then ducktailing on the 15 legislators that are here, sonetines the
16 conditions we're in now, which | feel so sorry for |16 legislature giveth and they can al so taketh away.
17 you guys -- the country has just been rocked by all |17 I'mnot in favor of going to the legislature and
18 the COAD stuff and all -- sonmebody nentioned that |18 legislating the 12 percent. Quite frankly, the
19  you thought maybe things were coning back better 19 legislature acted a couple of years ago to put a
20 than you thought so far. 20 process in place that arrives at the correct
21 MR REEG VYes. 21 percentage, and ny preference woul d be to | et that
22 CHAI RVMAN BCRST:  And | guess what 1'mgoing to |22 process work its way and not put 12 percent
23 say is: Do you think then we can finish the rest 23 statutorily in. W& can have that discussion with
24 of the neets, as long as nothing el se happens and 24 nore length at sonme point, but | feel very strongly
25 we don't get any nore state mandates that shut down | 25 about that.
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1 MR REEG (kay. W look to you. \¢ want to 1 MR BABBI TT: Thank you for that.
2 get to-- 2 Then there was a discussion -- | actually was
3 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: | appreciate that. | 3 able to watch the Ganing Conmission neeting -- a
4 just wanted to make sure that | state that. 4  discussion about diversity and your cormitnent to
5 MR REEG Wé certainly don't want to -- 5 diversity. | do think there's serious concern at
6 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Good. W appreci ate 6 this Conmission to increase gender and racial
7 that very much. Thank you, M. Reeg. 7 diversity in any way possible and I think it woul d
8 CHA RVAN BCRST:  He doesn't beat around the 8 nake sense for you to sort of repeat those points
9  bush. 9 to the Commission.
10 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  No. 10 MR REEG Absolutely. So Caesars has
11 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Any questions fromstaff? 11 existing prograns around gender and minority
12 Robin? 12 diversity. And given the events over the last two
13 MR BABBITT: | just have a couple questions. |13 to three months, |'ve started talking to Jan Jones
14 So | understand that you put M. Mrris in 14 at Caesars. Jan Jones headed those efforts at
15 place as the senior vice president of racing and 15 Caesars. She's the forner mayor of Las Vegas, head
16 he'll be in that position for sone undefined time, |16 of corporate social responsibility area.
17 but 1'massuning that the coomtnent is an ongoing |17 As part of the transaction, there are five
18 commtrent. |'ve heard only good things about 18 Caesars bhoard nenbers joining six of our H dorado
19 M. Mrris, but that this position will be a 19 board nenbers to formthe new el even- nenber
20 permanent position -- 20 Hdorado board. V& asked prior to closing if
21 MR REEG That's correct. 21  Caesars would put Jan Jones on their board so that
22 MR BABBITT: -- that will be enbedded in the |22 we could take her as one of our board nenbers, and
23 sort of philosophy and cul ture of H dorado goi ng 23 I'mpleased to report that that actually took place
24 forward. 24 and Jan will be joining our board. Veé'Il be
25 MR REEG That's right. W'd like M. Mrris |25 forning a corporate social responsibility comittee
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1 tostay as long as he'd |ike. 1 of the board that Jan will chair.
2 MR BABBITT: Veéll, | hope it's decades and 2 | have given her direction in the mdst of
3 decades and | hope M. Carano is there for himto 3 recent activity to pull forward the gender and
4 report to for decades and decades. But there will 4 mnority diversity prograns that Caesars had been
5 be adirect report between the senior vice 5 developing that are quite well devel oped, but we
6 president of racing and chief operating officer? 6 want to get there quicker. You know, we pride
7 MR REEG That's correct, sir. 7 oursel ves on being a conpany that finds
8 MR BABBITT: The other thing, | think, that 8 inefficiencies where we can drive value. | think
9 would be hel pful, just because the Ponpano issue 9 what we're talking about here is an inefficiency
10 has been addressed and | think 10 where the entire casino sector seens to fish in the
11 Representative Austin said it really well. There's |11 over 50 white nale pool for managerment talent, and
12 anmarriage of gamng and racing in Indiana. It was |12 we think, A it's the right thing to do, but we
13 instituted at the sane time. It cane up through 13 think, B, it's an opportunity for us to devel op new
14 the legislature. The legislature did all of these |14 talent for the future.
15 things that supported the horse racing agribusiness | 15 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Good.  Thank you.
16 end of it. Sol think it's helpful for someone 16 MR BABBITT: The last question, M. Chair,
17 fromHBdorado sinply to make clear that that 17 with your pernission, would be that: During the
18 situation in Ponpano is that situation, it's a 18 Ganing Commssion's hearing there was sone
19 unique situation, and that you woul d never perceive | 19 discussion about not cutting enploynment |evels at
20 taking any actions to decouple racing and gaming in |20 the Indiana casinos and | think there was a general
21 the state of Indiana. 21 commitment nade to that effect and | would think it
22 MR REEG VYes. | think it's inportant that 22 woul d be appropriate to ask you if you woul d make
23 I'mthe guy to address that and tell you that we 23 the sane conmitrent to racing. | would nention
24 have absolutely no intention of pursuing that in 24 that racing is a highly |abor-intensive endeavor
25 Indiana. 25 both froma public safety standpoint and froman
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1 integrity standpoint, both which are critical to 1 that's not corporate secrets?

2 the operation of Indiana horse racing. So if you 2 MR REEG M. Commissioner, | assume your

3 would be prepared to make a simlar comitnent to 3 questionis relative to Indiana divestitures?

4 the Racing Coomission, | think that woul d be 4 OOW SSI ONER P LLON  Yes.

5 appropriate. 5 MR REEG Because we didn't want to be

6 MR REEG W¢'re happy to nake a sinilar 6 presunptuous of outcomes, we really haven't done

7 comitnent relative toracing that we did to 7 significant work. In our financing, which we did

8 gamng. 8 about alittle under a nonth ago at this point, we

9 MR BABBITT: | have no further questions. 9 had to disclose the expectation that we woul d have

10 Thank you, M. Chair. 10 divestitures in Indiana. So we've had quite a few

11 CHAI RVAN BCRST: Do you have any final 11 incomng calls, but we have not yet started the

12 statenment that you' d like to make? 12 process.

13 MR REEG Just thank you again for your 13 COW SSI ONER PILLON  Ckay.  Thank you.

14 consideration and thank you for bringing us all 14 That's all.

15 together in person. 15 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Cormi ssi on Schenkel ?

16 COMM SSI ONER SCHENKEL:  Thank you. 16 COMM SSI ONER SCHENKEL: | think before that we

17 CHA RVAN BCRST:  kay. Conmi ssioners have no |17  have no experience with you folks up to this point,

18 further questions, then at this point |'mgoing to |18 so we're relying on your word and on your prom ses.

19 close the record. 19 |'mvery encouraged -- as | said earlier, | was

20 The next step will be each Conmi ssion nenber 20 skeptical -- but I've been encouraged as tine has

21 has a chance to nake a statement or a concern again |21 gone on and you' ve repeatedly promsed to naintain

22 if they'd like to. MNot a notion yet. W'Il go 22 first-class facilities and to pronote and do all

23 through each of us. If you don't have anything to |23 the things that we're charged with to make sure

24 say, that's fine. If you' ve got something you want |24 that horse racing in Indiana is done in the best

25 to say. Conmissioner MCarty, do you got anything |25 public interest. So we |ook forward to those words
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1 that you'dliketo. . .? 1 beconing deeds and actions. Thank you.

2 OOW SSI ONER MCARTY:  Yes. In closing, | 2 CHAI RVAN BCRST: Vel |, | guess to wap it up,

3 would just like to enphasize how seriously we take 3 want to thank everybody for all their cooperation,

4 these commtnents and obligations and will be very | 4 Hdorado especially. It's been tough times these

5 assertive about making sure they are fulfilled. W | 5 last fewnonths and |ike you say things haven't

6 appreciate both the responsiveness and relation to 6 quite gone the pace that we thought they woul d, but

7 (audio interruption), and we just want everybody to| 7 neither has the rest of the country. | appreciate

8 understand we are thoroughly very serious about 8 you just going right off the bat on the Reed report

9 neking sure they're conplied with. That's it. 9 and addressing that. That's a good sign of things

10 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Thank you. 10 that you recogni ze that and we have to reflect on

11 Conmissioner Pillow? 11 that report. Wen we see sone of the things that

12 COMM SSIONER PILLON M nic isn't working. 12 have happened since then with Joe Mrris. Joe,

13 CHAI RVAN BCRST: It isn't? 13 you've got a lot riding on your shoul ders, buddy.

14 COMW SSIONER PILLON | woul d just kind of 14 1 don't know You may not went the job after all

15 like to echo Bill's statement that we will be 15 this. That and the things that you' ve done, the

16 looking at this pretty thoroughly. |'ve been on 16 commitments to all of the executive director's

17  this Conmi ssion now for about five or six years and | 17 things and sonme other things through sone letters

18 |'ve seen a lot of changes and two or three 18 that aren't in her neno. There'll probably be

19  ownerships, and stability is what | think that 19  20-sone conditions that we'll have on there and

20 we're all looking for to make sure that horse 20 you've, | think, pretty much said okay to all of

21 racing in Indiana stays at the golden standard now |21 them You've agreed to have the same nmanagenent

22 like you saidit is. | just wanted to commend 22 style that we've gotten to knowin all these years

23 HBdorado on coming in and stepping up to the plate. |23 here in Indiana, and that's inportant. You're

24 | would like to ask one quick question. How |24 going to keep the sane managenent team That's

25 far along are you on your divestiture process, if 25 inportant too.
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1 So | think with all these concerns addressed, 1 applicable Indiana | aw
2 | disagree with sone of the horsemen that don't put | 2 COW SSIONER PILLONV 1" Il second that noti on.
3 it all on us because thisis ateam | think in 3 CHAI RVMAN BCRST: W' ve got a second,
4  Kkeeping Hdorado's feet to the fire, it's going to 4  Commissioner Pillow
5 take horsenen, too, because you guys are on the 5 Everybody understand the notion with the
6 ground. Inthis state horsenen are not afraid to 6 conditions? Any further discussion?
7 speak up, as you may have heard, and that's great. 7 MR BABBITT: M. Chair, | think to be
8 So you all know howto get ahold of us if things 8 consistent, wouldn't aroll-call vote be
9 aren't goingright. Soit's going to take a team 9 appropriate?
10 between the horsenen, the Comm ssion Staff, 10 CHAI RVMAN BCRST:  Ve' [l get to that. I'm
11 Conmi ssioners, and obviously the track managenent 11 learning. |'mgetting trained right. | was going
12 to nake this work, but the good news is we've got 12 togototheroll call. 1 think we're ready for
13  stability, as George said, for nost of this, the 13 the roll-call vote then.
14 people on the ground that make things happen, and 14 MR JAXKSON  Thank you, M. Chairnan.
15 it's just ownership is going to change and so | 15 Roll-call vote. Chairman Borst.
16 think that's a good sign too. 16 CHAI RVAN BCRST:  Aye.
17 Anyway, we appreciate all your forthrightness |17 MR JACKSCN Vi ce-chairman Schenkel .
18 today especially to cone in and talk to us and tell |18 MR SCHENKEL:  Aye.
19 us howyou feel. You've got it figured out, as | 19 MR JACKSCN  Cormi ssi oner MCarty.
20 saidearlier, thisis afanly and we'd like to 20 COW SSI ONER MeCARTY:  Aye.
21  keep it that way. 21 MR JAKSCN  And Conmi ssi oner Pillow
22 Wth that, if there's no other discussion, | 22 COW SSI ONER PILLOV  Aye eye.
23  guess we're ready for a notion. \& can have a 23 MR JACKSCN  Thank you.
24 notion to pass the pernits or we can have a motion |24 CHAI RVAN BCRST: It was unani mously four to
25 with conditions or we can have a notion to deny. 25  nothing.
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1 Soif sonmebody would want to make a notion, we're 1 Again, got to thank Indiana Gand for
2 ready, we're at that point. Commssioner Schenkel? | 2 arranging this. This was great, perfect, coul dn't
3 OOW SSI ONER SCHENKEL: | woul d nove to 3 have been any better, and we certainly appreciate
4 approve the B dorado transfer of petition subject 4 it.
5 tothe follow ng conditions and/or covenants: 5 V¢' ve got to thank H dorado organization again
6 1. Any proposed conditions contained in the 6 for answering all the questions. | guess if you're
7 staff report subnitted by the Cormission's 7 inall these states, | don't know how you keep them
8 executive director; 8 all straight, but | guess you figure that out.
9 2. Any conditions that reflect any 9 Hor semen associ ations, thank you. Thank you
10 comnmtnents nade by E dorado since the transfer 10 for neeting with themand comng up with ideas
11  petition was filed; 11  because you're on the ground, you know the stuff
12 3. Any other necessary and appropriate 12 that's the nost inportant.
13 conditions, additions, and/or revisions nade by our |13 (obvi ously Deena and Noah and Jessica and Megan
14 counsel that are supported by the comments of the 14 and Tomand Dal e, everybody on the staff, thank you
15  Commission during this hearing and our 15 because this is a tedious process, and we've tried
16 deliberations; and 16 to do this right.
17 4. Any technical or legal additions that our |17 Fobin Babbitt, unbelievable guy. He's
18 counsel deens appropriate. 18 forgotten nore than all of us in this room conbined
19 As a part of the notion, | request that our 19  could ever know probably, and we appreciate it.
20 counsel pronptly provide a proposed final order for |20 You are an unbel i evabl e asset.
21 the Conmission's review revision, and execution 21 Aso finally the Conmissioners for reading all
22 that would subsequently be provided to Hdorado and |22 this. There was a lot to read. And those of you
23 woul d becone effective upon H dorado' s acceptance 23 know ne, well, ny twenty-eight years on the
24 of any conditions or covenants set forth in this 24 Qty-County Council | read everything and | drove
25 final order or as otherw se provided for by 25 people nuts. | like that and | like all the
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1 information that we've had.
2 So with that, wel come to Indiana, H dorado.
3 (col l'ective thank you)
4 (appl ause)
5 CHAI RVAN BCRST: Do we have any ol d busi ness?
6 Any new busi ness?
7 Seeing none, we are adjourned. Thank you.
8
9 (The neeting of the Indiana Horse Racing
10 Commission adjourned at 1:10 p.m)
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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1 STATE OF | NDI ANA
2 COUNTY OF MARI ON
3
4 I, Mchele K Gustafson, CRR-RPR, a
5 Notary Public in and for said county and state, do
6 hereby certify that the foregoing matter was taken
7 down in stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to
8 typewiting under ny direction; and that the
9 typewitten transcript is a true record of the
10 I ndiana Horse Racing Conmi ssion neeting;
11 | do further certify that I ama disinterested
12 person in this; that | amnot a relative of the
13 attorneys for any of the parties.
14 IN WTNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set ny
15 hand and affixed nmy notarial seal this 27th day of
16 July, 2020. ) P
17 Z/{é A )%dé,{‘»fw
18 -
19
20
21 M Conmmi ssion expires:

August 31, 2025
22
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      1                          AGENDA



      2    I.  Call to Order



      3   II.  Approval of memorandum and executive session

               memorandum from the May 28, 2020, meeting

      4

         III.  Agenda

      5

              1.  Consideration of Settlement Agreement between

      6           IHRC Staff and Gabriel Saez.



      7       2.  Consideration of the following proposed

                  emergency rule change: 71 IAC 9-4-7 Pick (n)

      8           pools



      9       3.  Review of commission rulings - May 11, 2020

                  through July 9, 2020.

     10
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     11           Decision relating to Petition of

                  Eldorado Resorts, Inc., Notice of Hearing and

     12           Pre-Hearing Order on Petition of

                  Eldorado Resorts, Inc., for Approval to

     13           Transfer Permits and Licenses.



     14   IV.  Old Business
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     16   VI.  Adjournment
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      1          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  We'll call this



      2     meeting of the Indiana Horse Racing Commission to



      3     order, July 13, 2020.  We welcome all of you here.



      4     This is certainly weird times.  The last meeting



      5     was virtual and this one we're all masked people.



      6     So we appreciate you being here.



      7          I see that we have a quorum.  On the phone is



      8     Bill McCarty, commissioner.  Commissioner McCarty



      9     is on the phone, so we have four members here.  We



     10     just have to thank Indiana Grand because they've



     11     had so much on their plate in the last week, the



     12     derby and plus all this other stuff, and for them



     13     to make the accommodations for us, we just can't



     14     thank you enough.  Because we tried to get into the



     15     State Museum, as you know, but they weren't going



     16     to let us let the public in.  We tried to get



     17     government buildings, State Government, well,



     18     they're not open.  So Deena scrambled, and



     19     Indiana Grand was so gracious to let us be here and



     20     we certainly thank you.  So that's why we're here



     21     anyway.



     22          There's going to be a sign-up sheet.  Is the



     23     sign-up sheet in the back?



     24          MR. BABBITT:  The sign-up sheet is in the back



     25     on the bar.
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      1          CHAIRMAN BORST:  There's no beverages, so



      2     sorry.  You can go to the bar and sign up if you



      3     want to speak, and then you will be sworn in when



      4     the appropriate time comes.



      5          At this time I'd like to swear in our court



      6     reporter, Michele Gustafson.  Raise your right



      7     hand.



      8          (At this time the oath was administered to the



      9     court reporter by Chairman Borst.)



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     11          Okay.  So we'll have the approval of the



     12     minutes or the memorandum of May 28, 2020.



     13          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Second.



     14          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Been moved?  Do I have a



     15     motion first?



     16          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  I think George moved.



     17          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  So moved.



     18          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Second.



     19          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Any questions?



     20          All those in favor say "aye."



     21          THE COMMISSION:  "Aye."



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Do we have to do the roll



     23     call?



     24          MR. JACKSON:  Yes, sir.  I'm sorry, yes.



     25     Because Commissioner McCarty's on the phone, we'll
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      1     do a roll-call vote.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  We'll do a roll-call



      3     vote.



      4          MR. JACKSON:  Chairman Borst.



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Aye.



      6          MR. JACKSON:  Vice-chairman Schenkel.



      7          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.



      8          MR. JACKSON:  Commissioner Pillow.



      9          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.



     10          MR. JACKSON:  And Commissioner McCarty.



     11          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Aye.



     12          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  We'll get this



     14     down yet.



     15          Next on the agenda is consideration of the



     16     settlement agreement between the Commission Staff



     17     and Gabriel Saez.  Noah, are you going to handle



     18     that one?



     19          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



     20          Commissioners, you have in your packet the



     21     amended settlement agreement that was fully



     22     executed in July 2020 between Commission Staff and



     23     jockey Gabriel Saez.  Mr. Saez rode in the fourth



     24     race at Indiana Grand on June 17, 2020.  During the



     25     fourth race an incident occurred where three
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      1     jockeys were unseated from their mounts.  After



      2     reviewing the video of the race post-incident, the



      3     stewards suspended Mr. Saez for 30 days for



      4     careless riding, citing a violation of three



      5     separate rules.  Mr. Saez timely filed an appeal of



      6     the ruling.



      7          After settlement discussions Staff and



      8     Mr. Saez reached the agreement that you have before



      9     you.  Mr. Saez agreed to dismiss his appeal and



     10     serve the entirety of the 30-day suspension.  In



     11     return, the ruling against Mr. Saez was amended to



     12     state that he was considered eligible to ride



     13     stakes races during the suspension period, provided



     14     he agreed to add one day to his suspension for



     15     every day that he rode in a stakes race.



     16          At this time I would respectfully request the



     17     Commission's approval of the settlement agreement.



     18          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Have any motions?  Questions?



     19          Move acceptance of the settlement agreement?



     20          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Moved.



     21          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Second.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Moved by



     23     Commissioner Schenkel, seconded by



     24     Commissioner McCarty.  Further questions?



     25          Roll-call vote.
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      1          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.  Chairman Borst.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Aye.



      3          MR. JACKSON:  Vice-chairman Schenkel.



      4          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.



      5          MR. JACKSON:  Commissioner Pillow.



      6          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Aye.



      7          MR. JACKSON:  And Commissioner McCarty.



      8          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Aye.



      9          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  The vote is four to nothing.



     11          Next on the agenda is consideration of the



     12     following proposed emergency rule change on



     13     pick (n) pools.  Noah, you're going to take that



     14     one too?



     15          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you, yes.



     16          Commissioners, you have before you a single



     17     rule change to the Rule 71 IAC 9-4-7.  At the



     18     May 28 meeting you were asked to vote on



     19     Indiana Grand's request for promotional takeout



     20     reduction on pick five wagering.  The Commission



     21     unanimously voted to approve the change.  However,



     22     when Indiana Grand attempted to institute the



     23     change following the Commission approval, there



     24     were some issues with the rule before you now.  The



     25     proposed language has been tested by Indiana Grand
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      1     and we believe that all issues regarding the



      2     approved wager from May 28 will be resolved with



      3     this proposed change to the rules.



      4          At this time Commission Staff respectfully



      5     requests your approval of the proposed rule change,



      6     and the change will be made under the Commission's



      7     emergency adoption procedure, which means that it



      8     will go into effect as soon as it is filed.  I just



      9     also wanted to mention that the rule was put in



     10     front of stakeholders and we did not receive any



     11     comments on it.



     12          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  Any questions,



     13     Commission members?



     14          Do we have a motion?



     15          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  So moved.



     16          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Second.



     17          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Moved by Commissioner Pillow,



     18     second by Commissioner Schenkel.  Any further



     19     discussion?



     20          Roll-call vote.



     21          MR. JACKSON:  Chairman Borst.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Aye.



     23          MR. JACKSON:  Vice-chairman Schenkel.



     24          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Aye.



     25          MR. JACKSON:  Commissioner Pillow.
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      1          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Aye.



      2          MR. JACKSON:  And Commissioner McCarty.



      3          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Aye.



      4          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Passes four to nothing.



      6          No. 3 on the agenda is just the review of



      7     Commission rulings from May 11 to July 6.  It's not



      8     anything we have to take a vote on, so that's just



      9     for our edification.



     10          No. 4, hearing, deliberation and issuance of



     11     decision relating to petition of Eldorado Resorts,



     12     Inc., notice of hearing and pre-hearing order on



     13     petition of Eldorado Resorts, Inc., for approval to



     14     transfer permits and licenses.



     15          The purpose of this hearing is for ERI, the



     16     petitioner, an opportunity to make the presentation



     17     relating to their transfer of petition to the



     18     Indiana Horse Racing Commission, an opportunity for



     19     the executive director to offer any testimony that



     20     she wishes to provide in order to supplement the



     21     record, the Commission an opportunity to ask



     22     questions of any party, representatives, and



     23     witnesses who may testify at the hearing, and an



     24     opportunity for non-party organizations and persons



     25     to provide testimony in support or adverse to the
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      1     petition.  The matter will be heard and will



      2     continue with appropriate recess until completed.



      3     The record will be closed at the conclusion of the



      4     hearing and the Commission will then deliberate and



      5     decide whether the petition will be approved,



      6     disapproved, or approved with conditions.  Does not



      7     comprehend discussion during the deliberation of



      8     the petitioner or other interested parties.



      9          I now defer to our Commission counsel to give



     10     us some housekeeping matters.



     11          MR. BABBITT:  Thank you, Chair Borst.



     12          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Robin Babbitt.



     13          MR. BABBITT:  I appreciate that.  I'd like to



     14     cover a few things before the presentation is



     15     actually started.  The first is that pursuant to



     16     the pre-hearing order, the Commission submitted an



     17     exhibit list which was captioned Exhibits A through



     18     W with particular subsections.



     19          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Is your microphone on?



     20          MR. BABBITT:  Is this not working?



     21          MS. PITMAN:  There you go.



     22          MR. BABBITT:  I haven't been singing karaoke



     23     enough lately to figure out how to do this.



     24          So we have all of the exhibits designated.



     25     The exhibits came in without objection.  I would
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      1     note that we had a catchall category, category W,



      2     that comprehended that if there were any letters or



      3     submissions provided in response to the public



      4     version of the staff report that we would make



      5     those a part of the record as well.  Those



      6     materials in category W include Mr. Reeg's letter



      7     to the Executive Director dated July 9, 2020.



      8     There was a submission made by Nat Hill in



      9     opposition which was a total of 13 pages.  In



     10     addition, there was a letter from Mayor Broderick,



     11     the City of Anderson, to the Commission in support



     12     of the petition dated July 9, 2020.  There was an



     13     additional letter from the ISA, again in support of



     14     the staff recommendations in the transfer petition,



     15     that was dated July 9.  There was a letter from



     16     ITOBA in support of the transfer of petition that



     17     came in, I believe, on the 10th of July.



     18     Thereafter, we received a letter in support of the



     19     transfer of petition from Dean Willie Reed, the



     20     chair of Purdue's College of Veterinary Medicine,



     21     dated July 10, 2020.  Lastly, at 11:57 last night,



     22     so it was actually dated July 12, I got a letter in



     23     support of the petition from Steve Bateson, the



     24     president of the Ohio Harness Horsemen's



     25     Association.
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      1          Those materials have all been circulated to



      2     the Commission and we would request that the chair



      3     make Commission Exhibits A through W inclusive a



      4     part of the record of these proceedings.



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I grant the request to make



      6     all Exhibits A through W from the Commission's



      7     exhibit list part of the record.



      8          MR. BABBITT:  Then the next thing that we



      9     would like to point out is that we filed a request



     10     for official notice pursuant to



     11     Indiana Code 4-21.5-3-26(f).  This was filed and



     12     dated timely on July 8, 2020.  The basic purpose of



     13     this is simply to make clear -- and I don't think



     14     that anyone will contest it for purposes of the



     15     proceeding -- that Eldorado, Caesars, and formerly



     16     Centaur were all subject to the statute rules and



     17     administrative regulations that are cited in the



     18     request for official notice.



     19          The Commission, because we have a long history



     20     that has sort of brought us to this point today,



     21     the Commission is entitled to take official notice



     22     of other proceedings before the Commission.  So in



     23     2 we are asking that the Commission take official



     24     notice of its final order in re: Centaur's



     25     acquisition of Indiana Grand dated January 7, 2013,
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      1     the Commission's final order in re: the approval of



      2     the initial distribution agreement dated



      3     December 10, 2013, and the Commission's final order



      4     in re: Caesars acquisition of Hoosier Park and



      5     Indiana Grand with related permits and licenses



      6     dated July 10, 2018.



      7          So we would ask at this time, Mr. Chair, that



      8     you grant our request to take official notice of



      9     all of the things referenced in the request for



     10     official notice which I have just described.



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I grant that counsel's



     12     request to take official notice of all the



     13     documents and laws referenced in the request for



     14     official notice filed on July 8 and direct that



     15     those be made a part of the record.



     16          MR. BABBITT:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.



     17          Then lastly I'll get some last housekeeping



     18     details covered and then we'll turn this over to



     19     the chair to turn it over to the petitioners.



     20          The first thing that I would note is that for



     21     the benefit of the Commission and the court



     22     reporter, it's very important that each person who



     23     addresses the Commission identify themselves.



     24     Given the fact that we're all wearing face masks,



     25     that's even more important than it has been in the
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      1     past.  So please identify who you are when you



      2     approach the podium to address the Commission.



      3     That also helps the court reporter as she's going



      4     through and putting the record of the proceedings



      5     together.



      6          There is a public comment section, and that



      7     public comment section based upon the notice that



      8     was issued will be limited to those people that are



      9     here, because I don't think the technology would



     10     support any other position and, quite frankly, the



     11     notice made clear that if you were going to provide



     12     public input you needed to come in person.  So if



     13     you're here and you would like to submit any



     14     testimony during the public input section, please



     15     sign the sign-up sheet in the back and at the



     16     appropriate time we'll bring that up to the front.



     17          Now, any witness who will testify during this



     18     particular proceeding must be sworn by the chairman



     19     so that obviously the petitioner knows who they're



     20     going to have address the Commission, so those



     21     people will stand to be sworn en masse by the



     22     chair.  Those of you who are going to speak during



     23     the public comment section, please stand and be



     24     sworn as well because it's important for everyone



     25     to be sworn before they give testimony.
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      1          The Commission will assume that all witnesses



      2     have been sworn at the beginning of the



      3     presentation of evidence unless instructed



      4     otherwise by the person or that party's



      5     representative.  So it's your responsibility to



      6     make sure you're sworn and if you come up and



      7     address the Commission we're going to assume that



      8     you were.



      9          With the permission of the chair, the



     10     Commissioners or the Commission's counsel may ask



     11     questions of any witness at any time or after the



     12     presentation is complete.  So there may be a



     13     situation where a Commissioner has a question that



     14     they want to address to you.  They obviously with



     15     the chair's permission will be able to do so.  If



     16     not, that doesn't mean that they won't ask it



     17     because it could come up at the end of the



     18     presentation.



     19          That's pretty much it for housekeeping



     20     matters.  Unless the Commission or the petitioners



     21     have anything else they'd like to address, I'm



     22     ready to turn it back over to you, Mr. Chair, so



     23     that you can preside over the hearing.



     24          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Seeing none, just to give you



     25     an idea of how the hearing's going to go.  There'll
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      1     be an opening statement, then there'll be a



      2     presentation by ERI, the opening statement by ERI,



      3     there'll be testimony of the Commission Staff and



      4     public testimony, then any rebuttal or final



      5     statement, and then we'll close the record, and



      6     then we'll have a deliberation and decision on it.



      7     So that way you know how things will go.  So I'm



      8     not going to forget anybody.



      9          All those who intend to testify, if you would



     10     stand and raise your right hand, we'll just do it



     11     all en masse.  If somebody comes later and decides,



     12     we'll swear them in.



     13          (At this time the oath was administered to any



     14     witnesses.)



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  All right.  Okay.  So we're



     16     here obviously this is a momentous occasion and



     17     horse racing in Indiana has taken a long time to



     18     get to this point.  Some people don't know the



     19     whole story, but there's a certain State Senator



     20     who spent over twenty years to get this through the



     21     legislature and had to change the



     22     Indiana Constitution because horse racing was



     23     deemed to be a lottery and so lottery had to come



     24     in and then horse racing.  It started about 1969



     25     and finally 1989, I guess, is when we had the
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      1     legislation and racing began about five years



      2     later.  I lived through a lot of that because that



      3     State Senator happened to have been my dad.



      4          So I'm really honored to be here at this



      5     juncture of horse racing.  As we all know, we've



      6     got a family here between the horsemen, between the



      7     tracks, between the Commission Staff,



      8     Commissioners, and I think ERI understands that and



      9     I hope they do because we want to continue that.



     10     We've got a good thing going in Indiana and we do



     11     not want it to go downhill.  We want it to only get



     12     better.  Hopefully that's where we're going to go.



     13          So with that, I don't know who's going to give



     14     the opening statement for ERI, but if you'd like to



     15     come up and, again, state your name so the



     16     transcriber will be able to get it all right.



     17          MR. REEG:  Morning.  I'm Tom Reeg, chief



     18     executive officer of Eldorado.  Is this working?



     19          MR. BABBITT:  It is.



     20          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I think so.  Maybe a little



     21     higher.  There you go.



     22          MR. REEG:  Tom Reeg, chief executive officer



     23     of Eldorado.  Chairman Borst, Commissioners,



     24     Executive Director Pitman, Noah, Robin, thank you



     25     for all the work that everybody's put in to get to
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      1     this point today.  I know this has been much longer



      2     process than any of us were anticipating.  We



      3     didn't expect to be wearing masks.  I personally



      4     appreciate you allowing us to come meet you here in



      5     person.  It's important to us to start these



      6     relationships on a face-to-face basis.



      7          I also want to thank all the various



      8     horsemen's groups that spent a great deal of time



      9     meeting with us, local community leaders.  It's a



     10     great thing to see how much pride the entire area



     11     takes in these businesses and it shows.  It showed



     12     as we've gotten into this starting a little over a



     13     year ago.



     14          You know, I'd say as I was walking the floor



     15     this morning, it's a beautiful property, continuing



     16     to get better.  The addition of tables on the



     17     casino side.  We know that none of this is here



     18     without the racing community.  This comes with the



     19     responsibility to be a steward of that business,



     20     and we understand that Centaur set a very high bar



     21     to be a leader in the space in these tracks.  You



     22     see it.  These tracks are as good as any in the



     23     country, and we understand it's a solemn



     24     responsibility to take control of them.



     25          I will tell you I read Executive Director
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      1     Pitman's report.  I read the Reed report.  I'll



      2     take that on right out of the box, and I'm not



      3     going to stand in front of you and offer excuses.



      4     What I'll tell you is what I read in the Reed



      5     report was not acceptable to me.  I know it's not



      6     acceptable to this Commission.  You've seen us make



      7     changes immediately upon the issuance of it,



      8     bringing in Joe Morris, who is our director of



      9     racing, is going to be the man on the ground here



     10     with you.  But I also understand that you can't fix



     11     that in a couple of months by hiring one guy.  It's



     12     got to be a commitment from the company.



     13          Going back to Executive Director Pitman's



     14     report, we've seen the list of conditions in that



     15     report.  We understand that this Commission, if



     16     they give us the opportunity to own these tracks,



     17     will need to hold our feet to the fire, and we are



     18     ready and willing to accept all of the conditions



     19     in that report.



     20          As I start to go through presentation, what



     21     I'd say is I'm presuming that everybody saw or is



     22     aware of what went on Friday at the Indiana Gaming



     23     Commission, so our remarks today are focused on



     24     racing.  We have the broader deal slides in the



     25     back of the presentation.  We're happy to go
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      1     through and cover any ground that you'd like to



      2     cover, but we're focused on the impact on racing in



      3     this transaction.



      4          So if we could put the presentation up on



      5     video and start on slide 1.



      6          MS. PITMAN:  Do you have somebody that's going



      7     to be doing that?



      8          MR. REEG:  I have it.



      9          CHAIRMAN BORST:  How about that?  There you



     10     go.



     11          MR. REEG:  Thank you.



     12          And I'd also tell you Joe is going to be your



     13     man on the ground, but I'm not coming in here and



     14     leaving again.  You're going to see me.  This is



     15     extremely important to our company.  These



     16     properties are going to be significant growth



     17     drivers for our company and we're making serious



     18     commitments here, and I'm going to see to it



     19     personally that we live up to the commitments that



     20     we're making, should we get the opportunity from



     21     this Commission to do so.



     22          As I said, we've appointed a new corporate



     23     leadership team dedicated to racing, brought in



     24     Joe Morris.  We empower local leadership, we don't



     25     do things on centralized basis generally, so it's
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      1     the people that are on the ground every day that



      2     you deal with here that are going to be empowered



      3     to make decisions.



      4          We have made commitments across all aspects of



      5     the business to reinvest in racing, to improve the



      6     racing product, to focus on equine safety, we made



      7     commitments to local communities, and we're going



      8     to implement marketing improvements that we'll go



      9     through in detail as we get through the



     10     presentation.  I should tell you that Joe Morris



     11     will follow me and that Anthony Carano, our chief



     12     operating officer, will follow Joe.



     13          We have a board member, Mike Pegram, who



     14     happens to be a former Indiana Derby winner with



     15     Lookin At Lucky.  As we started to respond to what



     16     we saw in the Reed report, Mike introduced us to



     17     Joe Morris, who is well known within the community



     18     and has really hit the ground running for us.  He's



     19     been a breath of fresh air.  Over forty years in



     20     the business in many different roles, track



     21     management, horsemen associations, has been an



     22     owner on the standardbred and thoroughbred side,



     23     and involvement in a boarding facility as well.



     24          Our structure is the following:  Joe will



     25     report directly to chief operating officer
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      1     Anthony Carano, who you will hear from later, many



      2     of you in the room have met, and Anthony reports to



      3     me, so Rick and Eric go up through Joe to Anthony



      4     to me.  As I said, you have senior focus on this



      5     business from as high up as it gets in our company,



      6     up to and including the board.



      7          As all of you are aware, on Friday the



      8     Gaming Commission approved us with the condition



      9     that we sell three assets post-transaction.  Should



     10     you provide us the opportunity to own the tracks,



     11     I'm willing to commit to you that the tracks will



     12     not be utilized to settle those conditions.  It



     13     would be Evansville, Southern Indiana, and Hammond.



     14          You know, we are excited to get moving.  We



     15     intend to invest $60 million into these properties



     16     on the casino side.  It'll expand the table games



     17     operation.  We're committing to extend the



     18     12 percent share to horsemen for a significant



     19     period of time.  We will hit the ground running in



     20     terms of that expansion, which will bring forward



     21     that revenue as quick as we possibly can.



     22          We come out of this transaction, to briefly



     23     touch on the broader transaction, with $4 billion



     24     of liquidity as a combined company, so we can make



     25     the investments that are necessary in these tracks.
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      1     I contrast that with Caesars, as large as they are,



      2     in the model that they submitted to all of the



      3     regulators that put those transactions on pause



      4     because they were preserving liquidity.  So this



      5     transaction allows us to move that forward and get



      6     moving and get the revenue flowing as quickly as



      7     possible.  As you know, we've also committed to



      8     $25 million minimum every ten years into the tracks



      9     themselves.  We're excited to put that money to



     10     work as well.



     11          The last issue that I would touch on before



     12     turning to Joe that we've had some conversation



     13     about throughout the process is as part of the



     14     transaction there is a call arrangement for the



     15     real estate underlying the tracks.  That is not in



     16     front of the Commission today, as you know.  What I



     17     would tell you is the $4 billion of liquidity that



     18     we have post-transaction and now with the three



     19     casino sales on the gaming side should bring us



     20     over $5 billion liquidity makes it unlikely that we



     21     would exercise.  In terms of our present



     22     circumstance, we have no intention of exercising,



     23     but we can't speak to what our partner will



     24     ultimately do at the call.



     25          But we do understand that nothing will happen
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      1     there without we and Veche (sp.) coming forward to



      2     this Commission and convincing you that that's in



      3     the best interest of the state of Indiana and



      4     particularly the racing industry in Indiana.  So I



      5     wanted to speak to that directly even though that's



      6     not directly in front of you today.  And we are



      7     absolutely comfortable with the language relative



      8     to that particular piece that's in



      9     Executive Director Pitman's report to the



     10     Commission.



     11          So with that, I will turn it over to



     12     Joe Morris to get into detail on the racing side



     13     and I'll be back to deliver conclusion.



     14          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     15          Welcome.



     16          MR. MORRIS:  Thank you.  Joe Morris, senior



     17     vice president of racing for Eldorado.  Mr. Chair,



     18     Commissioners, horsemen in the room, good morning.



     19     Thank you for having this meeting today.  I'd like



     20     to acknowledge Doug Reed first.  I've read that



     21     report.  He did a darn good job with that.  Lot of



     22     work.  And I've known Doug for many, many years,



     23     about his age actually with forty years in the



     24     industry myself as he does.



     25          I was on the University of Arizona's advisory
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      1     board for a number of years and Doug put me there



      2     and used to work with the students.  He would place



      3     interns at the different tracks that I've worked at



      4     over the years and hired many people out of that



      5     program.  We've got two in the state out of that



      6     program.  We've got Eric Halstrom and Dan Fick, two



      7     of the better racing minds I've ever worked with,



      8     right from that school.



      9          When I look at the Reed report, I come up with



     10     a couple of takeaways.  One, he points out on two



     11     or three occasions in it each property that



     12     Eldorado had did have a unique set of circumstances



     13     at one moment.  They weren't all the same.  They



     14     were different in different areas and different



     15     things happened with them.  The second part that



     16     he, probably his biggest point he makes, is



     17     Eldorado and the tracks lacked expertise in their



     18     management.  There's no arguing that.  That is the



     19     case.



     20          When they bought those tracks from MTR, they



     21     had a lady named Rosemary Williams.  She was a good



     22     track operator.  She operated the three groups.



     23     She retired probably year and a half, two years



     24     after that happened and didn't get replaced with



     25     the expertise that needed to be there.  The
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      1     managers did lack authority and they were mired in



      2     a bureaucracy.  Just took too long sometimes to get



      3     a decision.



      4          When I was talking with Anthony about taking



      5     this position, I had the same three concerns.



      6     Anthony, I've been doing this for a long time.  I



      7     need to have the authority to run the racing



      8     program; I need to be able to put the teams



      9     together; and if I need an answer, I need to be



     10     able to get up the chain quick, get the answer.



     11     It's a fluid situation running racetracks and you



     12     got to keep on the move with them.



     13          That chart there enables that.  That fixes



     14     that.  I would say that racing is dynamic to



     15     itself.  The racing people need to be making the



     16     racing decisions.  We fix that in this case, and



     17     this structure actually manages itself.  So this is



     18     part of what we're doing to make this workable.



     19          We can go to the next slide.



     20          MR. REEG:  There's a clicker in front of you,



     21     Joe.



     22          MR. MORRIS:  All right.  My technical



     23     expertise is far below my racetrack.



     24          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Join the club.



     25          MR. MORRIS:  Streamlined structure for
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      1     business decisions on racing matters.  As I said, I



      2     have the authority to work with the teams and make



      3     those decisions.  Team being the important part.



      4     No one person can run a racetrack.  There's too



      5     many moving parts.  We develop a team.  I look for



      6     the brightest people I can find and we put them



      7     into those position.  Good news here, Rick Moore,



      8     Eric Halstrom, Emily Gaskin.  They're working here.



      9     We promote from within, we work from within, and we



     10     collaborate on running these racetracks.



     11          Communication's key to any business.  You need



     12     to be talking with your partner.  In this case when



     13     I'm making a decision, what are the horsemen going



     14     to think about it, what are the gamblers going to



     15     think about it, how are our employees going to work



     16     and help execute it.  Those are the seats I try to



     17     put myself in.  You can only do that if you're on



     18     the property.  You can't run a racetrack remote.



     19     You got to be there day to day, talking with your



     20     horsemen, talking with your customers, owners,



     21     drivers, and your employees to make this work.



     22          Operational plans, every track I've ever been



     23     at, you do a yearly plan.  You submit it to the



     24     Commission as part of your licensing generally in



     25     other states, but you include your operations, you
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      1     include your marketing plan, you include your



      2     stakes schedule, your purse levels, your capital



      3     plans, and you do that by talking with your



      4     partners.  You talk with the horsemen on stakes, on



      5     purses.  You get with your marketing team and come



      6     up with a plan.  First thing you do is you review



      7     the year before's, what'd we do right, what'd we do



      8     wrong, rely on that, build it into the new plan



      9     going forward.  Take that, you present it to your



     10     horsemen, to your Commission Staff.  You get input



     11     from your gamblers and you put those forward.



     12          We work with horsemen, and you'll hear that



     13     today.  I mean, I talk to my horsemen on a daily



     14     basis.  I am a horseman.  I racehorses.  I raise



     15     horses.  I've got 13 of them in my barn in



     16     Lexington, Kentucky.  It's what I've done my whole



     17     life.



     18          Reed kind of takes our past into consideration



     19     and he talks about that.  Here's our present.  This



     20     is our first experiment with this new structure,



     21     Scioto Downs.  Became the first harness track in



     22     North America to reopen.  We had a chance to do



     23     that.  I called Anthony.  I said, Anthony, I think



     24     we can be the first track in North America open.



     25     He said, I want to be the first track in
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      1     North America open.  I don't know when the casino.



      2     Not that he didn't care, but I don't care when the



      3     casino opens.  Make that the first track open.  We



      4     were able to do that.



      5          We changed our wagering format.  It was stale



      6     and it wasn't what the gamblers wanted.  Brought in



      7     some better commentary in talking to the gamblers,



      8     a guy named Gabe Prewitt there.  We changed the way



      9     we placed our races into the program.  We worked



     10     with our horsemen to make this happen.  We had



     11     twelve straight days where we exceeded a million



     12     dollars in handle.  We've done it three times more



     13     since.  We had one over $2 million.  We only had



     14     three days as the only track in North America.  We



     15     kept that run going.  To date, we're still



     16     averaging $860,000.



     17          Again, this is a track that over the last



     18     five, six years has averaged somewhere around



     19     $215,000.  So the results have been really good.



     20     We've bet $31 million in 36 days, a year ago on 90



     21     days we bet $19.5 million.  So we've made a



     22     difference there.  We got excitement back into that



     23     place.



     24          Part of it is the way we manage our post



     25     times.  We've been helping this area a little bit.
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      1     You know, the old days all you had was your



      2     customers at the track so all you had to watch was



      3     your customers at the track.  Then you get into



      4     when we started simulcast and it's pretty much the



      5     other tracks when they were going.



      6          The biggest part of everybody's handle today



      7     is the computer, and you've got to give them a



      8     chance to get into your races.  You've got to have



      9     liquidity for them to come into the races.  We've



     10     reached out to them and they're embracing Scioto.



     11     Similar to Hoosier's product, it's full fields and



     12     it's a lot of races.



     13          This year in 2020 we've run 550 races.  Same



     14     period a year ago we had run 487 races.  Give me a



     15     competitive race, I'm going to run the thing.  It's



     16     not going to sit.  We're in the racing business.



     17          Working with our horsemen on qualifiers, that



     18     gives you the form for the horse, the gamblers need



     19     to see it.  We fill in all of you ours so they can



     20     go back and look at the horse's form.  A year ago



     21     for the whole 90 days we ran 138 qualifiers.  To



     22     date, we've run 258 qualifiers.  We're there with



     23     the horsemen.  We're working with them.  We're



     24     getting that product out in front of the betting



     25     public.
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      1          I went to a meeting there early on with the



      2     horsemen and some of our key people, and they



      3     looked at me and said, What are you going to do to



      4     make this better, Joe?  I said, What do you mean



      5     what am I going to do?  It's what are we going to



      6     do.  This is a team effort.  We're going to do



      7     what's right always.  We're going to do what's



      8     right by our horsemen.  We're going to do what's



      9     right by our gamblers and our employees.  That's



     10     where it starts at a track.  You do that



     11     consistently and you get that product out there,



     12     the financial results will follow.  That's happened



     13     for years and years the way we've done that, so we



     14     embrace that.



     15          The other important thing there is our track



     16     surface and our maintenance.  I've added track



     17     employees.  There wasn't enough there.  I brought



     18     in the Coons Brothers, Greg and Danny.  I wouldn't



     19     be at a harness track without them.  They are great



     20     consultants.  They have a worldwide reputation.



     21     They're part of our program there at Scioto, and



     22     we've got morale at record levels with employees



     23     and with horsemen.



     24          Growth of Indiana racing, this is the highest



     25     platform of any state I've ever come in on.  When
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      1     the horsemen, the Commission, and legislators put



      2     this program together, you really got it right.  I



      3     mean, we're coming in at a high level here.  One



      4     thing we need, I believe, is some more big days.



      5     We've got Indiana Derby and Oaks.  Last Wednesday,



      6     I mean, big day, record handle.  We need two or



      7     three more big days at Hoosier and we need to



      8     capitalize at Indiana Breeders Crown at Hoosier.



      9     We're in conversations now with Breeders Crown and



     10     there's an opportunity maybe for Hoosier to be on a



     11     three-year cycle, Meadowlands, Woodbine, and



     12     Hoosier, and we'd like to see that happen.



     13          On the quarter horse side of things, they're



     14     having a record meet here this year also and we're



     15     hoping to work with them and the AQHA and get



     16     quarter horse Challenge Championship here and that



     17     could be their crown race.



     18          Best-in-class racing, that's what you always



     19     strive for.  If you're in business, you want to be



     20     best in class.  Hoosier racetrack should become the



     21     number-one harness track in America.  They have the



     22     facilities, they have the horses, driver quality,



     23     horsemen.  We just need to get the handle up some



     24     and we'll do that.



     25          Indiana Grand, great product.  The Monday
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      1     through Thursday schedule is good.  Indiana Grand



      2     is the big signal on those days, so you're not



      3     competing against some of the giants on a Friday or



      4     Saturday.  You get to showcase it where you're the



      5     big signal.



      6          We need to continue to advertise and



      7     promotional spend.  We've looked at what they've



      8     done in the past.  We've looked at their schedules.



      9     They spend a decent amount of money on their



     10     promotions.  We will add to that as a part of what



     11     we do and we'll particularly add to it when we're



     12     promoting our big race days.



     13          Cross promotion, utilization, not only between



     14     the two tracks, between the casinos.  12 percent of



     15     our purse money comes from the casinos.  We need to



     16     be tying into that.  As a part of if this deal goes



     17     through, there'll be six other tracks that we can



     18     put together and leverage with each other and it'll



     19     make the Indiana tracks stronger as a part of that.



     20          Anthony's committed to another 10 percent in



     21     advertising and promotional spend for 2020.  At



     22     Hoosier we'll use that on Breeders Cup.



     23          The other huge advantage is Caesars Rewards.



     24     There's not another racetrack group that'll have



     25     Caesars Rewards.  He with the biggest list at the
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      1     end of the day is going to win and this is a



      2     60 million person list that we will be able to mine



      3     into and use to the benefit of Hoosier and Grand.



      4          Equine safety, human safety on the track,



      5     highest of priorities.  I worked with the NTRA.  I



      6     was there when they developed the NTRA safety



      7     alliance.  Every track I ran in California,



      8     thoroughbred track, was a part of that.  Big



      9     believer in it.  We will stay with that group.



     10     We'll work with the safety stewards and the



     11     Commission on other areas.



     12          One of the things I've always done is graph



     13     the information.  You're doing moisture readings.



     14     You're doing compaction readings.  You're doing



     15     compaction on your turf.  Graph that and it'll tell



     16     you a story over time as conditions change.



     17          We will have our industry experts -- as I said



     18     earlier, the Coons Brothers are already on -- and



     19     I've always used science at racetracks.  You need



     20     to be testing the viscosity of your gravel.  You



     21     need to know the level of silt and the level of



     22     clay.  Your root structure on a turf course, you



     23     need science to help determine that.  I've always



     24     used Mick Peterson from Kentucky, but we will



     25     continue to use that information.  Science has to
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      1     be a part of what we're doing on our track



      2     surfaces.



      3          The reinvestment in racing, we understand that



      4     we are starting at a high, high level here in



      5     Indiana and we need to keep adding to that.  We'll



      6     commit to the long-term agreement on purses at



      7     12 percent.  We'll commit to support future



      8     legislative efforts to make it 12 percent.  I



      9     believe it reads 10 to 12 now and we'll work with



     10     the horsemen and the first opportunity we get we'll



     11     go to the legislation and we'll try to make it



     12     instead of 10 to 12 percent we'll make it



     13     12 percent.



     14          We'll continue to run at minimum the same



     15     number of race days.  As I said, I like to race.



     16     There could be a chance for more possibly in the



     17     future.



     18          OTB facilities, first class.  We'll maintain



     19     our racing leadership positions.  As I said, it



     20     takes a team.  I always try to find the brightest



     21     to be on that team.



     22          More in reinvesting of racing, there's a new



     23     capital fund that will come if this deal goes



     24     through.  It's $25 million to be invested over a



     25     10-year period.  We've already agreed to the
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      1     10-year Caesars capital program.  Now we're



      2     agreeing to this.  First shot, first ideas on that,



      3     we need some more stalls here.  We don't really



      4     control our horse population destination.  We need



      5     another number of stalls to help make sure we've



      6     got the number of horses we need to put the product



      7     on and we need more dorm rooms for our grooms, and



      8     we will work to do both of those.



      9          At Hoosier we need to come up with an owner's



     10     area.  We don't do enough to distinguish,



     11     differentiate our owners versus our regular fans.



     12     So we need to come up with an area that's a VIP



     13     area for them.  We have enough horses in the state.



     14     We don't have enough owners to own, which means



     15     trainers end up owning too many of the horses, so



     16     we need to do owner improvement.



     17          A lot of states I've been in, too, you spend



     18     all your time arguing about track surface or a barn



     19     area that's not up to par or equipment.  We don't



     20     have that challenge here.  So our conversations are



     21     going to be how do we get more Indiana breds on the



     22     ground, thoroughbred, harness, and quarter horse.



     23     Great conversation.  Everybody can collaborate to



     24     that.  How do we get more owners, another great



     25     conversation.  Come up with some ideas on how to
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      1     attract more owners into our business.



      2          Then we're going to add a million a year to



      3     purses '20 through '22 as a jump-start on the



      4     impact of our tables.  That will go into the



      5     purses.  We'll work with the horsemen, see what



      6     levels and what conditions they want to put that



      7     into.



      8          Racing is very bright here.  We look forward



      9     to participating in it.  There's nothing to fix.  I



     10     think we can polish it a little bit, but there's



     11     really nothing to fix.  It's a heck of a problem.



     12          I will hand it back over to Anthony Carano.



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     14          MR. CARANO:  Thank you, Joe.



     15          Mr. Chairman, members of the Commission,



     16     Anthony Carano, president and chief operating



     17     officer of Eldorado Resorts.  It's an honor and a



     18     privilege to be in front of you today.  I want to



     19     thank Executive Director Pitman, Noah, Robin for



     20     all the incredible work you guys have put into



     21     this.  It's been a real team effort and they've



     22     done an excellent job --



     23          As Tom said, we are very excited about the



     24     future and the expansions of these two beautiful



     25     properties.  We're going to move very quickly to
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      1     expand the properties, and I'll go through a couple



      2     of pictures.  I'm sure you've seen them already,



      3     and we're happy to come in front of you again and



      4     update you on progress as we get through this.



      5          As you may know, the current company in



      6     Caesars has paused these projects due to COVID, but



      7     we're here today to commit to you that we will move



      8     forward day one with your blessing on the



      9     expansion.  The investment into these facilities



     10     will result in increased visitation, exposure to



     11     racing, and revenue opportunities for the racing



     12     industry.  So very exciting times and a very bright



     13     future for these two properties here in Indiana.



     14          As we move forward to the next pages, this is



     15     Harrah's Hoosier Park.  So we'll be expanding right



     16     off the front of Hoosier Park, more room for



     17     tables, slots, and some non-gaming amenities.  Then



     18     at this property here we'll be adding about 35 more



     19     tables, a live poker room, more slot machines, and,



     20     again, some non-gaming amenities that help draw



     21     more crowds, more people come out and see the



     22     beautiful tracks and the great racing product you



     23     have here.



     24          To move to the next and talk about our



     25     commitment to racing, I've got to start by thanking
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      1     the presidents and the directors of the racing



      2     associations here in Indiana.  They've spent a



      3     tremendous amount of time with myself and my team



      4     really getting to know us, getting to know our



      5     company, and they've been fantastic to deal with.



      6     I'm happy to report today that we've got very



      7     strong relations.  It's a beginning of a



      8     relationship.  As I tell them all the time, our



      9     words only mean so much.  We've got to prove to



     10     them that we're here and we're going to be great



     11     partners, but we're excited to do so.



     12          We've worked with them to come up with what we



     13     believe a very strong plan to keep these tracks as



     14     the gold standard in the country.  You guys have



     15     done an incredible job here in Indiana, and we just



     16     can't wait to make them even better, as Joe and Tom



     17     have said before.



     18          We're committing to fulfilling the remaining



     19     years of the financial commitment to the Centaur



     20     Equine Specialty Hospital in Shelbyville.  That's a



     21     very important project to us, and we're also going



     22     to rebrand that as Caesars Hospital, further



     23     showing our commitment to the industry and the



     24     health and safety throughout the industry.



     25          We're going to work with and help fund with
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      1     industry partners an update to the Horse Racing



      2     Economic Impact Study.  We're going to continue to



      3     support the Indiana Horse Racing Hall of Fame.  We



      4     know how important the legacy of this board is, so



      5     we will commit to continuing that and continuing to



      6     support the Empire of Hope race horse aftercare



      7     initiatives, another very important initiative that



      8     we've had a lot of discussions about.



      9          When we talk about our commitment to local



     10     communities, over the past year we've had the



     11     distinct pleasure to meet with Mayor DeBaun,



     12     Mayor Broderick, a number of other politicians,



     13     local legislators, and also incredible charitable



     14     organizations here in Shelbyville and Anderson and



     15     their incredible leaders.  We wanted to hear



     16     firsthand what we can do to make a real impact in



     17     these communities.



     18          When we talk about, you know, commitment to



     19     local communities, my family and our company's had



     20     a long, very long history of partnering with our



     21     local communities in making them better places not



     22     only for our team members but for everybody in the



     23     communities.  Indiana will be no different.



     24          We're going to continue to invest in the



     25     Indiana communities where we have the privilege of
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      1     operating.  We know and take great pride in the



      2     fact that Indiana racing just doesn't impact



      3     Shelbyville and Anderson, it impacts every county



      4     in this great state.  So we have a lot of areas



      5     that we can positively impact.



      6          We will also ensure that ourselves and our



      7     teams are substantial with treasure and time in the



      8     local communities.  Here it says we encourage but



      9     we really mandate our local property management to



     10     serve on local non-profit and civic boards.



     11          We will also continue what Caesars has with



     12     HERO volunteer service program.  We really want to



     13     empower our team members here at these properties



     14     and all across the country to get out and volunteer



     15     in their communities and support those interests



     16     that they have.



     17          We're going to be sure to exceed prior years



     18     community and involvement in participation.  To



     19     that end, we're going to commit an additional



     20     $250,000 in cash, and it's not to be confused with



     21     marketing dollars or anything else.  This is cash



     22     that we're contributing this year on top of all the



     23     other commitments that we've made post-merger for



     24     money to be spent here on charitable and local



     25     community organizations in Indiana.
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      1          The state will also have the continued support



      2     of the Caesars Foundation.  It's a great foundation



      3     that we think we can make even better.  I will



      4     personally be sitting on the board of that



      5     foundation to make sure that we're impacting the



      6     local communities where we do business.



      7          With that, in closing I'd just like to say a



      8     couple things.  This job is just not another job



      9     for me, the company's just not another company, and



     10     this transaction's just not another transaction.



     11     This is a company that my grandfather built over



     12     forty-eight years ago from nothing and it's always



     13     been a family business and will continue to be a



     14     family business, much like some of your businesses



     15     and much like the family farms and the businesses



     16     that are so integral to the racing in this great



     17     state.



     18          As Tom said, did we make some mistakes when we



     19     first got into racing a few years ago?  Absolutely.



     20     What we've done since is put together a great team



     21     led by Joe Morris and his team, great general



     22     managers both at the property and racing here in



     23     Indiana.  We're dedicating a tremendous amount of



     24     money and resources to racing.  We have great



     25     partners in the horsemen.  We just have a very,
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      1     very bright future, especially if you give us the



      2     distinct honor of owning these two tracks.  We take



      3     with great pride that we will only make these



      4     tracks better and make Indiana the gold standard of



      5     racing in this country.



      6          So with that, I'd like to turn it back over to



      7     Tom, make his closing remarks.



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



      9          MR. REEG:  In terms of current status,



     10     shareholders of both companies have approved the



     11     transaction.  The FTC as well.  Every regulatory



     12     body that we need for approval has approved save



     13     for this Commission that we're in front of today



     14     and New Jersey who we'll be in front of Wednesday.



     15     So this transaction should be in position,



     16     presuming successful appeals to those remaining



     17     Commissions by next week.



     18          All of the cash to close the merger is already



     19     in escrow and ready to go.  As I've said, the



     20     merged company will have $3.3 billion of day one



     21     liquidity, $4 billion by the end of the third



     22     quarter, and should have $5 billion by this point



     23     next year.  So 4 to 5X the next competitor in the



     24     space in terms of resources to bring to bear.



     25          Leadership team and new board of directors are
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      1     confirmed.  Post-opening results everywhere have



      2     been encouraging, much stronger than we anticipated



      3     in the post-COVID world.



      4          We've done a lot of talking here, so I want to



      5     turn it back for questions I'm sure the Commission



      6     has.  I want to thank you for seeing us here today



      7     in person, considering our application, and as I



      8     said at the start, we know that racing is why you



      9     have the casino opportunities that you have in



     10     these two properties and our pledge to you is to



     11     drive that racing business to another level.  As



     12     all three of us have said, you're already at a very



     13     high level.  We'll work to take it even higher.



     14          So with that, I'll turn it back to you,



     15     Mr. Chairman.



     16          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  Why don't we hold



     17     questions for a little bit.  Why don't we go ahead



     18     and hear any testimony from staff and public and



     19     then we can start asking questions.  That way we



     20     get everybody's thoughts out.



     21          So, Deena, do you have any more thoughts to go



     22     with your report?



     23          MS. PITMAN:  I really don't, Chairman.  I



     24     think everything that I have to say is basically



     25     included in my report and I'm going to stand by
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      1     that.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  Thank you.



      3          Do we have the sign-up sheet?  Has anybody



      4     retrieved that?  Let's go ahead and go to public



      5     testimony, and then that way after that then we'll



      6     start asking questions.  Sometimes the more you



      7     hear, the less questions you have sometimes.  You



      8     guys have cleared up a lot of things already, so we



      9     appreciate that.



     10          Brian Elmore gets to be first.  We know who



     11     got here first.



     12          (wiping with sanitizer wipe)



     13          (all laughing)



     14          CHAIRMAN BORST:  There you go.



     15          MR. ELMORE:  See, we're required to do this by



     16     Executive Director Pitman.



     17          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Do the microphone too.



     18          MR. ELMORE:  Don't want to get shocked.



     19          Brian Elmore, executive director of the



     20     Indiana Horsemen's Benevolent & Protective



     21     Association.  It's good to be with you and see you



     22     in person today.  At our last meeting when it was



     23     virtual, I had a difficult time getting online.  I



     24     knew I was going to be late for the meeting, but



     25     thank goodness there was one other person that was
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      1     having a difficult time getting on.  But I'm not



      2     going to mention any names.



      3          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Some of us never got on.



      4     That's how bad we are.



      5          (all laughing)



      6          MR. ELMORE:  In addition to the petition in



      7     front of you and the significant amount of time it



      8     takes to properly consider such a matter for



      9     decision, we've had to deal with the current



     10     pandemic.  On behalf of the horsemen and myself, we



     11     want to extend our gratitude to the Commissioners,



     12     the Governor's office, but especially to commend



     13     Executive Director Pitman, Deputy Director Tom



     14     Linkmeyer, their staff, Noah, Wendy, Jessica,



     15     Megan.  They all did a fantastic job and we



     16     appreciate everything that was done to get us



     17     reopened for training and subsequently racing.  We



     18     thank you very much.



     19          Our journey with Eldorado started many months



     20     ago with much skepticism about our new potential



     21     partner.  I stress the phrase partnership, because



     22     that's truly what we have.  We've made great



     23     strides in Indiana over the past several decades.



     24     We the horsemen firmly believe that if this



     25     petition is approved, the current standard of two
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      1     racetracks under the same ownership is imperative.



      2     I want to make this crystal clear to everybody in



      3     the room.  The horsemen's associations with the



      4     owner of the racinos is most beneficial to all, and



      5     I'm just going to quickly give you a few reasons



      6     why.



      7          Number one, race marketing across the larger



      8     geographic area rather than two different owners



      9     competing with one another and the horsemen end up



     10     getting pitted against each other.  Cross promoting



     11     all breeds that race in Indiana to a wider audience



     12     on a consistent basis via media, electronic



     13     messaging, media buys, and each track's racing



     14     analysis and handicapping shows promoting the other



     15     facility's race program not just locally but also



     16     to the 500 locations approved sites to send our



     17     signal through and to the millions of homes on TVG.



     18     We're more effective legislatively when we're



     19     cooperating and working together towards the same



     20     goals.



     21          Let's go back now some seven or eight months



     22     ago when we were first introduced to the Eldorado



     23     executive staff.  We met Mr. Gary Carano,



     24     Mr. Anthony Carano, Mr. Tom Reeg, and board of



     25     director member and Hoosier native Mike Pegram.  It
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      1     was kind of a difficult meeting because we asked a



      2     lot of difficult questions.  We didn't lob them any



      3     softballs.  We threw fast balls, few curves, and



      4     they answered our questions in what we believe were



      5     honest, whether it was good, bad, or ugly.



      6          As time progressed and more meetings were



      7     held, Eldorado asked us our vision for horse racing



      8     in Indiana, where do we want it to go.  Eldorado



      9     volunteered, we put pen to paper, and list those



     10     things the horsemen would like to see as conditions



     11     as part of the final order.  Adam and Jim started



     12     meeting with us and soon we had drafted numerous



     13     items that were not only approved by the Eldorado



     14     executive officers but actually expanded the list



     15     or enhanced the items that were on the list.



     16          We were then introduced to Mr. Joe Morris, who



     17     had been retained as director of racing for



     18     Eldorado.  Joe brought a vast knowledge of the



     19     horse racing industry to Eldorado and will play a



     20     key role in the success of this endeavor.  This was



     21     more than good-faith gesture.  This was the point



     22     in which Eldorado began gaining the trust of the



     23     horsemen and a significant moment in a relationship



     24     and hopefully future partnership.



     25          The result of all these meetings was the







�



                                                           50



      1     document submitted to the Indiana Horse Racing



      2     Commission executive director, Miss Pitman, from



      3     Eldorado dated March 3, 2020.



      4          In addition to an Eldorado executive team and



      5     its officers, who we believe are committed to the



      6     success of the Indiana horse racing industry, and



      7     most importantly the expectations of the Indiana



      8     Horse Racing Commission, the Indiana legislature,



      9     and the Governor's office, I have great confidence



     10     in the two vice presidents of racing at our Indiana



     11     racetracks, Mr. Rick Moore at Hoosier Park and



     12     Mr. Eric Halstrom at Indiana Grand.  I've known



     13     both of these gentlemen for over twenty-five years.



     14     The horsemen do expect both these individuals to be



     15     empowered to make decisions and take action on



     16     issues that may arise and their hands not be tied.



     17          The respective senior vice presidents at the



     18     racetracks, I've only begun to know, Mr. Mike Rich



     19     at Indiana Grand, Mr. Trent McIntosh at



     20     Hoosier Park.  I have found them to be



     21     approachable, knowledgeable about horse racing,



     22     upfront, and helpful in resolving issues thus far.



     23     I believe they also are committed to the success of



     24     each respective facility's racing and gaming



     25     operations.
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      1          I am disappointed of the action taken last



      2     Friday by another Indiana regulatory agency



      3     requiring Eldorado that if you were to approve this



      4     to divest itself of three properties.  I'm not



      5     going to give a lot of details that wouldn't be



      6     appropriate, but I just want to tell you why I'm



      7     disappointed.  The horsemen lost three great



      8     opportunities in Northwest Indiana,



      9     Southwest Indiana, and Southern Indiana to promote



     10     our sport.  This would have been where we could



     11     have really gone in and got material in there, got



     12     information in there, and who knows, we could have



     13     made them talk to Eldorado and maybe they would



     14     have liked to have taken the two shell OTB licenses



     15     and put one up at Hammond and put one down in



     16     Evansville.  But I think I'll just take a line from



     17     Tom Hanks in Forrest Gump, and that's all I have to



     18     say that.



     19          In closing, including the testimony I



     20     presented today and in consideration of the staff



     21     report of the Indiana Horse Racing Commission



     22     executive director, the March 3, 2020, Eldorado



     23     letter to Executive Director Pitman, and the



     24     Indiana HBPA position paper dated July 7, 2020, we



     25     urge the Indiana Horse Racing Commission to adopt







�



                                                           52



      1     and approve Eldorado's petition for transfer of



      2     licenses with conditions agreed upon between the



      3     horsemen's associations and Eldorado and any other



      4     condition deemed appropriate by the



      5     Executive Director or the Commissioners.



      6          So it is written in the book of Exodus that



      7     the Lord thy God gave 10 commandments to Moses on



      8     Mount Sinai.  Executive Director published 22



      9     commandments, conditions, what she expected.  And I



     10     just want to say this, I like 22.  Thank you for



     11     your time.  I appreciate it.



     12          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you very much.  I've



     13     never heard Deena referred to as Moses.  There's a



     14     first for everything.  She's good, but I don't



     15     know.  That's good.  We got a new name for you,



     16     Deena.



     17          Dwayne Rhule.



     18          MR. RHULE:  I'll be much briefer than our



     19     former speaker here.  I did read your notice that



     20     you said you want us to be brief.  I'll do that,



     21     all right.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     23          MR. RHULE:  Thank you, Chairman and



     24     Commissioners, for allowing me to speak up.



     25     Dwayne Rhule, chairman of the standardbred advisory
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      1     committee.  I'm a standardbred farm owner and a



      2     racer of horses at Hoosier Park.  You have my



      3     letter in your file dated July 6, 2020, and I will



      4     be brief as requested.  These are my thoughts and



      5     other people's concerns.



      6          We are here today because Mr. Icahn was not



      7     pleased with his ROI --



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Move the mic down.



      9          MR. RHULE:  Bring it down?  All right.



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  There you go.



     11          MR. RHULE:  You don't want me to do redo it,



     12     do you?



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  No, no.  You can pick up



     14     where you left off.



     15          MR. RHULE:  All right.  We are here today



     16     because Mr. Ichan was not pleased with his ROI in



     17     Caesars stock, which he reportedly owns 8 percent



     18     plus.  He put himself on the casino floor and



     19     helped to force this merger with Eldorado.  I was



     20     involved at the legislature with the slots bill in



     21     2007.  All three breeds and Centaur worked together



     22     to get the legislation passed.  We pushed the theme



     23     that it would be a boost to the Indiana



     24     agricultural economy.  It has been greatly



     25     successful.
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      1          This merger is about financial schemes,



      2     leverage, huge debt, $17.3 million in rent.  An



      3     additional $500 million has been promised in cost



      4     savings and recently I think it was bumped up to



      5     $620 million.  People somewhere will be



      6     reduced -- maybe not at Hoosier, maybe not here,



      7     but somewhere in the corporation -- and everything



      8     will be subject to ROI.



      9          I have read about 200 pages of financial



     10     analysts' thoughts on the merger.  They go from



     11     euphoric to a dangerous deal.  The Reed report is



     12     spot-on in all respects.  No need to review it.  I



     13     have been to Pompano.  If this deal is approved, a



     14     Reed report should be done again in two or less



     15     years as a benchmark for progress.  Will Pompano



     16     still be racing?



     17          I fully endorse the executive director's



     18     recommendations, except for a small change.



     19     No. 16, rent should not be allowed due to the



     20     racetracks being a major part of casino operations,



     21     not in two years as they propose in their petition.



     22     No. 4, if not allowing rent at the two tracks is



     23     enough to jeopardize the whole merger, then you



     24     would assume the merger is too leveraged to succeed



     25     with any economic downturn or surprise event.
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      1          This is a huge task for the Commission.  This



      2     will be a challenge for the Commission to enforce.



      3     Thank you very much for your time.



      4          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  Next is Nat U.



      5     Hill, IV.



      6          MR. NAT HILL:  I am Nat Hill, IV.  I'm a



      7     horseman and this testimony today is mine and mine



      8     alone.  Is it just me or is it kind of warm in



      9     here?  I didn't get the memo about being brief, so



     10     here we go.



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  On the clock.



     12          MR. NAT HILL:  How much have I got?



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  You got five minutes.



     14          MR. NAT HILL:  Hey, you know what?  You don't



     15     look at me near the same as your dad did.  You kind



     16     of smile.



     17          (all laughing)



     18          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I'm glad.



     19          MR. NAT HILL:  Let me start today by stating



     20     the obvious.  No horsemen's group can afford to



     21     publicly oppose the acquisition of Caesars by



     22     Eldorado.  Horseman makes his living at the track



     23     and any track has an absolute ability to refuse



     24     entries.  Over the years horsemen and horsemen's



     25     groups have learned to go with the flow.  In no
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      1     circumstance will they ever likely publicly oppose



      2     a change in ownership.



      3          So why am I quite possibly the only person who



      4     has been willing from the jump to take a public



      5     stance against this proposal?  Because I've been



      6     blessed in life and I don't make my living racing



      7     horses.  If I did, I would be more than broke.



      8     Here's why I'm concerned about this sale or merger



      9     or whatever this proposal is.



     10          Tom bruised his way onto the board of



     11     directors of Caesars.  He insisted on the sale of



     12     the company.  He got the job done.  Who agreed to



     13     buy Caesars?  Eldorado in a deal that has been



     14     described as a guppy swallowing a whale.



     15          Why Eldorado?  I believe part of it is based



     16     on several public claims that Eldorado believes a



     17     new partnership obtain up to $500 million of



     18     synergy to do this deal.  Now, best I can figure



     19     synergy is a buzzword used by folks in the big



     20     business world as code for cost cutting.



     21          My early research showed that a gentleman



     22     named Tom Reeg -- I believe he's here today -- is



     23     reported to have said to investors that his target



     24     was to shave $500 million in costs from the



     25     combined companies.  This is not an actual inquiry.
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      1     This is Bloomberg.



      2          Tom, with all due respect, I feel a little bit



      3     like when I was a kid my dad used to look at me and



      4     he had a favorite saying, I'd be making my case and



      5     he'd say, you know, son -- this is a respective



      6     jurist, 24 years judge in Monroe County -- he'd



      7     look at me and say, son, my mind is made up, quit



      8     confusing me with the facts.



      9          So that's sort of how I feel today.  I'm



     10     hearing good stuff.  I'd love to believe it.  Love



     11     to believe it.  We'll get to more of that later.



     12          Another main concern of mine is Eldorado's



     13     past performance as a racetrack and even as casino



     14     operators, they're good at cutting expenses.



     15     Marketing, promotion, the list is long and painful.



     16     Pompano Isle Casino and Raceway, 93 percent of the



     17     casino's workers voted to go on strike, although



     18     they reached a settlement.



     19          Perhaps most disturbing to me personally is



     20     the Florida lawsuit instituted by Eldorado to kill



     21     harness racing in Florida by replacing it with



     22     jai alai.  How could it be overstated that Eldorado



     23     is using every legal means possible to kill harness



     24     racing in Florida?  What will their plans be for



     25     Indiana in years to come?  Will they attempt to
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      1     kill horse racing either through this Commission,



      2     or far more likely through the Indiana state



      3     legislature?



      4          So why are we all here today?  Well, early on



      5     when this sale was first proposed, I set out on a



      6     mission to do what little I could to kill this



      7     deal.  I was convinced horsemen would never stand



      8     against it.  The scuttle and the conventional



      9     wisdom was that you're not going to kill this deal,



     10     the best we can hope for is a bunch of favorable



     11     conditions.  I am forever indebted to my friend



     12     Brian Elmore and the HBPA for their work with



     13     Eldorado to get this list of promises they have



     14     made.  I wouldn't have thought this from the jump.



     15          So where does your Horse Racing Commission go



     16     from here?  I really want to thank you for making



     17     it real clear to Eldorado from the jump how things



     18     are in Indiana.  In my mind the recent improvements



     19     in the racetrack management in other states by



     20     Joe Morris and Eldorado have been the direct result



     21     of your clearly-voiced concerns about their



     22     proposed merger with Caesar.  You have made it



     23     crystal clear to Eldorado that Indiana is different



     24     from any other state.  They know you're going to be



     25     hard to deal with.
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      1          Now you're in a tough spot.  The most profound



      2     portion of the executive director's report in my



      3     mind is found in footnote number 4 on page 5.  In



      4     the current economic environment there is financial



      5     risk both in approving and allowing a merger where



      6     either I becomes a controlling product of Caesars



      7     or in denying the petition and forcing the old



      8     Caesars to move forward with their current gaming



      9     and racing responsibilities.  If the Commission



     10     were to approve the merger with stringent



     11     conditions related to horse racing, the Indiana



     12     horse racing industry would arguably be in a better



     13     position with increased leverage moving forward



     14     than if there was a denial of the merger petition



     15     and racing was to continue under the existing final



     16     order.



     17          Between the commitments already made by



     18     Eldorado and the stiff conditions of approval



     19     recommended in the executive director's report, a



     20     very strong case can be made for approval based



     21     upon the Eldorado previous commitments and the



     22     staff recommendations is better than rejecting the



     23     proposal and letting the chips fall where they may.



     24          I trust this Commission.  I have always



     25     trusted this Commission.  Sometime in the previous
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      1     century I appeared along with Ernie Gaskin,



      2     Eddie Martin with the thoroughbred breed



      3     development advisory committee, Jeff from



      4     Churchill Downs and perhaps a few others, and we



      5     were allowed to testify in front of the Senate



      6     finance committee, chaired by a



      7     previously-mentioned affable veterinarian, a



      8     champion of the horse racing industry.  He had



      9     proposed legislation that would dictate riverboat



     10     emisson fees sent to the Indiana horse racing.  At



     11     that time Churchill Downs was receiving 40 percent



     12     of the riverboat revenues.



     13          It's been a while, but as I recall, tracks



     14     would get nothing under the bill while purses and



     15     breed development would get it all.  We took a



     16     strong stand and we looked the senator in the eye



     17     and said the Indiana Horse Racing Commission's



     18     better equipped and more familiar to do what's



     19     right than the Indiana state legislation.  And I



     20     remember the senate's ranking minority member



     21     looking directly at me as if to say, Nat, now you



     22     see what we have to deal with every day.  I have to



     23     add that the legislation was eventually dropped by



     24     the author.



     25          So how does this at all affect you guys?
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      1     Well, let me close with this.  I've never talked



      2     like this to the Commission before and I probably



      3     shouldn't start now.  You can't just put Eldorado



      4     on noble seeker probation, then walk away and



      5     congratulate yourself on a job well done.  If this



      6     deal is approved, hopefully with Deena's list of



      7     very rigid conditions, your hard work as a



      8     Commission has just begun.  I repeat, I personally



      9     trust the Indiana Horse Racing Commission.



     10          Now let me close with this:  I would love



     11     nothing more than to be proven wrong regarding our



     12     current view of Eldorado.  Nothing would make me



     13     happier than to come back here ten years from now



     14     when I'm eighty-two, hopefully aboveground and



     15     thinking somewhat clearly by then, and testify how



     16     wrong I was on July 13, 2020, how Eldorado did not



     17     cut corners at Indiana racetracks, how they did not



     18     work behind our backs at the Indiana legislature,



     19     and what wonderful corporate citizens they have



     20     become in the state of Indiana.  I would love that



     21     opportunity.



     22          Did I make it in five minutes?



     23          CHAIRMAN BORST:  No, but you're fine.



     24          MR. NAT HILL:  Okay.  Thank you.



     25          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  You're fine.
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      1     Thank you.



      2          MR. NAT HILL:  Questions?



      3          CHAIRMAN BORST:  No, not yet.



      4          MR. NAT HILL:  Okay.



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  Ernie Gaskin,



      6     aforementioned.



      7          MR. GASKIN:  Thank you, Commissioner.



      8     Ernie Gaskin, owner, trainer, breeder, former



      9     chairman of the breed development committee through



     10     three different administrations.  So thank you.



     11     Been watching this closely.



     12          I'm just here mainly to thank you guys for



     13     wherever we are today in this program that we've



     14     built.  It's unbelievable.  We made bold



     15     predictions for the state of Indiana, where we'd



     16     be.  A billion in economics a year?  How about this



     17     one?  Three horse of the years.  Do you know how



     18     hard it is to breed a horse of the year?  We've



     19     bred three.  Surrounding states have been in racing



     20     for eighty years, haven't done it.  We've got



     21     three.  Thanks to you guys.  You made this program



     22     so people wanted to come here.  That's how we got



     23     here.  Thank you.



     24          You've led the way from Churchill to Eldorado.



     25     Here we are.  Perhaps this is a small explanation
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      1     to Eldorado of the scrutiny there involved.  Enter



      2     Joe Morris.  I think he could be a Bill Polian, of



      3     the Colts.  I think he has the capability of



      4     putting together a winning team.  He knows



      5     everybody.  He's been everywhere.  He's a great



      6     guy.  He'll do it for us if Eldorado backs him.



      7          At this point, unlike Nat, I'm going to put my



      8     vote with the Carano family.  They didn't build



      9     that business not doing the right thing.  I believe



     10     at this point they'll do the right thing for racing



     11     through Joe.



     12          So together with that, I just want to say that



     13     my comfort in this transition lies with you, the



     14     Indiana Horse Racing Commission.  Thank you.



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.  We got to figure



     16     out who Peyton Manning's going to be, though, now



     17     that you got Bill Polian.



     18          Next, Paul Martin.



     19          MR. MARTIN:  My name is Paul Martin.  I



     20     currently serve as president of the Quarter Horse



     21     Racing Association of Indiana.  Just want to say



     22     good afternoon to the Commission, Madam Director



     23     Pitman, Deputy Director Linkmeyer, Chairman Borst,



     24     and legal staff.  Thank you for allowing me to be



     25     heard today.  My comments will be brief, but I do
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      1     have a few points.



      2          With me today is our executive director,



      3     Dianne Bennett, and we are here today to express



      4     our total support for Eldorado Resorts,



      5     Incorporated.  I have to admit when we first heard



      6     about potential new track ownership, we obviously



      7     were full of skepticism.  However, that was fairly



      8     short-lived when the horsemen's groups compiled a



      9     list of important items pertaining to the race



     10     programs and nearly everything was actually



     11     committed to and guaranteed.  In reality, even more



     12     than we asked for was put on the table and



     13     committed to by Eldorado.  With that, I would also



     14     say with our growing program we have a huge need



     15     for another barn and more stalls.



     16          Most notable item on that list from the QHRAI



     17     was a 12 percent guarantee through 2033.  That was



     18     huge for us.  Another was the racing capital escrow



     19     fund of $20 million to $25 million to enhance our



     20     programs here.  Additionally, Eldorado had enough



     21     vision to go out and get an expert like senior vice



     22     president of racing Joe Morris, which will play a



     23     huge role in the success of our partnership.  There



     24     are many more but not enough time for every detail,



     25     but our skepticism has now turned into optimism.
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      1          In closing, QHRAI is confident that with this



      2     partnership the sky is the only limit.  In recent



      3     times our tracks were tagged as the gold standard.



      4     Working together and in unity with the HBPA, ITOBA,



      5     ISA, and with Eldorado as our partner, there is



      6     little doubt that the gold standard can and will



      7     become the platinum standard.  Thank you very much.



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



      9          Joe Putnam.



     10          (microphone feedback)



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Somewhere there's a



     12     microphone doing something.



     13          MR. PUTNAM:  Thought that was Paul up here.



     14          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I did too, but we can't blame



     15     him because he's gone.



     16          (all laughing)



     17          MR. PUTNAM:  Good morning.  Joe Putnam,



     18     president of the ISA standardbred association,



     19     1,100-plus members that we represent.  Just wanted



     20     to say a few quick words.  I believe we have a



     21     great opportunity for us in our industry for all



     22     the breeds.  I'm a very active participant in



     23     racing.  I have a 40-horse stable, race Indiana,



     24     Ohio, Kentucky, so do a lot of traveling, see a lot



     25     of things.  Personal testament is what I have
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      1     witnessed with Eldorado at Scioto.  Joe Morris



      2     leading the racing operations over the past several



      3     months with his dedication and attention they're



      4     giving to the racing operations at Scioto.  I like



      5     what I see going on there.  Lots of improvements,



      6     and we're looking forward to working with them here



      7     in Indiana.



      8          One of the big things in our industry -- I



      9     know we've touched on it briefly -- but is the



     10     stability of racing.  The 12 percent for the long



     11     term, I think that's very important.  Like,



     12     investing in racing -- I do all facets of it,



     13     breeding, owning, training, driving -- it's a



     14     long-term commitment.  It takes, you know, I'm



     15     thinking about three, four, five, six, seven years



     16     out when I'm breeding horses and thinking about the



     17     future.  So long-term stability, the long-term



     18     12 percent commitment, very important things.



     19          The added commitment from Eldorado over the



     20     next three years putting the million dollars up



     21     each year to go to the purses, I think that's a



     22     pretty good impact there.  You know, with this



     23     COVID going on we've all took a pretty good hit, so



     24     those kinds of things for support are very



     25     important to our industry.
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      1          One other thing, if I may.  I know it was



      2     listed in the exhibits, but I received a letter



      3     from the Ohio Harness Horse Association president,



      4     Mr. Steve Bateson, and I'd like to read his letter.



      5     I think it's pretty important for everybody just to



      6     hear firsthand how things have changed over there.



      7          To the Honorable Indiana Horse Racing



      8     Commission:



      9          I would like to provide a different



     10     perspective on racing in Ohio at Eldorado.  The



     11     "New Scioto Downs" has opened their race meet with



     12     great enthusiasm towards racing.  I would like to



     13     site a few examples.



     14          They've addressed track issues prior to the



     15     race meeting with added material and addressed



     16     grade issues with consolidation and consideration



     17     from the Coon Brothers.  They've added personnel to



     18     ensure proper track maintenance.  The results have



     19     been impressive thus far into the race meet.



     20          Eldorado's Scioto Downs property was the first



     21     racetrack to open in Ohio and the first



     22     Standardbred track to open in North America.  They



     23     made this commitment with no assurances when the



     24     casino would be permitted to open.  Management went



     25     above and beyond to get all the horses qualified to
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      1     race.



      2          Eldorado's new team at Scioto Downs, led by



      3     Joe Morris, is tackling issues head on.  They have



      4     made the best of a difficult situation.  It appears



      5     the process for a new beginning with Scioto Downs



      6     has started.



      7          This team has made a concerted effort to



      8     reconnect with horse players.  Scioto Downs has had



      9     full racing cards with full fields since they've



     10     opened.  The horse players have responded by



     11     wagering at a much higher level than years past.



     12          Based on what I've witnessed I have confidence



     13     that Eldorado's management recognizes the value of



     14     horse racing in Ohio.  I look forward to working



     15     with this "New Scioto Downs" management team and



     16     seeing Scioto Downs restored to the glory it once



     17     shared.



     18          That was from Steve Bateson, again, president



     19     of the Ohio Harness Horsemen's Association.



     20          One other thing I'd like to add just quickly



     21     is if you so approve the final order, I think it's



     22     very important to put in there that they maintain



     23     ownership of both tracks.  I think that will give



     24     us the stability and the long-term commitment that



     25     we're looking for here today.  Thank you.
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      1          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



      2          Next the honorable State Representative



      3     Bob Cherry.  I give him an honorable.  He's a



      4     former Boilermaker too, so . . .



      5          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Not everybody could



      6     get into Ball State, so . . .



      7          (all laughing)



      8          MR. CHERRY:  I'm Bob Cherry,



      9     State Representative, District 53.  My district



     10     really is between the two tracks.  I'm kind of the



     11     flyover.  If you think of the Midwest, we're the



     12     flyover states, I'm the flyover of if anyone wants



     13     to go from one track to the other, they have to go



     14     through my district.



     15          Mr. Chairman and members of the Commission, I



     16     applaud what you're trying to do and I trust, like



     17     everyone said before, you are the key.



     18          I'm glad you mentioned about your dad.



     19     Senator Larry Borst worked with Ralph Wilfong many



     20     years ago to get this thing started.  Then we had



     21     couple other State Senators and another



     22     veterinarian, Bob Jackman, and then the Harvard



     23     lawyer, Luke Kinley, they carried the torch



     24     further.  So we got a really good plan in our



     25     state, and I applaud that.
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      1          We got many other legislators supported horse



      2     racing as we have today, and I applaud the merger



      3     with the investment in racing.  I think that's



      4     important.  Bringing on Joe Morris is an excellent



      5     thing, what I understand, and everybody's for it.



      6     When we got a lot of these things done, we worked



      7     with the tracks and the legislature, with the



      8     horsemen, and the communities, and I applaud the



      9     investment in the local communities, too, that



     10     they're going to continue doing that.



     11          I know we've talked about a lot of ifs, if



     12     this, if this, if this was to happen what we'd do.



     13     Again, I think lot of those things have taken place



     14     already in the proposal but, again, I think that



     15     long term reevaluation of this maybe in the short



     16     distance looking at what we've done.  I really



     17     think this is in your hands and I think it's a good



     18     proposal.  Thank you.



     19          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     20          Next is Bruce Murphy.  Two more to go.



     21          MR. MURPHY:  Bruce Murphy, Indiana



     22     Thoroughbred Owner's and Breeder's Association.



     23     Good morning, Chairman Borst, IHRC Commissioners,



     24     Executive Director Pitman, legal staff.  My name is



     25     Bruce Murphy.  Serve as the president of the board
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      1     of directors of the Indiana Thoroughbred Owner's



      2     and Breeder's Association.  ITOBA has provided a



      3     letter of support for your Commission materials



      4     today, but we believe it is very important for us



      5     to take the time during your deliberations to be



      6     present and provide additional comments.



      7          The Carano family and the executive leadership



      8     team of Eldorado Resorts has spent a considerable



      9     amount of time in Indiana the past few months to



     10     familiarize themselves with the horsemen's groups,



     11     the current racino operations, and the general



     12     equine industry.  ITOBA applauds their actions and



     13     looks forward to continuing this working



     14     relationship.  The commitment by the Carano family



     15     to place a proven leader like Joe Morris to oversee



     16     racing at both tracks is paramount to the continued



     17     success of the first-class horse racing industry we



     18     have in our great state of Indiana.



     19          With the decision made by the Indiana Gaming



     20     Commission last Friday, ITOBA would encourage the



     21     Commission to require Eldorado to divest themselves



     22     of the three riverboats they own after the



     23     transaction is complete and keep the two racinos as



     24     one track, one group.



     25          Again, thank you for your time today and your
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      1     dedication to this very important agribusiness in



      2     our state.  If you have any questions, I'd be very



      3     happy to answer best of my ability.



      4          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you, Bruce.



      5          MR. MURPHY:  Thank you.



      6          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Last but not least, the



      7     honorable State Representative Terri Austin.  You



      8     get to bring it home.



      9          MS. AUSTIN:  Thank you, Chairman Borst.  My



     10     husband says I always do like to get the last word



     11     in, so . . .



     12          (all laughing)



     13          MS. AUSTIN:  And your dad was very kind to me



     14     as a new legislator, I will tell you.



     15          So my name is Terri Austin and I serve Indiana



     16     House District 36 and I will tell you the track is



     17     right not in the middle, off to the side, but



     18     they're fully in my district.  I've been in the



     19     General Assembly for eighteen years -- it does not



     20     seem possible to hear me say that -- and I've been



     21     on the Public Policy Committee since my very first



     22     day, which is where all the gaming bills go



     23     through.  Alcohol too.  Be glad you're not the



     24     Alcohol Commission, folks, let me tell you.



     25          I read with great interest the executive
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      1     director's report last night and I applaud the



      2     guardrails that she has attempted to put up to



      3     ensure that racing and the investment in racing



      4     maintains under this transition of ownership.  It's



      5     been a very interesting perspective for me to watch



      6     from what was Churchill Downs Tom Meeker,



      7     transition to Centaur, transition to Caesars, and



      8     now to Eldorado under the Carano family.  I've had



      9     a chance to go from local corporate -- I call



     10     Kentucky local -- and then to, well, family-owned



     11     corporate under Centaur, large corporate under



     12     Caesars, and now anticipating that shift under the



     13     family-owned structure.  And each bring their own



     14     set of rewards and challenges.



     15          The truth is the marriage of casino gaming and



     16     horse racing is a unique perspective and the truth



     17     is it's a huge impact in my community.  It's a huge



     18     impact, just like it is here.  It allows us to draw



     19     a wide variety of people and personalities that



     20     might not normally come to Anderson, quite



     21     honestly.  And it's also a hallmark for us, it's



     22     one of the things that we can boast about when



     23     we're marketing our community to future business



     24     and industry as we hopefully work through this



     25     post-COVID environment.
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      1          I think the return on investment of the equine



      2     industry and all the industry sectors is well



      3     documented.  At least according to the 2011 Purdue



      4     study, it was more than a million dollars in direct



      5     and $500 million in indirect and induced, but that



      6     was 2011.  I applaud the fact that we're going to



      7     update that study because I don't think you can



      8     ever underestimate the impact that agribusiness has



      9     on the state of Indiana.



     10          I think the tax dollars, aside from the gaming



     11     tax dollars, the tax dollars associated with the



     12     equine industry and across the industry sectors has



     13     a huge impact on the State budget, and the truth is



     14     it's been my direct experience and observation that



     15     the staff that have been associated with both the



     16     horse racing side and the casino side are



     17     knowledgeable, they are professional, and they have



     18     the highest levels of integrity.  All of those I



     19     think have helped and a lot of that's been under



     20     your direct supervision, you know, all the things



     21     that you've recommended, the things that you have



     22     put in place to make sure that we do have premier



     23     racing facilities here.



     24          So finally, I would just say Joe mentioned the



     25     stability of racing, but I would also talk about







�



                                                           75



      1     the stability of that marriage, the casino and the



      2     racing industry together, and I will tell you that



      3     it impacts a community's image in significant ways.



      4     It impacts our reputation.  It impacts how people



      5     see and feel about Anderson, Indiana, and



      6     Shelbyville.  And the truth is any sudden



      7     departures or movements are not necessarily going



      8     to be viewed in the best interest of not just the



      9     institutions itself but of the municipalities and



     10     the local governments that are involved.



     11          Finally, I would just tell you in all



     12     candidness, I was not necessarily a fan in the



     13     beginning.  I was very reluctant, having lived



     14     through all those transitions, and I was fearful



     15     about what it might mean for my community.  I have



     16     talked to employees.  I have talked to staff.  I



     17     have talked to community representatives.  We all



     18     feel like this is in the best interest of Anderson,



     19     Indiana, and Hoosier Park.  I can't speak for



     20     Shelbyville.  But I think with the 22



     21     recommendations that have been put forward, with



     22     the actions of the Gaming Commission, this is going



     23     to give us not only some stability but actually



     24     it's going to serve as a launching pad so that both



     25     Hoosier Park and Indiana Grand can go to the next
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      1     level.



      2          That's going to be tough, quite honestly.



      3     It's going to take some hard work.  It's going to



      4     take consistent commitment on the part of the



      5     Carano family.  And I trust that this Horse Racing



      6     Commission, who always does its due diligence, will



      7     make sure that the right actions are taken, that



      8     people are true to their word, and that their



      9     commitments are held and they will uphold their end



     10     of the bargain, because I guarantee you I will be



     11     one of the very first people at your meetings in



     12     the future to say if I think things are going off



     13     the rails.



     14          I will also tell you I appreciated the



     15     interest in the community commitments and the



     16     community impact dollars, because everybody brings



     17     their own style to that -- I understand it -- but I



     18     read with great interest the minutes of the



     19     December meeting and the reports that followed.  I



     20     appreciate the fact that you're taking an interest



     21     in that and I do appreciate the fact that the



     22     Carano family has agreed to increase that amount



     23     because I hear it from my community organizations.



     24          So we'll be watching.  And trust me.  This



     25     community will speak up.  I guarantee you.  Thank







�



                                                           77



      1     you for allowing me to testify today, sir.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



      3          Okay.  Just one last chance.  Everybody's



      4     testified who wanted to testify?  Don't want to



      5     leave anybody out.  That's why we had this here



      6     because we didn't want to leave anybody out.



      7          Why don't we open it up to questions from



      8     counsel, staff, Commissioners.  Anybody have any



      9     burning questions that they want to ask at this



     10     point?  I'll ask Commissioner McCarty on the phone,



     11     anything you'd like to ask to start with?



     12          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Not at this point.



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.



     14          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Want to express



     15     appreciation for Representative Austin's comments.



     16     And, yes, I confirm she does always get the last



     17     word.



     18          (all laughing)



     19          CHAIRMAN BORST:  You've dealt with her before



     20     then.



     21          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  No questions at this



     22     time.



     23          CHAIRMAN BORST:  All right.



     24     Commission Schenkel?



     25          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Sure.  I won't miss a
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      1     chance.  And not in any particular order, so as I



      2     throw these out, whoever wants to answer them from



      3     ERI, that's fine.



      4          Let me start by saying thank you for your kind



      5     words that you have expressed today in terms of



      6     your confidence in Indiana horse racing as a



      7     product and as an endeavor that you're willing to



      8     invest in.  And I will be the first to admit it's a



      9     incredibly large investment, so I know that you're



     10     not taking it lightly.  But let me preface it by



     11     saying -- and it's been eluded to here



     12     already -- that I was one who was very skeptical



     13     and needed some convincing and needed to hear some



     14     things.  So that you understand my questions a



     15     little bit and where I'm coming from.



     16          I guess one of the first questions I have



     17     is:  As we read the Reed report and as I'd done



     18     some research looking back through things,



     19     historically it appeared that when ERI came into a



     20     market, basically a couple of things jumped out at



     21     me.  One was the overall revenues tended to



     22     decrease, which if that's the case that's not good



     23     for the state of Indiana if that would happen here;



     24     employment and head count in your facilities were



     25     somewhat reduced; and yet, at the very end -- and
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      1     this is admirable for you and your



      2     shareholders -- your profits went up and that



      3     strikes me as not a good.  Our job is to do things



      4     in the public interest, not in your interest.  So



      5     my question to you is:  Explain to me or talk to me



      6     a little bit about why that's a good business model



      7     or why we should embrace this in Indiana.



      8          MR. REEG:  Again, it's Tom Reeg, CEO.  The



      9     casino business in this country is a mature



     10     business.  There's effectively casinos that someone



     11     can visit in every major metropolitan area that



     12     you've got in the country that can drive to a



     13     property.  So growth typically is GDP-type growth.



     14     What the casino sector has in terms of an operating



     15     style is they'll try and subsidize, right, so



     16     they'll give away something for free to thinking



     17     that it creates a visit.



     18          Very simply, our view is a lot of those



     19     subsidies are not necessary and the customer will



     20     come without that inducement.  And so what happens



     21     is as we remove those subsidies, the total revenue



     22     goes down.  But that revenue's not really revenue,



     23     it's something I'm giving you that you're giving



     24     back to me.



     25          The real way to drive revenue is to invest in
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      1     your facilities, to continue to add to them.



      2     You've seen that happen here in the addition of



      3     table games.  You're going to see that happen in



      4     the future as we add the $60 million table game



      5     expansion.  That's how you drive real revenue



      6     growth, by investing capital and getting return,



      7     not by giving away a hamburger or a buffet.  So



      8     that's really our operating philosophy.



      9          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Then let me follow-up



     10     with you mentioned you have established, you're



     11     willing to establish this $25 million escrow



     12     account, but you also -- I believe it was you or



     13     maybe it was one of the other gentlemen --



     14     mentioned the $60 million improvements effort.  Is



     15     that in addition to?



     16          MR. REEG:  That is in addition to.



     17          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  That's not mixed in



     18     with that $25 million?



     19          MR. REEG:  No.  The $25 million over 10 years



     20     renewable is racing specific, will be invested into



     21     the racing side.  The $60 million in expansion



     22     capital is to increase the footprint of this casino



     23     and Hoosier Park.



     24          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  So it's generic across



     25     the board of the properties?
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      1          MR. REEG:  That's right.



      2          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Okay.  I just wanted



      3     to make sure I understood that.  Thank you.  I



      4     think that's all I've got right now.  Those were



      5     the two.



      6          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Commissioner Pillow?



      7          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  I don't have any.



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  While you're there, I guess



      9     it has been brought up before about the savings



     10     that you'll have with this merger, $500 million or



     11     whatever the number is.  Is there any more you can



     12     say on that without giving away trade secrets?



     13          MR. REEG:  What I would say is it's really a



     14     function of difference in operating philosophy.



     15     Caesars built up a very large centralized



     16     organization based in Las Vegas that is kind of a



     17     command and control system that operates the entire



     18     company.  As I said in my prepared remarks, we



     19     empower the local leaders.  Our view is in Indiana



     20     we make our money here, we make it at Hoosier Park,



     21     we make it in our casinos.  The people that are



     22     making the decisions on an operating basis within



     23     the framework that we set are the people that are



     24     dealing with the customers every day.  So on the



     25     cost side, almost all of those cost savings in the
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      1     $500 million are in that corporate group in



      2     Las Vegas.



      3          In addition, on the Caesars side, which is



      4     different than prior acquisitions, because we bring



      5     Caesars Rewards into the existing Eldorado system,



      6     $100 million of that $500 million was actually



      7     revenue synergy, it's not cost cutting.  It's the



      8     12 million people in our system coming into the



      9     50 million Caesars Rewards.  You've seen that in



     10     these two properties here.  Despite the road



     11     construction in the area, bringing that into the



     12     Caesars program, they out-performed the rest of the



     13     state from a revenue perspective.  So that's a big



     14     piece of our synergies as well.



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Then ducktailing on the



     16     conditions we're in now, which I feel so sorry for



     17     you guys -- the country has just been rocked by all



     18     the COVID stuff and all -- somebody mentioned that



     19     you thought maybe things were coming back better



     20     than you thought so far.



     21          MR. REEG:  Yes.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  And I guess what I'm going to



     23     say is:  Do you think then we can finish the rest



     24     of the meets, as long as nothing else happens and



     25     we don't get any more state mandates that shut down
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      1     and all that, so everything should, the rest of the



      2     seasons for both tracks should go as normal as can



      3     be?



      4          MR. REEG:  We are certainly hopeful that's the



      5     case.  Obviously that's a function of the public



      6     health situation.



      7          We had to submit numbers to you and other



      8     jurisdictions frankly in the middle of the crisis



      9     when everything was shut down, and we put forth



     10     numbers that were in front of you that thankfully



     11     turned out to be extraordinarily conservative.  The



     12     customers have come back really pretty quickly.



     13     Revenues are up.  Casino revenue here is actually



     14     up at all five Indiana properties.  So that's been



     15     heartening to us, and now it's a matter of, A, does



     16     the public health situation remain stable enough



     17     that you don't retrench, which in Indiana, knock on



     18     wood, doesn't seem to be the case to this point,



     19     and then it's how do you keep reopening and



     20     bringing things back that are still pulled back at



     21     this point.



     22          CHAIRMAN BORST:  I hope we don't have to do



     23     that.  I hope nobody has to do that.



     24          MR. REEG:  I hope so too.



     25          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Any questions?
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      1          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Mr. Chairman, while



      2     Mr. Reeg's there, couple other questions.  Number



      3     one, thank you for stating your commitment to us



      4     and everybody here for the record today that the



      5     tracks are on the table for divestiture because I'm



      6     one of the people who've been on this Commission



      7     going back to the Centaur bankruptcy days and then



      8     the one breed, one track when they purchased this



      9     facility out of bankruptcy, so forth.  So we've



     10     seen lots of ups and downs, and so that's obviously



     11     very important and we appreciate your pledge.



     12          The one thing I would say that you offered



     13     that I'm not interested in is the offer to go to



     14     the legislature.  And with all due respect to the



     15     legislators that are here, sometimes the



     16     legislature giveth and they can also taketh away.



     17     I'm not in favor of going to the legislature and



     18     legislating the 12 percent.  Quite frankly, the



     19     legislature acted a couple of years ago to put a



     20     process in place that arrives at the correct



     21     percentage, and my preference would be to let that



     22     process work its way and not put 12 percent



     23     statutorily in.  We can have that discussion with



     24     more length at some point, but I feel very strongly



     25     about that.
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      1          MR. REEG:  Okay.  We look to you.  We want to



      2     get to --



      3          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  I appreciate that.  I



      4     just wanted to make sure that I state that.



      5          MR. REEG:  We certainly don't want to --



      6          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Good.  We appreciate



      7     that very much.  Thank you, Mr. Reeg.



      8          CHAIRMAN BORST:  He doesn't beat around the



      9     bush.



     10          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  No.



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Any questions from staff?



     12     Robin?



     13          MR. BABBITT:  I just have a couple questions.



     14          So I understand that you put Mr. Morris in



     15     place as the senior vice president of racing and



     16     he'll be in that position for some undefined time,



     17     but I'm assuming that the commitment is an ongoing



     18     commitment.  I've heard only good things about



     19     Mr. Morris, but that this position will be a



     20     permanent position --



     21          MR. REEG:  That's correct.



     22          MR. BABBITT:  -- that will be embedded in the



     23     sort of philosophy and culture of Eldorado going



     24     forward.



     25          MR. REEG:  That's right.  We'd like Mr. Morris
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      1     to stay as long as he'd like.



      2          MR. BABBITT:  Well, I hope it's decades and



      3     decades and I hope Mr. Carano is there for him to



      4     report to for decades and decades.  But there will



      5     be a direct report between the senior vice



      6     president of racing and chief operating officer?



      7          MR. REEG:  That's correct, sir.



      8          MR. BABBITT:  The other thing, I think, that



      9     would be helpful, just because the Pompano issue



     10     has been addressed and I think



     11     Representative Austin said it really well.  There's



     12     a marriage of gaming and racing in Indiana.  It was



     13     instituted at the same time.  It came up through



     14     the legislature.  The legislature did all of these



     15     things that supported the horse racing agribusiness



     16     end of it.  So I think it's helpful for someone



     17     from Eldorado simply to make clear that that



     18     situation in Pompano is that situation, it's a



     19     unique situation, and that you would never perceive



     20     taking any actions to decouple racing and gaming in



     21     the state of Indiana.



     22          MR. REEG:  Yes.  I think it's important that



     23     I'm the guy to address that and tell you that we



     24     have absolutely no intention of pursuing that in



     25     Indiana.
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      1          MR. BABBITT:  Thank you for that.



      2          Then there was a discussion -- I actually was



      3     able to watch the Gaming Commission meeting -- a



      4     discussion about diversity and your commitment to



      5     diversity.  I do think there's serious concern at



      6     this Commission to increase gender and racial



      7     diversity in any way possible and I think it would



      8     make sense for you to sort of repeat those points



      9     to the Commission.



     10          MR. REEG:  Absolutely.  So Caesars has



     11     existing programs around gender and minority



     12     diversity.  And given the events over the last two



     13     to three months, I've started talking to Jan Jones



     14     at Caesars.  Jan Jones headed those efforts at



     15     Caesars.  She's the former mayor of Las Vegas, head



     16     of corporate social responsibility area.



     17          As part of the transaction, there are five



     18     Caesars board members joining six of our Eldorado



     19     board members to form the new eleven-member



     20     Eldorado board.  We asked prior to closing if



     21     Caesars would put Jan Jones on their board so that



     22     we could take her as one of our board members, and



     23     I'm pleased to report that that actually took place



     24     and Jan will be joining our board.  We'll be



     25     forming a corporate social responsibility committee
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      1     of the board that Jan will chair.



      2          I have given her direction in the midst of



      3     recent activity to pull forward the gender and



      4     minority diversity programs that Caesars had been



      5     developing that are quite well developed, but we



      6     want to get there quicker.  You know, we pride



      7     ourselves on being a company that finds



      8     inefficiencies where we can drive value.  I think



      9     what we're talking about here is an inefficiency



     10     where the entire casino sector seems to fish in the



     11     over 50 white male pool for management talent, and



     12     we think, A, it's the right thing to do, but we



     13     think, B, it's an opportunity for us to develop new



     14     talent for the future.



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Good.  Thank you.



     16          MR. BABBITT:  The last question, Mr. Chair,



     17     with your permission, would be that:  During the



     18     Gaming Commission's hearing there was some



     19     discussion about not cutting employment levels at



     20     the Indiana casinos and I think there was a general



     21     commitment made to that effect and I would think it



     22     would be appropriate to ask you if you would make



     23     the same commitment to racing.  I would mention



     24     that racing is a highly labor-intensive endeavor



     25     both from a public safety standpoint and from an
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      1     integrity standpoint, both which are critical to



      2     the operation of Indiana horse racing.  So if you



      3     would be prepared to make a similar commitment to



      4     the Racing Commission, I think that would be



      5     appropriate.



      6          MR. REEG:  We're happy to make a similar



      7     commitment relative to racing that we did to



      8     gaming.



      9          MR. BABBITT:  I have no further questions.



     10     Thank you, Mr. Chair.



     11          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Do you have any final



     12     statement that you'd like to make?



     13          MR. REEG:  Just thank you again for your



     14     consideration and thank you for bringing us all



     15     together in person.



     16          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  Thank you.



     17          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Okay.  Commissioners have no



     18     further questions, then at this point I'm going to



     19     close the record.



     20          The next step will be each Commission member



     21     has a chance to make a statement or a concern again



     22     if they'd like to.  Not a motion yet.  We'll go



     23     through each of us.  If you don't have anything to



     24     say, that's fine.  If you've got something you want



     25     to say.  Commissioner McCarty, do you got anything
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      1     that you'd like to . . .?



      2          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Yes.  In closing, I



      3     would just like to emphasize how seriously we take



      4     these commitments and obligations and will be very



      5     assertive about making sure they are fulfilled.  We



      6     appreciate both the responsiveness and relation to



      7     (audio interruption), and we just want everybody to



      8     understand we are thoroughly very serious about



      9     making sure they're complied with.  That's it.



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Thank you.



     11     Commissioner Pillow?



     12          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  My mic isn't working.



     13          CHAIRMAN BORST:  It isn't?



     14          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  I would just kind of



     15     like to echo Bill's statement that we will be



     16     looking at this pretty thoroughly.  I've been on



     17     this Commission now for about five or six years and



     18     I've seen a lot of changes and two or three



     19     ownerships, and stability is what I think that



     20     we're all looking for to make sure that horse



     21     racing in Indiana stays at the golden standard now



     22     like you said it is.  I just wanted to commend



     23     Eldorado on coming in and stepping up to the plate.



     24          I would like to ask one quick question.  How



     25     far along are you on your divestiture process, if
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      1     that's not corporate secrets?



      2          MR. REEG:  Mr. Commissioner, I assume your



      3     question is relative to Indiana divestitures?



      4          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Yes.



      5          MR. REEG:  Because we didn't want to be



      6     presumptuous of outcomes, we really haven't done



      7     significant work.  In our financing, which we did



      8     about a little under a month ago at this point, we



      9     had to disclose the expectation that we would have



     10     divestitures in Indiana.  So we've had quite a few



     11     incoming calls, but we have not yet started the



     12     process.



     13          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Okay.  Thank you.



     14     That's all.



     15          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Commission Schenkel?



     16          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  I think before that we



     17     have no experience with you folks up to this point,



     18     so we're relying on your word and on your promises.



     19     I'm very encouraged -- as I said earlier, I was



     20     skeptical -- but I've been encouraged as time has



     21     gone on and you've repeatedly promised to maintain



     22     first-class facilities and to promote and do all



     23     the things that we're charged with to make sure



     24     that horse racing in Indiana is done in the best



     25     public interest.  So we look forward to those words
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      1     becoming deeds and actions.  Thank you.



      2          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Well, I guess to wrap it up,



      3     want to thank everybody for all their cooperation,



      4     Eldorado especially.  It's been tough times these



      5     last few months and like you say things haven't



      6     quite gone the pace that we thought they would, but



      7     neither has the rest of the country.  I appreciate



      8     you just going right off the bat on the Reed report



      9     and addressing that.  That's a good sign of things



     10     that you recognize that and we have to reflect on



     11     that report.  When we see some of the things that



     12     have happened since then with Joe Morris.  Joe,



     13     you've got a lot riding on your shoulders, buddy.



     14     I don't know.  You may not want the job after all



     15     this.  That and the things that you've done, the



     16     commitments to all of the executive director's



     17     things and some other things through some letters



     18     that aren't in her memo.  There'll probably be



     19     20-some conditions that we'll have on there and



     20     you've, I think, pretty much said okay to all of



     21     them.  You've agreed to have the same management



     22     style that we've gotten to know in all these years



     23     here in Indiana, and that's important.  You're



     24     going to keep the same management team.  That's



     25     important too.
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      1          So I think with all these concerns addressed,



      2     I disagree with some of the horsemen that don't put



      3     it all on us because this is a team.  I think in



      4     keeping Eldorado's feet to the fire, it's going to



      5     take horsemen, too, because you guys are on the



      6     ground.  In this state horsemen are not afraid to



      7     speak up, as you may have heard, and that's great.



      8     So you all know how to get ahold of us if things



      9     aren't going right.  So it's going to take a team



     10     between the horsemen, the Commission Staff,



     11     Commissioners, and obviously the track management



     12     to make this work, but the good news is we've got



     13     stability, as George said, for most of this, the



     14     people on the ground that make things happen, and



     15     it's just ownership is going to change and so I



     16     think that's a good sign too.



     17          Anyway, we appreciate all your forthrightness



     18     today especially to come in and talk to us and tell



     19     us how you feel.  You've got it figured out, as I



     20     said earlier, this is a family and we'd like to



     21     keep it that way.



     22          With that, if there's no other discussion, I



     23     guess we're ready for a motion.  We can have a



     24     motion to pass the permits or we can have a motion



     25     with conditions or we can have a motion to deny.
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      1     So if somebody would want to make a motion, we're



      2     ready, we're at that point.  Commissioner Schenkel?



      3          COMMISSIONER SCHENKEL:  I would move to



      4     approve the Eldorado transfer of petition subject



      5     to the following conditions and/or covenants:



      6          1.  Any proposed conditions contained in the



      7     staff report submitted by the Commission's



      8     executive director;



      9          2.  Any conditions that reflect any



     10     commitments made by Eldorado since the transfer



     11     petition was filed;



     12          3.  Any other necessary and appropriate



     13     conditions, additions, and/or revisions made by our



     14     counsel that are supported by the comments of the



     15     Commission during this hearing and our



     16     deliberations; and



     17          4.  Any technical or legal additions that our



     18     counsel deems appropriate.



     19          As a part of the motion, I request that our



     20     counsel promptly provide a proposed final order for



     21     the Commission's review, revision, and execution



     22     that would subsequently be provided to Eldorado and



     23     would become effective upon Eldorado's acceptance



     24     of any conditions or covenants set forth in this



     25     final order or as otherwise provided for by
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      1     applicable Indiana law.



      2          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  I'll second that motion.



      3          CHAIRMAN BORST:  We've got a second,



      4     Commissioner Pillow.



      5          Everybody understand the motion with the



      6     conditions?  Any further discussion?



      7          MR. BABBITT:  Mr. Chair, I think to be



      8     consistent, wouldn't a roll-call vote be



      9     appropriate?



     10          CHAIRMAN BORST:  We'll get to that.  I'm



     11     learning.  I'm getting trained right.  I was going



     12     to go to the roll call.  I think we're ready for



     13     the roll-call vote then.



     14          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



     15          Roll-call vote.  Chairman Borst.



     16          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Aye.



     17          MR. JACKSON:  Vice-chairman Schenkel.



     18          MR. SCHENKEL:  Aye.



     19          MR. JACKSON:  Commissioner McCarty.



     20          COMMISSIONER McCARTY:  Aye.



     21          MR. JACKSON:  And Commissioner Pillow.



     22          COMMISSIONER PILLOW:  Aye eye.



     23          MR. JACKSON:  Thank you.



     24          CHAIRMAN BORST:  It was unanimously four to



     25     nothing.
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      1          Again, got to thank Indiana Grand for



      2     arranging this.  This was great, perfect, couldn't



      3     have been any better, and we certainly appreciate



      4     it.



      5          We've got to thank Eldorado organization again



      6     for answering all the questions.  I guess if you're



      7     in all these states, I don't know how you keep them



      8     all straight, but I guess you figure that out.



      9          Horsemen associations, thank you.  Thank you



     10     for meeting with them and coming up with ideas



     11     because you're on the ground, you know the stuff



     12     that's the most important.



     13          Obviously Deena and Noah and Jessica and Megan



     14     and Tom and Dale, everybody on the staff, thank you



     15     because this is a tedious process, and we've tried



     16     to do this right.



     17          Robin Babbitt, unbelievable guy.  He's



     18     forgotten more than all of us in this room combined



     19     could ever know probably, and we appreciate it.



     20     You are an unbelievable asset.



     21          Also finally the Commissioners for reading all



     22     this.  There was a lot to read.  And those of you



     23     know me, well, my twenty-eight years on the



     24     City-County Council I read everything and I drove



     25     people nuts.  I like that and I like all the
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      1     information that we've had.



      2          So with that, welcome to Indiana, Eldorado.



      3          (collective thank you)



      4          (applause)



      5          CHAIRMAN BORST:  Do we have any old business?



      6     Any new business?



      7          Seeing none, we are adjourned.  Thank you.



      8



      9          (The meeting of the Indiana Horse Racing



     10     Commission adjourned at 1:10 p.m.)
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      1  STATE OF INDIANA



      2  COUNTY OF MARION



      3



      4          I, Michele K. Gustafson, CRR-RPR, a



      5  Notary Public in and for said county and state, do



      6  hereby certify that the foregoing matter was taken



      7  down in stenograph notes and afterwards reduced to



      8  typewriting under my direction; and that the



      9  typewritten transcript is a true record of the



     10  Indiana Horse Racing Commission meeting;



     11          I do further certify that I am a disinterested



     12  person in this; that I am not a relative of the



     13  attorneys for any of the parties.



     14          IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my



     15  hand and affixed my notarial seal this 27th day of



     16  July, 2020.



     17
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     19          



     20		  



     21  My Commission expires:

         August 31, 2025

     22
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